## Notice

If you did not obtain this PDF copy directly from the Temple of the Vampire then it is not an authorized version.

Only authorized versions can be trusted to have unadulterated content and only authorized versions will be recognized for membership purposes.

To obtain an authorized version of this book go to

www.vampiretemple.com

To contact the Temple directly by email go to:

administration@vampiretemple.com



# **Bloodlines**

Volume Three

Selected Articles from Lifeforce 2008 - 2010

#### Notice:

The Vampire Religion requires that all followers refrain from any and all criminal acts as defined by their respective governments.

To be a Vampire, a follower of the Vampire Religion, you are expected to behave in a responsible and adult manner within society.

The Temple of the Vampire will excommunicate any individual who fails to do so.

The Temple of the Vampire will not be held responsible for the actions of anyone who fails to behave in a legal and socially responsible manner.

The above statements are made not subject to our standard disclaimer and can be relied upon as being factual and accurate.

Bloodlines
Copyright © 2012 by the Temple of the Vampire.
Portions of this publication carry copyrights from Lifeforce
Copyrights © 1989 through 2012

No portion of this book may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system, or transmitted, in any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical, photocopying, recording or otherwise without the written permission of the publisher.

For information contact the Temple of the Vampire.

Published by the Temple of the Vampire.

Distributed by Temple of the Vampire P.O. Box 3582 Lacey, WA 98509 U.S.A.

Internet website www.vampiretemple.com

Cover: *The Winged Skull of UR*, registered trademark ® logo of the Temple of the Vampire.

Printed in the United States of America

### **Table of Contents**

Within lies fact and fancy, truth and metaphor.	1
A Certain Folly.	4
The Vampiric purpose of Dayside work	9
Epistemology	14
Understanding the Undead perspective.	21
"They are not human"	26
If the Undead are real then	30
The Threat the Temple Poses.	33
The so-called "paranormal" does not require belief	36
About the Nightside	37
Faith in Materialism - a superstition.	39
Avoid literalism. Gain perspective.	41
You are unique!	43
Are You a Vampire?	44
The Dayside Vampire	45
On Testing the Nightside.	46
Yes. Stop thinking that way.	52
You have to find out for yourself	54
Your body is a machine.	56
Tests you can perform.	58
Street Smarts, Disinformation, and UFOs.	60
You Are Elite.	63
A Warning to Muggle Magicians.	67
Do not stop with words.	69
For newly arrived occult masters	71
The Vampire is not a victim.	73
The Nightside Path to the Undead Gods	76
Question about partners and Communion.	79
Love and Death.	80
How to not lose your Temple membership.	80

No Crime or Criminal Advocacy	82
Regarding neoNazis, psychos, etc.	82
The Secret Society	83
The medium is NOT the message.	86
The Dayside Path to the Undead Gods	88
Progressing in the Temple	92
The Royal Path to the Undead Gods	93
Understanding the Oath of Fealty	95
When pride first requires humility	99
Dayside Perspectives.	100
Regarding Romance and Sex	103
Why should They Come to you?	104
Am I a Vampire?	107
A Word To The Wise	109
We are what we are: Predators.	111
Financial Independence.	114
Time Enough for Love	116
Nightside topics.	117
Feeling overwhelmed ?	119
What about crime?	122
"Explaining away" the Temple.	124
Those who fail the Temple.	126
Vampires lead and rule, but do not follow	129

#### Within lies fact and fancy, truth and metaphor.

These are the first words of The Vampire Bible.

The last words of the final Teaching of the Temple in The Vampire Adept Bible read, "Without lies fact and fancy, truth and metaphor. Discriminate with care."

These words were not idly chosen to bracket the formal published Teachings of the world's only authentic Vampire Religion, HEKAL TIAMAT. They were chosen to emphasize a number of critical principles that the Vampire needs to inculcate into the deepest recesses of his character.

Here lies bedrock. Here lies multiple, embedded meanings.

At the first level, these words act as a legal and public disclaimer. It is warning the reader to not just believe everything as written. It is clearly stating that not all they will read is true and factual. At least some of what is written is fanciful and metaphorical.

In the dictionary, "metaphor" is defined as "a figure of speech in which a word or phrase literally denoting one kind of object or idea is used in place of another to suggest a likeness or analogy between them - figurative language."

In other words, metaphor is instructive but not literally true. Metaphor is intended to convey a meaning but is not the meaning itself.

Fancy is defined as "a mental image or representation" and "(archaic) fantastic quality or state". In other words fancy (as opposed to fact) is nonphysical in nature, and is a creation of the mind. (This subject is expanded in depth in the discussion of the dimension of Agreement in The Vampire Adept Bible).

However, the key point is that fancy, like metaphor, is not grounded in ordinary fact but operates on a different level.

That stated, there arise questions to be answered.

How to determine what is fact and what is fancy?

How to distinguish between what is truth and what is metaphor?

How does one "discriminate with care"?

"Discriminate" is defined as "to mark or perceive the distinguishing or peculiar features of", "to distinguish by discerning or exposing differences", and "to use good judgment".

In other words, to "discriminate with care" means that the reader is expected to make judgments based on discovering differences between what is written and what is true.

The reader is both warned and expected to test the Teachings he reads and then discover what is fact and what is fancy.

The reader is told he must actively seek to discover for himself by personal effort what is truth and what is metaphor.

In other words, the Temple is an intelligence test.

And the final words of The Vampire Adept Bible warn us that life itself is an intelligence test.

Discriminate with care.

(From Revelations, Chapter One, pages 3-4.

Further commentary on the above is worth including.

"Test Everything. Believe Nothing."

This is the Temple Motto.

You can be a member of our religion and never have to accept any of our claims regarding so-called psychic phenomena, what we refer to as the Nightside.

In fact we have members who never do this at all and are quite satisfied with simply applying the Secrets of Earthly Mastery to their own lives.

However the Temple proposes several claims about the Nightside to include:

- 1. The existence of a human energy field we call Lifeforce that can be harmlessly absorbed from other people.
- 2. The existence of conscious out of body experience and other "paranormal" powers.
- 3. The existence of others who have already gained greater mastery of such powers.
- 4. The existence of a mental technology that can potentially produce change in the physical world that we call magic.
- 5. The existence of a state of consciousness that better enables the control of these phenomena.

If you agree to accept as a working hypothesis that these claims could possibly be true you can enter Graded Membership in the first of five Circles or Grades as a Vampire Initiate.

Members who have verified for themselves the truth of these overall claims in written testimony for that Circle are recognized by the Temple with specific Titles.

This means that any member who attains a specific Grade has verified for himself or herself that the claims of that level are true.

The Temple never asks you to just have faith in our claims.

You must test and verify to yourself that these things are real.

In this way, the validity of any Grade of membership relies upon the honesty of the member with regard to each testimony submitted.

As explained in the quote from *Revelations*, when you read *The Vampire Bible* or **any** of the Temple literature you should **not** just assume that everything is true ...or <u>false</u>.

And you should **not** assume that everything is true or false ...yet.

And you should **not** assume that everything is true or false ...yet ...for you!

So how can you successfully "discriminate with care"?

How can you determine what is truth and what is metaphor?

By testing these claims for yourself, just as stated in the quote from *Revelations*.

This testing requires a voyage of discovery and an application of effort.

It does nothing to only work with words, asking questions, or reading.

Merely looking at the history of others' actions or efforts won't really help you either.

The only thing that can enable **you** to move from questioning to reliable knowledge is this voyage of self discovery.

The Temple Disclaimer and the Temple Motto both say the same thing.

Within lies fact and fancy, truth and metaphor.

Test Everything. Believe Nothing.

We mean it.

#### **A Certain Folly**

"Doubt is not a pleasant condition, but certainty is absurd." ~Voltaire

#### Certainty is social, not psychological

When one joins a community, there is a tendency to adopt the beliefs of that community over time. This tendency becomes especially strong as one adopts the labels of that community (e.g. "I'm a Christian" or "I'm a Democrat") and as one interacts with others in that community, especially when those interactions are in-person. We see this, for instance, in the unwavering devotion that born-again Christians often exhibit toward the ideas espoused by their chosen church. They surround themselves with likeminded Christians in large part to "sustain their faith" and avoid "lapsing back into sin" - and doing so works tremendously well. Watch the film *Jesus Camp* to see this effect in action.

As another example, those who call themselves "atheists" have a disproportionate tendency to ascribe to materialism, which is the view that matter is all that exists and that all phenomena that are seemingly non-material like "out-of-body experiences" must be illusions created by material processes. Atheism, by definition, is the belief that there is no God, and it often gets accompanied with the belief that there is no spiritual realm. So why should atheism come pre-packaged with materialism? Properly speaking, there is no inherent clash between Buddhism and atheism, and yet it's extraordinarily rare to encounter a self-ascribed atheist who will identify himself also as a Buddhist if asked. Ultimately, this comes from the fact that adopting the label "atheist" usually comes after reading about or speaking with others who call themselves "atheists", and that in turn encourages a system of beliefs as a bundled package that happens to include materialism.

This social nature of belief isn't inherently bad. It's just human nature. The core survival strategy for the human race has long been to gather in tribes to support one another. Throughout most of time human beings were hunters and gatherers, and in such a society disagreements about how to hunt certain beasts, which plants were edible, what the weather was likely to do and so on could easily kill the whole tribe. This gave evolution both time and an incentive to make espoused beliefs one of the ways in which human beings identify which tribes they are members of.

That said, this is critical for you to understand in order to protect your interests as an individual. It means that what you personally believe is more an indication of whom you consider kin than of what is factually true. It means that your sense of certainty - that "I know this for sure!" feeling - is not *and cannot be* calibrated to indicate the way things really are. Therefore, being absolutely sure of something is an emotion that solidifies your social identity *at the cost of your ability to perceive reality accurately*.

And it's worth bearing in mind that certainty is intensely tempting to seek. It comforts us, reassuring us that we are indeed members of the community of those who "know the truth". Devout Christians do it. Buddhists do it. Political liberals and conservatives do it. Scientists do it. These and countless other groups - in fact, practically every group in existence - forge their boundaries with certainty. We are instinctually driven to seek certainty, for the alternative is to risk being ostracized for daring to question what "everybody knows".

Bear in mind that this dynamic affects Temple members just as much as members of any other group.

This desire for certainty, this desire to agree with others, tempts Temple members to compare one another's experiences to make sure that their experiences are "valid" somehow. Newer members are inclined to ask older members whether a given understanding is "correct", even though all that older members can ever offer are their personal suspicions. All people who want to identify themselves with the label "Vampire" know, instinctually, that this is how one adopts labels and becomes accepted to a group: one identifies the key beliefs of the group and adopts them as one's own, repeating the phrases and arguments that everyone else says since in so repeating one can become a full and integrated member of the community.

This is socially accurate in other circles, but Vampirically it very much misses the point. Being integrated into a community and calling yourself a "Vampire" will not matter one iota at the moment of death. All that will matter at that time is the discipline you have applied to your life up to that point. We might be able to leverage our social instincts to aid us in our dedication to our chosen practices, but we cannot rely on those instincts to tell us which practices are or are not effective.

Therefore, an essential part of Vampiric discipline is learning how to free our minds from the trap of certainty. In other words, each of us must develop the ability to authentically think for ourselves - and not simply repeat the words espousing the value "We should think for ourselves" as that would be practicing the very error we seek to eliminate. We must move beyond all slogans to engage in a wise practice that will achieve the mental and emotional maturity we desire.

#### Release certainty

Fortunately, it turns out that there is a way to do this. We can seek to retrain our habits so that instead of seeking certainty, we seek to discover for ourselves the value of treating the world *as if* certain things are true. The feeling of certainty then gets replaced with a degree of trust in what we have come to find effective in our own lives. The extent to which we succeed in achieving this goal is the extent to which our minds become our own, free of the tendency to change what we believe in order to belong to any group - even the Temple.

Start by recognizing the feeling of certainty. It feels a certain way to know something for sure, often involving physical tension around the solar plexus, shoulders, and scalp. Try thinking of something you're deeply convinced of that others disagree with you about, and notice how that deep conviction feels both emotionally and physically. Notice how these sensations intensify when you encounter or think about some specific instance of someone arguing *against* your belief. An easy example would be a political topic you care passionately about; how do you feel when arguing about politics that matter a great deal to you? If there is no such thing for you, find something comparable so that you can recognize how certainty feels in your body and heart.

Understand that this feeling is a kind of self-blindness. If you are right, then reality will defend the view for you if you let it. Yet if you are wrong - or worse, are only *partially* wrong - then this feeling of absolute knowing will prevent you from changing your mind. The inflexibility of certainty is *without* respect to reality. Recognize that, yes, this applies even to this particular instance of certainty that is on your mind right now. Let that sink in for a moment.

Now, physically relax your body, especially the parts that you found correspond to the feeling of certainty. Take a few deep breaths and let the tension melt away. See if you can reach a state of calmness or at least decreased excitement. It should feel to you like you're "opening up" in some fashion.

From this position, let yourself not know the truth. Be okay with not knowing. Be open to the possibility that despite your past certainty, you might be wrong. Be open to the possibility that the other person's argument might be at least partially correct. Really, sincerely consider it. If you take a "pro-choice" stance on abortion, try to seriously consider what good exists in a "pro-life" position (or vice versa). If you believe that Christianity is a farce that just manipulates people and ruins lives, try to be open to the possibility of its at least partial truth and virtue. On whatever matter your mind settled in order to feel certainty, find a way to be willing to *feel uncertain* about the truth.

While you're doing this, be aware that there are two opposing tendencies that will come into play, *both* of which need to be countered. The first and most obvious is an unwillingness to consider the wrongness of one's own position or the rightness of an opposing one. For instance, many people feel so passionate about the abortion issue that they close down to the opposite position, branding everyone on the other side of the argument as blind or stupid or immoral or some other convenient tag. This is an instance of the tribal "us vs. them" attitude and actually emphasizes my original point: certainty is a social indicator of belonging, not a psychological indication of truth. The goal here in large part is to learn how to let go of that by *practicing* letting go. This means being willing not to know whether the position you were once certain of is correct.

The opposite and equally erroneous tendency is to drop one's original stance in favor of an opposing one. An example of this would be switching from being a political liberal to being a political conservative, or going from being an atheist to a born-again Christian. *This is the same mistake in a different guise*. All you're doing by such an action is changing tribes; you will have done nothing to free your mind from the tribal belonging instinct. When considering a stance you're inclined to disagree with, you don't need to *and should not* accept that stance in place of your old one. You just need to cultivate a willingness to not know which position - if any! - is correct. It's uncomfortable at first because it feels as though you're without a foundation, but given enough time you'll find that the wisdom you gain from being willing to not know the truth is far more meaningful than the mild comfort that certainty gives. Indeed, it's usually an incredible joy to be able to perceive the subtlety and uncertainty that underlies most phenomena worth being aware of.

One thing that can help soften the emotional intensity of this effort of not knowing is to develop compassion for those who oppose your views. Recognize that when someone engages in a passionate argument, it's because that person is frightened or hurt in some fashion and needs to reaffirm his or her identity in order to address that suffering. This is rarely conscious but is easy to see when you learn to look for it. Practice perceiving this suffering, and cultivate a desire to relieve such people from it. This will help you to avoid leaping into defending or attacking any belief, which avoidance in turn will help to keep your mind free of certainty in those beliefs in the first place. You will also most likely find that others are more willing to listen to what you have to say when you come from a compassionate stance; kindness and understanding are behaviors that indicate being part of the same tribe.

#### Replace knowing with "as-if" working assumptions

At some point, though, each of us needs a way of evaluating the value of an idea or course of action. In short, Vampirism advocates measuring the value of an idea not by its truth, but by its *usefulness*. We can judge an idea's usefulness by testing its results when we treat the idea as if it were true.

Let me give you an example. It is a pretty well-established scientific fact that matter is made of atoms,

and that most of the properties of matter that we're familiar with can be explained by the ways in which these atoms are arranged. This is something that matches my experiences quite well when I treat matter *as if* it were made up of atoms; for instance, I can reason about acid/base reactions in the kitchen using this view and get roughly the results I intend. Because of many, many experiences I've had when adopting a worldview that pretends *as if* the atomic theory is accurate, I have a great deal of trust that treating the world *as if* the atomic theory were true is helpful to me.

Notice, though, that this is focused on utility rather than truth. If some curious experience came to light that challenged the atomic theory, I would be surprised by that evidence but open to it nonetheless.

For a more controversial example, consider the idea that Lifeforce exists. Modern Western medicine has largely agreed that there is no such thing, that the position of vitalism (i.e. that there is some "stuff" that is the essence of life distinguishing living things from non-living ones) has been thoroughly disproven. Some forms of Eastern medicine disagree with those conclusions, and even some Western physicians argue that there might be a kind of electrical circulatory system that amounts to the same thing as what the Chinese refer to as the system of meridians ("chi flow"). (See *The Body Electric* by Robert Becker for one such example of this view.)

However, by being willing to not know the truth of the matter, we open ourselves up to the possibility that viewing the world *as if* Lifeforce were real might provide us with some considerable benefit. This is, in fact, one of the claims that Vampirism makes and that the Temple encourages its Graded members to explore. We don't ask you to come to know for certain that Lifeforce is real; that would be folly, in effect asking you to blind yourself for the sake of social recognition. All we ask is that you be open to the possibility that accepting the existence of Lifeforce as an "as-if" working assumption can produce meaningful results that simply are more difficult or perhaps even impossible to achieve by operating as if Lifeforce were not real. Gaining experiences in this vein gives you tremendous confidence in what you can achieve *in a way that is immune to arguments and peer pressure*.

Please notice, though, that it's your abilities, your "toolkit" so to speak, that is immune to argument. It's theoretically possible that someone might come along someday and explain everything Vampires do with Lifeforce in terms of human psychology, just as it's theoretically possible that someone will someday disprove the atomic theory of matter. By being willing to not know the truth, we remain open to such possibilities should they arise. But even a thorough disproof of the existence of Lifeforce cannot bear whatsoever on what you have personally found yourself capable of due to behaving *as if* Lifeforce were real. That kind of personal experience is irrefutable - which is why all of Vampirism is built upon *that* form of knowing rather than any theoretical or intellectual one fueled by the social emotion we call "certainty".

#### **Summary**

Both feeling and seeking certainty are folly for individual interests, co-opting our minds in order to identify with certain communities and to be recognized as members of those communities. This includes assigning ourselves labels such as "liberal", "rationalist", or even "Vampire".

By releasing certainty in favor of a willingness to not know the truth, we free our minds from instinctual enslavement to the tribal belonging instinct. We can release certainty by:

- noticing what certainty feels like in our bodies and hearts,
- relaxing, especially where certainty is felt in the body,
- choosing to be open to being wrong and to the possibility that other points of view might be at least partially right,
- developing compassion for those who are ensnared by the need for certainty, and
- replacing the effort to know the truth with an open effort to experiment with "as-if" working assumptions, seeking to develop trust in trustworthy "as-if" propositions rather than to develop knowledge per se.

This is an ongoing process. As we clear more and more cobwebs from our minds, we learn to perceive reality in increasingly helpful ways. We learn to see the value in all points of view, but are still able to choose strong courses of action. We can still join whichever communities we so desire, but we remain free to be ourselves rather than getting caught up in the social passions of the groups we happen to be with. This gives us the calm integrity we need to be sincere, wise, compassionate, decisive, and yet still entirely individual, even and especially within the Temple.

This is the starting point of all Vampiric practice.

Train well.

#### The Vampiric purpose of Dayside work

The central goal of Vampiric work is the achievement of the Vampiric Condition, a state in which you can function out-of-body while still interacting with the physical world and those within it. With enough understanding and practice, it is a fairly small leap from achieving the Vampiric Condition to being able to survive the death of your physical body.

Everything we do in this Temple is intended either to find those with the potential to achieve the Vampiric Condition or to help those who are here to realize their potential in alignment with the intentions of the Undead Gods. This is a more detailed version of what we mean when we say that the Temple Mission is "to find lost members of the Family."

Because the Dayside Secrets and the requirements for entering First Circle seem devoid of the Nightside elements that make up the Vampiric Condition, I can understand why some members might wonder how the Dayside work the Temple advocates relates to the Mission. I'd like to clarify this matter here so that everyone in this Temple can pursue Dayside work in its intended spirit. I will go over each of the six areas of Dayside work - intrapersonal, immortality, interpersonal, health, survival, and money - to explain in some detail how that area provides you with a foundation for Nightside work. I hope that in doing so, I can help you appreciate what that area can do for your Vampiric development.

#### **Intrapersonal**

The core of intrapersonal work is the development of Vampiric Will. Will is essential not just for achieving Dayside goals; that's the most primitive and easy application. Vampiric Will gives you a strong enough sense of self that you can hold your soul together after death long enough to Feed on the living. It is the kernel of intensity that allows you to retain your identity and concentration when your body's nervous system no longer does it for you.

This is a vital area of work throughout Vampiric training. The earlier you start this training, the better. This is why the Temple encourages those who first walk through the gates to start right away on developing their Will.

Conversely, a weak Will makes Lifeforce Vampirism difficult and lucid dreaming or astral projection close to impossible. It can make life seem dull, frustrating, or meaningless. It also leaves your mind open to negative influences that can cause you to become neurotic, making you believe that it is harder to develop Will in the first place.

Therefore it's especially important for your Vampiric development for you to focus on the Intrapersonal Secrets if you have a lot of self-doubts, have difficulty concentrating, feel despair or anxiety frequently, or cannot enjoy the sense of peace that is always available to you in the present moment.

That said, even those who feel fairly comfortable with themselves should work on this area if they can take the time to do so. Even the most highly developed Vampires continue to forge their Willpower as a kernel of stability for their survival after death.

#### **Immortality**

There are two main purposes for the Immortality Secrets.

First, it's important to realize that you have a tremendous advantage while you are alive: your physical body feeds your dream body. As long as you're alive, your body will give you the Lifeforce you need to survive even if you fail to take any while out-of-body. By way of contrast, after you die you *must* take this Lifeforce from those still alive in order to retain your sense of self.

The first function the Immortality Secrets perform, then, is to give you a "safety net" so that you have as good a chance as can be gotten of having your body revived so that it can again nourish your soul. In principle, reviving your body could even recover you from the Second Death. As Dayside technologies improve and the boundary for what defines physical death gets pushed farther back, this becomes an increasingly valuable resource for Vampiric work.

However, you might find it worthwhile to note that this is just the modern version of a very old Vampiric tradition. The ancient Egyptians practiced mummification for much the same reason - and that's just the best-known example.

The second main purpose for the Immortality Secrets is to help you confront and eliminate your acceptance of death as inevitable. It is difficult for anyone raised in human culture to appreciate just how powerfully that assumption affects them. Its influence interferes with nearly every facet of Vampiric work, and there invariably comes a time when one cannot meaningfully progress towards the Vampiric Condition without addressing this issue. There are many reasons for this, most of which are difficult to understand until one has experienced the weight of imminent death lifted from one's shoulders; that said, if one assumes that immortality is impossible, that will certainly interfere with efforts to become immortal, especially if those methods rely heavily on the state of one's mind.

The reason the Immortality Secrets can perform this second function is that they offer you a course of action to defeating death that you can see as being hopeful. Notice that there are two components to this: action and perception. It's vital that you come to appreciate that the Immortality Secrets really do give you a chance at surviving conditions that happen to be viewed as irrevocable death due to the limitations of modern understanding. Therefore, as you approach these, it's important that you educate yourself about them and come to accept their value. By and large there can be little cost in doing what the Temple advises in the Immortality Secrets, but the profound psychological change that will benefit you will come only if you feel you have taken realistic action to survive death.

Just be aware that People Who have gathered a tremendous amount of experience and wisdom have advocated the methods in the Immortality Secrets as the modern version of an ancient Vampiric tradition of attempted physical survival. Because of that, the Temple does not let anyone who has not taken action on the Immortality Secrets into the Priesthood of Ur as such people clearly do not recognize the Authority of Those Who suggested the Immortality Secrets in the first place.

#### **Interpersonal**

Human beings have a number of powerful instincts that cause them to orient to their society. The desire to find a mate, the inclination to be aware of social relationships (and hence to gossip), the will to establish one's place in the hierarchy of dominance, and the drive to have and get along with friends all

appear in every one of us to a greater or lesser extent by virtue of being the animals that we are.

This means that the way in which you relate to others can and probably does have a profound effect on many facets of everything you do. For our purposes, the center of concern is on whether the way you connect to others enhances or hinders your Vampiric Metamorphosis.

To be clear, most social interaction comes down to a matter of astral connection. Most of the Interpersonal Secrets rely on encouraging you to tap into the same sort of astral connection that you need for Lifeforce Vampirism. There are certainly exceptions such as NLP, which in many respects leverages the fact that most people use their living nervous system alone in order to think. But by and large, the Interpersonal Secrets could be fairly summarized as, "Form an astral connection with others and act in accord."

If you find that you have difficulty getting along with others or that you are worried or upset by social circumstances, then the problem is probably in the way you are using any astral connections you have formed with others. You are probably wasting your Lifeforce. You cannot refine your essence into something greater or attract the attention of the Undead to assist you if you throw that essence away via obsession.

Conversely, if you are "independent" in the sense of choosing not to care what others think or not letting them affect you, then you probably aren't forming astral connections at all and cannot perform the most basic act of Vampirism.

The social arena, then, gives you a testing ground for the efficacy of your Vampiric work. Can you befriend people easily? Can you encourage a meaningful emotional connection with others? If so, then your Lifeforce Vampirism has a good chance of being effective. If not, then this Dayside realm is interfering with your Metamorphosis.

Finally, it's worth noting that having good relationships with others can be a tremendous motivating factor for Vampiric work. Although immortality for its own sake is a powerful motivator for many here, many others view living forever primarily as a way of continuing their enjoyment of their social connections with friends and loved ones. If this is the case for you, then improving your relationships can make your eternity even more delightful for you.

#### Health

The astral and physical levels are not independent of one another. The flow of Lifeforce defines the difference between living and dead tissue, and the biological processes of the fleshy body convert the Lifeforce of food, air, sunlight, and other sources into the refined essence that makes up your dream body as a human being. This interaction is a key part of why the Vampiric Condition is possible in the first place.

When you first begin the work of Vampiric Metamorphosis, your body provides you with most of the Lifeforce you will use to survive. That life essence will become excess for you to use however you see fit as you learn to take what you need more fully from others, but early on the condition of your living flesh determines what you have to work with. A vibrant, healthy body will give you powerful reserves with which to do great work; a weak, sickly body will sap much of the Lifeforce you collect from others just to maintain itself.

Many people underestimate how powerful this influence is. They often don't understand that they can't concentrate or that they feel depressed because the biological machine in which they reside needs tuning. They don't realize that they would remember their dreams more easily if they were to eat well, exercise, get enough sleep, and breathe more deeply. Because the physical body acts as the primary source of Lifeforce for those who have not yet Risen, any deterioration of the flesh adversely affects one's mind as well - and conversely, work done to improve physical health will enhance one's clarity of mind and support Vampiric Metamorphosis.

If you find you lack the energy needed to practice the Nightside disciplines that will best assist your Vampiric development, this is probably an area you will need to focus upon. The abundance of Lifeforce you get even from small improvements in your health will assist you immensely.

#### **Survival and Money**

I lump these two together because, although they're very different in terms of pragmatics, they address the same basic need which can interfere with Metamorphosis when not met: the need for safety.

Many people today in the developed world are worried about the possibility of a new economic Depression, possibly tremendously larger than the one that struck the USA in the early 1930s. If you are among those people and you have no meaningful plan for surviving and perhaps thriving in that situation, then your fretting will sap your Lifeforce and keep you from doing meaningful Nightside work.

Or suppose that you have an okay job but it's always a mystery to you whether you'll have enough money in the bank to pay your rent on time. If this is a source of anxiety for you, you'll again have little life energy to spend on Metamorphosis.

Or perhaps you're just concerned that some thug might attack you or your loved ones. If you feel frightened of this every time you walk down the street and you have no meaningful skills in self-defense, this will obliterate your power.

Every one of these concerns is realistic. Economic collapses do occur sometimes, even if only locally due to events like natural disasters. Not having enough money for basic physical needs is a problem. People get attacked every day, and some are permanently crippled or die as a result of those incidents. So from a pragmatic standpoint, as someone who still needs to use their body to survive, it behooves you to take action that will allow you to continue your Vampiric training.

But just as important is the sense of anxiety that comes with these events. Even if none of them actually turn out to be a problem *for you*, the fear that they *could* be a problem steals away the vital Lifeforce you need to become more than human.

Therefore, the best and most sane recourse against these problems is to eliminate them.

We advocate being prepared for emergencies of every kind that you see as being reasonably likely to occur. We encourage you to develop self-defense skills and learn how to avoid situations that would cause you need to use those skills. We want you to become financially stable and even totally financially independent. Such action gives you real, meaningful security that your deepest mind can appreciate and that will actually protect you. That in turn allows you to feel free to take Nightside action, which

otherwise might feel like little more than a distraction.

#### **Summary**

Although each of the Dayside areas can certainly improve your day-to-day life (and we certainly hope they do!), that isn't the Temple's motivation for offering them. They are here because they provide a meaningful foundation for your work towards achieving the Vampiric Condition.

Intrapersonal Secrets give you the focus needed to function without a body.

Immortality Secrets free you from mortal slave programming.

Interpersonal Secrets encourage you to form the astral connections needed for Lifeforce Vampirism.

Health Secrets provide you with an essential source of power.

Survival and Money Secrets give you freedom from real dangers so that the Dayside world need not overly distract you.

As you grow in your work towards the Vampiric Condition, you will find that these Dayside Secrets become easier. Just as the Dayside supports the Nightside, the Nightside eventually aids the Dayside. This balancing of Day and Night has been the secret that has allowed Us to rule these many thousands of years, for no one operating purely in material terms can hope to match the power of an immortal Being Who perceives and uses the totality of that which is.

Before you can reach such a balance, however, you must strengthen your Dayside so that it can support Nightside work.

I hope now you can appreciate exactly why that is.

#### **Epistemology**

Epistemology is the study of knowledge - what it means to know, how one comes to know, and how knowing is different than other states of mind such as belief or ignorance. It is absolutely central to Vampiric philosophy since what the mortalkind espouse as "knowledge" universally gets them killed. Every aspiring immortal needs to develop an awareness of epistemology simply to *survive*.

All people subscribe to epistemological theories, which is to say that they make assumptions about what it means to know, to learn, to believe, to be ignorant, and so on. They are usually totally oblivious to these assumptions, which is why they will often get confused or annoyed when presented with questions like "How do you know that?" They may also use multiple and incompatible epistemological theories, such as the Christian scientist who trusts only experimental evidence in the laboratory but "just knows" that God is watching over him.

One of the principle values of being aware of epistemology is that you can recognize these theories in action. This clarifies many basic conflicts and bypasses needless arguments. For instance, the clash between evolutionary theorists and creationists is really an epistemological disagreement. Evolutionary theorists consider empiricism and the opinions of scientific peers and superiors to be the foundation of knowledge. Creationists consider the Bible and the opinions of *religious* peers and superiors to be the foundation of knowledge. Falsifiability means nothing to creationists just as verses from the Bible mean nothing to scientists. Yet neither side seems to recognize this as the core issue, and therefore each side views the other as foolish and totally misguided.

I recently had an online conversation with a "Western ceremonial mage" who claimed to know that all people reincarnate, but people who train in ceremonial magic can develop the willpower needed to choose *how* they reincarnate. After a great deal of prodding, I got him to admit that he "knew" this because he felt strongly that this was true "in his soul" when he was nine years old and the feeling has remained with him ever since. I thanked him for explaining his epistemological stance to me, to which he replied, "I try not to have an epistemological stance on anything that can get in the way of my will."

There are two important things to notice here. First, his epistemological theory is *perfectly valid* (if perhaps incomplete). It defines knowledge (whatever he "feels in his soul") in a way that lets him distinguish between knowing and other mental states. The problem from a Vampiric point of view is not that he's wrong (although he is according to Vampiric epistemology - more on that below). The problem is that he has not evaluated whether this epistemological perspective yields the results he's aiming for. In particular, this belief about knowing being an experience felt "in the soul" allows him to come to conclusions that will, absolutely, kill him. For instance, his "soul"-derived knowledge caused him to reject any promising scientifically-based approach to the preservation and revivification of the body after death out-of-hand without even researching it because "that just can't work."

The second thing to notice here is that even though he was intimately familiar with the term "epistemology" and could describe various epistemological theories (as evidenced later on in the conversation), he clearly has no conception that he even *has* a theory of knowledge. Even when it's pointed out to him, he remains totally oblivious to its influence on his view of what is real, trustworthy, or worth doing. He is perfectly ignorant of his ignorance.

It is to the Vampire's advantage to acquire a reasonable grasp of epistemology so that he can use it to free

his mind from the inane babbling of the dying masses. What I've just described above is the norm: hardly anyone reflects on how they know what they know and whether their method of knowing produces desirable results in their lives. To call this pivotal in Vampiric Metamorphosis is an understatement. A grasp of Vampiric philosophy contends, in my opinion, with Dayside immortality in importance for developing a stable Dayside life and embracing the perspective of a predator of humans.

To that end, I describe three particularly pertinent classes of epistemological theory below: naïve, mystical, and Vampiric. There are many, many more general theories of knowledge than these three, but these recur so often in areas of Vampiric concern that they are worth understanding and being aware of.

#### Naïve epistemology

Naïve epistemology is the one absorbed from the culture. Western cultures tend to assume that knowing is being aware of a claim that is true in addition to having some correct justification for why it's true. Yet "correct" needn't mean "logical." I can't tell you how many times I've heard mathematics students in college tell me that they know a formula is correct "because my teacher told me so, and it gets the same answer as the book does when I use it." A mathematician (using rationalist epistemology) would cringe, but the fact is that this justification is totally legitimate. The student just has a naïve view of what defines knowing.

The foundation for this epistemological "theory" is peer pressure together with cognitive consonance. This is why the argument, "So many people can't possibly be wrong" is so compelling to most people. It comes from tens of thousands of years of human tribes surviving by agreeing with one another. If one member of the tribe disagreed with the others that was a threat to the unity needed to continue surviving. This gave evolution time and a reason to imprint a hesitation in becoming a sole dissenter into every individual.

Cognitive consonance dictates that people will change what they consider to be true in order to reconcile a contradiction they cannot ignore. You see this pattern, for instance, in people who are kicked out of organizations. Such people have to convince themselves that the organization is actually bad in some way in order to reconcile their situation with their belief that they are in the right. Then, because of peer pressure, they yell and scream loudly about how evil the organization in question is in the hopes that others will align with them and, therefore, validate their accusations.

In practice, this is the origin of the conviction behind belief. To believe is to pretend that something is true. This is not what most people *think* "believe" means, but this is what they actually do. People believe that the sun will rise tomorrow, so they plan accordingly. They believe in God, so they pray and go to church and proselytize. That belief becomes knowledge because they must reconcile their actions with their assumptions (cognitive consonance) and because others agree with them. Furthermore, this means that the more people who agree with them, the more true their beliefs are - and conversely, people who disagree with them threaten their certainty.

The latter point is particularly ferocious because evolution has encouraged tribes to beat on the lone wolf until he aligns with popular opinion or dies. This is why people become so vicious when they know they're right (i.e. they are part of a group of people who agree) and are confronted with someone who disagrees with them. When *both* sides have social support (such as in any major political issue like abortion), both parties are absolutely convinced of their position and are driven by a need to kill the other stemmed only by fear of social disapproval of murder.

The conclusion that knowledge is at least in part an awareness of something true does not actually follow directly from naïve epistemology. This epistemological theory is cross-cultural, but you find a slightly different theory of knowledge in the East. The reason this conclusion comes about is because of Western *metaphysics*. Metaphysics is in many ways just as valuable as epistemology and forms one of the three central branches to Vampiric philosophy (the three branches being metaphysics, epistemology, and ethics). However, in the interest of keeping this discussion focused, I will not go into metaphysics here. I will simply point out that epistemology interacts with one's assumptions about the nature of reality in order to produce conclusions. The naïve Western definition of knowledge provides one example of this.

However, it is vital to notice that hardly anyone is aware of using this epistemological theory. Most people have no idea that beliefs become knowledge via others' agreement. They think they know things because they have good reason to do so. However, it has been proven that you can get others to "remember" things that have never happened and get them to hallucinate (both in terms of seeing something that isn't there and not seeing something that is) just by surrounding them with people who behave accordingly. This is the result of a weak Will together with ignorance of epistemology.

Yet there is a loud contingent of people in modern western politics that is at least partially aware of naïve epistemology. Such people argue that since knowledge is fundamentally social in nature, the validity of any idea can be evaluated only within the context of the culture from which it emerged. These people tend to advocate an extreme form of cultural relativism, which in practice often means that any non-Western ideals are automatically considered to be better than Western ones. From such camps you will find things like "afrocentric feminist epistemology" as a way of "challenging" presumably corrupt, Western, middle-aged, masculine ideas like private ownership of land and getting paid more for producing more. Adherents to such a socialist epistemology are free to ignore evidence such as the history of China and the atrocities that "harmonious" African tribes inflict upon each other because evidence procedure is "merely" a Western, masculine, biased way of coming to conclusions.

Fortunately, this level of extremism is relatively rare and much smaller than it is loud.

It's worth noting that naïve epistemology permeates all human endeavors to some degree or another, even here on this message board. That's neither bad nor good. It's simply a truth that you can observe. I encourage you to be aware of it, particularly in yourself, so that you can choose how and to what degree it affects you. Knowing that self-doubt is usually *social* in origin can do a great deal to alleviate your need for others' agreement.

#### Mystical epistemology

Mysticism maintains that there are ways of directly knowing the true, hidden nature of reality that do not rely on sensory information. In fact, should such "divine revelation" contradict sensory experience, it is assumed that your *senses* are deceiving you and that your received knowledge is to be trusted above any evidence. This was the epistemological stance of my acquaintance who derived truths based on what he "felt in his soul."

Mysticism emerged because of a type of experience that is hardwired into the human brain. Most spiritual practices, when done in a particular way that is often seen as being the most sincere, help to shut down the part of the brain that is responsible for the sense of individual identity. When one has no sense

of self as separate from one's experiences, there is no room for suffering or frustration ("dukkha" in Buddhist traditions) since there is no one who can suffer or feel frustrated. In particular, this ends the fear of death since there is no one who can die. That resolves the most fundamental conflicts in the mortal mind, encouraging a kind of basic trust in the benevolence of the universe. The universe is felt as loving, conscious, and therefore purposeful. It's a wonderful experience for those who have lived their entire lives trapped under the crushing weight of mortality.

From a Vampiric perspective, what these enlightened people are seeing as the consciousness radiating from all things is actually *their own* consciousness. When you have no ego boundary, there's no reason to separate your functioning from that of the rest of the universe. This awareness that apparently radiates from everything is *your own awareness of your surroundings*. It's a bit like the man who, upon looking into a mirror, becomes enamored of this other person and forgets that he is looking at his own reflection.

This "realization of oneness" - experience without an experiencer - comes with a sense of immense clarity. Such an experience so obviously and radiantly exposes truth that a person in this state never questions the revelations that come with it. All the previous confusions and subtleties of life suddenly melt away in a penetrating awareness that "all is one." This impression of "oneness" is a natural result of dispelling the sense of self and becoming aware of one's surroundings. After all, you experience all details, attributes, and objects within the unifying context of an experiential world, so once there is no experiencer there is only the "oneness" of experience left.

Most people who subscribe to mystical epistemology don't realize that its foundation lies in this experience. Instead, it's assumed that this "direct knowing" can be generalized to feelings, intuitions, or even wishes that the person desperately wants to have come true. Most "new age" material is saturated with this epistemological theory such that "getting a good feeling" from a crystal means that one's life will improve if one buys it. Mysticism also appears in most religious teachings, although the usual epistemological stance for religious *organizations* is the naïve one.

There are two glaring problems with this approach to knowing from a Vampiric point of view. The first is that there is no way to invalidate an impression. The line between belief and knowledge is blurred so severely that some adherents to mysticism insist on talking about "your reality" and "his reality" in order to respect everyone's "divine revelations." UFO cults are often driven by the fervor of a leader obsessed with visions bursting from his dreaming mind and trusted due to the mystical premise of knowing. Thus mystical knowing can quite literally kill the mystic.

The second problem is that mysticism encourages the dissolution of the self. After all, the self is "merely" an illusion that interferes with the perception of truth. Yet from a Vampiric point of view, it's an extremely *useful* "illusion" which must continue if immortality is to have any meaning. Mysticism dismisses the desire for immortality as emerging from delusion. Vampirism starts with the desire for immortality and rejects any view that interferes with that goal.

I should emphasize at this point, by the way, that this is not to say that mysticism is wrong. It makes no sense to ask whether an epistemological theory is right or wrong since doing so requires donning one such theory to make such a judgment. Rather, what I'm saying is that mysticism opposes the *goals* of Vampirism and is therefore unhelpful to Vampires. Whether it's helpful to anyone else depends on *their* goals.

#### Vampiric epistemology

Philosophy can be seen as an attempt to answer tough, fundamental questions like "What is truth?" "What is the nature of reality?" and "What is the nature of moral behavior?" Most philosophers have tried to answer these questions sincerely, doing their best to uncover the truth behind them. Every philosophy that has emerged throughout mortal history has been an attempt to answer these questions *correctly*.

By way of contrast, all of Vampiric philosophy stems from a single practical question: "What can one do to live forever?"

This is crucial to understand. Vampires don't inherently care about what is true. Individual Vampires might find mortal philosophical pursuits entertaining as a pastime, but Vampiric philosophy is vital and living. It is not an attempt to answer fundamental questions *correctly*. It's a collection of answers *that improve one's chances for proper survival*.

"I acknowledge the fact that survival is the highest law." ~The Vampire Creed

To that end, Vampiric epistemology is a kind of empiricism. Very much like scientists, Vampires make educated guesses that experience can help to confirm or deny. We trust evidence above popular or expert opinion. We let our feelings of certainty fall in the face of contrary facts. We reject ideas about which experience can provide no insight. We recognize that since immortality means living forever in the realm of *experience*, any flights of fancy that do not connect directly to perception are worthless to us.

However, Vampires are not necessarily scientists. Scientists generally adhere to the metaphysical viewpoint of materialism, which is to say that they view matter as real while minds, emotions, and consciousness are seen as illusions emerging from material processes such as brain activity. This means that the only type of experience that counts as an authentic scientific observation is a material one such as from experiments performed in laboratories. Impressions, feelings, dreams, and other subjective sensations are not considered acceptable forms of data from which to derive scientific conclusions.

(To be fair, I should note that I'm referring specifically to the natural sciences such as physics rather than social sciences like psychology. Furthermore, there are many natural scientists such as Amit Goswami who challenge the materialist paradigm, although they tend to receive no small degree of ridicule from the scientific community.)

Vampires find it unhelpful to suggest that our subjective experiences are somehow "less real" than the world we seem to see objectively. Instead, Vampiric metaphysics maintain that *experience* is the foundation. That is to say, all experience is real. Dreams, emotions, thoughts, and intuitions are considered to be every bit as real as cell phones, books, and the internet. Anything and everything you experience is real. After all, it exists enough that you can experience it!

Thus all experience, not just some exalted subset of it, is considered in Vampiric epistemology.

Yet being practical, Vampiric philosophy acknowledges that there is some kind of difference between "subjective" and "objective" experience. It is exactly the schizophrenic's failure to make such a distinction that causes us to lock him up.

However, it is important to recognize that the only gauge we have for whether an experience is "objective" or "subjective" is *whether other conscious entities can experience it as well*. No matter how

certain you are that you have a computer, if no one else can experience it then your perception of a computer is, by definition, a hallucination.

In Vampirism, we call this principle "Agreement" with a capital 'A'. Agreement is the degree to which other conscious entities' experiences correspond with your own. It is therefore Agreement and not some ontological truth that distinguishes "objective" experiences from "subjective" ones.

Again, this is not a claim about what is true. This is an observation about what is *practical* in order to improve one's chances for survival. For all practical purposes, Agreement is more important than any ontological distinction between thoughts and objects. Therefore it is Agreement and not objectivity that is of Vampiric concern.

In Vampiric epistemology, knowledge is defined to be experience that one is aware is supported by Agreement. Notice that knowledge is not any version of "a true conception." All experience is real, and therefore all information gained through experience is "true" in the usual sense of "corresponding to ontological reality." Instead, knowledge is experience that you can trust other conscious entities will *regard* as real.

Consider bedside visitations, for instance. People around the world commonly report that at or very near the time of a loved one's death, they will suddenly wake up to find their loved one standing at their bedside. Sometimes they have a conversation in which the deceased explains what's going on and says goodbye. Unless someone else saw the apparition there as well, from a Vampiric perspective the person who saw their dead loved one does not know that the "ghost" really was who they thought it was. He doesn't even know if it *happened*. (It could have been a dream, for instance.) All he knows is that he was aware of the time when the loved one died. That much can be checked with other conscious entities. That experiences like this happen ("objectively") at all can become known by researching the fact that many other people report very similar experiences. Those people provide Agreement that such things happen. Yet these others cannot provide any Agreement that *this particular* experience happened: they cannot guarantee that he didn't simply have a dream. Such Agreement would have to come from someone else who also experienced the same loved one in this way. (Such multiple bedside visitations are not unknown, by the way.)

This gives us a great deal more flexibility than scientists have. Scientists would have to run thousands of people through millions of tests and correlate peer-reviewed papers in order to determine whether telepathy is real. All we have to do is try it and check the results. If we can get results with telepathy (meaning that the person with whom we have a telepathic exchange Agrees on the nature of that exchange), then we know telepathy is real. There might be some kind of scientific explanation for our results, but *for all practical purposes* telepathy is real if we can make it work for us in such a way that other conscious entities treat it as real.

This is what we mean by "validation." The Temple requires members to personally validate all of the Temple's claims. This doesn't mean one must remove all possibility of doubt. That's impossible. Vampires are *always* willing to be proven wrong given further evidence. What we mean is that you should discover for yourself that the experiences we describe are, for all practical purposes, supported by the experiences of other conscious entities.

For instance, we require Initiates to validate the reality of Lifeforce. The first step in doing so is to seek out experiences of Lifeforce and its consequences. This means practicing Lifeforce Vampirism, working with Lifeforce to heat or heal your body, investigating the abilities of people who claim to be capable of

controlling Lifeforce (by whatever name), or otherwise seeking out experiences that (a) could reasonably be considered consequences of Lifeforce existing and (b) are cross-checked with other people. These others needn't know that you're testing Lifeforce: I often tell people when I'm healing them that I'm using meditation to increase electrical activity in my nerves, thereby stimulating their nerves where I touch so that their bodies know how to heal the damaged area. However, they *do* heal, which tells me that for all practical purposes Lifeforce is real. Thus I know (even if you, dear reader, do not) that Lifeforce exists.

It is equally important to seek out experience that would *invalidate* an idea. If I heard that some scientific discovery of the human nervous system really does explain most or all of my experiences that I've attributed to Lifeforce, then I would immediately investigate it. I would even discard the idea of Lifeforce if the evidence against it seemed solid. I'm not whatsoever interested in holding onto outmoded ideas no matter how familiar they may be to me. I want to use what *works*. This openness to being wrong grants me *meaningful* knowledge that Lifeforce is real. I don't have to defend its truth. The Agreed-upon world does that for me.

This, then, is Vampiric epistemology: practical, rational, empirical, and dedicated to the greatest of all Vampiric virtues, *survival*.

#### **Test Everything, Believe Nothing**

The Temple motto is an epistemological warning. Because people are usually driven by naïve epistemology, they tend to pretend that whatever their friends say or whatever they're used to is real. Countless individuals have walked through the Temple gates determined to prove that they are experts in this or that occult subject, or that they don't need Dayside immortality because of the Nightside methods, or that there is no such thing as magic. They feel the need to gain acceptance from others here because of the usually subconscious fear of others' opinions differing from their own. Other people come in with mystical experiences such as *kensho* or meeting God in an out-of-body or near-death experience, and as a result have the strong impression that they understand some fundamental aspect of how reality really is.

Believe nothing. Cast it aside. If these perspectives are helpful, they will prove themselves so regardless of your or others' opinions. If they are cumbersome, however, it would do you well to discover that fact, which can only happen if you are open to its discovery. Be willing to be wrong, no matter how certain you are or how much evidence you think you have. What matters is not whether you know "the truth." What matters is whether your way of viewing the world allows you to live forever.

Therefore, test everything. Be willing to explore things you think you know are wrong. Be willing to check things you know are *right*, for that matter. Always ask yourself, "Do others treat this as true?" It does not matter what others *believe*. What matters is how others *behave*.

In particular, we suggest testing (but *never* believing) the claims of Vampirism. After all, if we're right - and we certainly know we are - then what we have to offer you is the surest way to immortality.

In the end, that's really all that matters.

#### Understanding the Undead perspective.

#### For a hypothetical example:

I was born in the early 1700's. None of the nations now in existence were yet formed and most of the nations then in existence are no more.

I lived an interesting life with involvement in printing and writing, followed by scientific interests and then government service as a foreign diplomat.

I married, raised children, and saw almost everyone I ever knew pass away into death. I lived a long life but my interests in ghosts and dreaming states led me to much private experimentation.

On several occasions I discovered that I seemed to be floating above my body and at that time this was a unique experience for me. And my dreams became more and more interesting with so many incidents of meetings with other people that I increasingly treated these visitations as being as real as any when I was awake.

I aged and grew infirm of body though my mind remained clear. I found that my dream life invigorated me even more than my waking world and I speculated increasingly whether or not this might be a foretaste of an afterlife.

I fell into a deep dreamless sleep at what I now know to have been my physical death and, swimming up through layers of dreams, finally came to find myself walking in a graveyard, where a funeral ceremony was taking place - my own.

There were others who stood near me and one, after looking me in the face, beckoned with his finger as he walked over to the mourners and then pointed to the bluish glow that I could see surrounding each of them. Then he inhaled in an exaggerated manner, so that I saw the bluish glowing mist flow into his body. He smiled and beckoned to me again.

And so I learned to take the Lifeforce of the living to invigorate my mind in this ghost-like state. To this event I owe my survival for I now know that otherwise my mind would have passed away as did my physical body.

I will not discuss at length the strangeness of my condition. Sometimes I could touch things around me, even people. More often it was as if I was the only solid thing in existence and the world around me was ghostlike. I did not hunger or thirst, and many other of my normal carnal drives were attenuated or absent.

Yet when I would Feed on the Lifeforce of the living, my mind would clear and, increasingly over

great time, I found I more often than not could feel the physical world, instead of only seeing and hearing it.

This world I now lived in was not the physical alone, however. I soon learned that much of what I could see and hear was dreamlike as even I was. I came to realize that these were the dreams of the living, and not merely those of people, but of animals, birds, and other living things.

Once I understood this, the confusing perceptions at least made more sense to me and, again, when I would Feed the physical tended to become more vivid and solid to me as opposed to the astral.

Freedom of movement was one great delight in this afterlife condition. Flight and floating are as easy as the thought to do so. To think of a place or a person as often as not caused me to find myself there.

As I became increasingly awake and aware, I discovered that I was becoming more conscious, more "awake" than I had ever been before. This tended to occur more and more as the confusing overlay of dreams reduced and the physical intensified.

What was surprising to me was that there were few others who seemed aware of me. Not merely the living individuals I would see and attempt to talk to, who, surprisingly seemed to reply and then forget that I was there in the next moment. I came to assume that it was my mind creating an overlay dream of their reply although even now I am not certain but what they truly are aware on a preconscious level but then do have instant amnesia. That remains a mystery among many other fascinating mysteries.

No, it was the near absence of others like myself who were awake and aware of their condition. When I would think on where such others would be, I would find myself often meeting with "presences" that I seldom could see and who seemed to offer feelings of reassurance to me that "All was well" and admonitions to "Continue forward", and the like.

This would sometimes frustrate me early on, as I have always wanted to understand the nature of things and these communications seemed far too evasive or cryptic for my scientific mind to find the least satisfying.

However, I was changing as well. It is simply difficult to convey this in words, but as I continued to become more awake, more filled with this energy of Life itself, I found that not only could I better interact with the physical world but that sometimes it would be as if I were dreaming I were a living person in that world.

I would find myself sitting in mundane surroundings looking down at my body, which was not my body at all! The first few times this happened the next moment I was completely elsewhere, in a far more dreamlike setting. However, I gradually came to realize that if I moved up from behind a living

person I could, in a sense, walk into their body and feel as if I were slipping into a face mask and able to move their arms and legs as if they were my own.

I was aware of the person's mind there as well, and usually their shock at my presence, and came to learn how to allow that smaller mind to relax and fall into a sort of sleep.

In this way I came to learn that I could, in many cases, be alive in that person's body in the same way I could formerly put on an overcoat. I also discovered that this experience further enlivened me.

At the same time, "being" other people was changing who I was for myself. I had already become quite distant from the man who had worked as a printer, a writer, a scientist, and diplomat. I had become loose in a world in which my very thought produced immediate impact and had learned to control my thoughts to guide my perceptions.

Stepping into physical bodies was sometimes, at least initially, alarming in its sensations. The fears, anxieties, hungers, lusts, aches, pains - the many bodily sensations I had not experienced for so very long except in a greatly reduced fashion - these flooded into my awareness with a power I was surprised by.

However, I have come to the conclusion that you can become accustomed to almost anything given enough time and exposure. My isolation from Others with awareness ended about at this time when I stepped into a physical body and then was confronted by another physical person who laughed, winked at me and then was gone - replaced by the confused former inhabitant.

I knew this was a contact but am unable to express in words how I knew this. But I knew.

So you must understand that all of this is a lie. I cannot truly convey to you in words what it is like to survive physical death and retain life. I cannot describe in words what it is like to communicate directly without words with Others. I cannot explain what it is authentically like to have lived for centuries as a ghost, a non-ghost, a possessor of bodies, a sentient being who is more awake and aware than you are right now.

So all of this is a lie. It is a pale shadow and a distortion of the experiences of survival.

And, in a wider sense, you could claim that I - the printer, author, scientist, diplomat - did not really survive at all. I have lived now as many men and women. I have experienced earthly life from my perspective mixed with numerous others. I have lived as a God, invisible, watching, invulnerable. I have lived in hellish confusion, unable to determine if my experiences were real or the fits of a madman. I have lived in unspeakable ecstasy, feeling joys quite beyond the imagination of those who have only been born once.

But this I know. I am here. I shall remain.

And this too I know. You can also. -Benjamin Franklin 1706 – 1790

I wrote the above hypothetical example in an effort to help clarify how human beings who would apply themselves to the same Nightside efforts we do here could be understood to have changed so much as to be hardly comprehensible to us now.

Place someone into a sensory deprivation chamber for a few hours and they will quickly discover how very much we depend upon feedback from perception (and the physical body) to maintain identity as a person.

Physical death removes the physical body from the equation. If you accept the possibility of the out of body experience then it is entirely reasonable to consider what would happen if that condition were maintained by a human mind (such as your own) for any real length of time.

Throughout all the cultures of the world going back as far as we still have written records, the dead have been portrayed as having to pass a test to remain "alive". Otherwise they experience the "Second Death".

When members perform Communion for the first time, they commonly expect to (hopefully) encounter a sentient Being and they expect that this will result in a communication such as you might have in meeting anyone normally in person.

However, how seldom that kind of communication seems to occur.

Yet, if you consider all of this from the perspective of Someone Who has passed through the kinds of experiences I have hinted at in my hypothetical example, I suspect you can understand better why these things happen this way.

Currently you almost certainly still identify yourself with being a human being, despite the many written Temple Teachings that point to a different option. Yet imagine for a moment how different you would look at things if, for just one example, you **knew** that you no longer had to fear anything from a survival standpoint?

Consider that the whole fabric of human civilized society is held together at the point of a gun in that

the laws that exist with regard to property ownership and personal protection are enforced by the threat of physical force.

If you no longer could be constrained by physical force, if you **knew** you could no longer be harmed or truly killed, then all of these laws would be as nothing to you. You would choose to act no longer based upon fear of enforcement at all.

By itself, how radically different would you then see yourself and your world?

How long would such a change for you take to transform how you perceived yourself?

I would suggest that it would not take very long at all.

The motives of the Undead stem from Their perspectives.

I have written the above hypothetical example in a weak attempt to suggest that such Beings are not easily understood if at all from a human perspective.

In the film "2001 A Space Odyssey" the final scenes with astronaut Bowman swiftly aging, dying, and being reborn in the presence of an alien intelligence offers another example of just how different things really could be when dealing with a truly alien perspective.

Though the Undead may have started out as human beings, that does not mean that Their motives and perspectives are transparent to us.

The toddler does not truly understand the world of the adult.

The child is wise to respect the adult's intentions and guidance, however.

#### "They are not human..."

Yes. That is what it means to become Transhuman.

I think of the difference between a mature adult and a toddler.

Now extend that the other way, and compare a mature human "adult" of let us say seventy years old to an individual who has lived through the equivalent of three such lifetimes, say, 210 years.

The difference would be just as dramatic and meaningful.

Now there are a few myths that can attempt to undercut this.

One is the myth that the older one becomes the less capable they are of learning. The book *The Brain That Changes Itself* neatly disposes of that myth with rigorous research and successful applications of that research.

Another myth is that the older one becomes the more entrenched in their perspectives they become. This really is only a variation on the assumption that age reduces learning capabilities.

In actuality, barring disease of the brain, the older you become the richer the number of experiences you will tend to draw upon and the more evidence of what does and does not work in the world gathers in your awareness.

Yes, you can adopt a perspective that blocks you from thinking. You can assume that you are certain about the facts of reality such that you refuse to consider new evidence (or even old evidence). That is the perspective of religious fanatics such as evangelical Christians or Muslims (or "born-again" atheists, for that matter!).

However, living long enough continues to rub reality in your face. Given enough time it should seem reasonable to expect that even the most diehard fanatic will surrender to reality ...no matter how weird reality turns out to be!

Over the years since the Temple pushed these ideas out into public view I have seen many individuals who come here and are impatient with getting the results that Others took literal lifetimes to accomplish.

So we begin at the ground level with Dayside issues.

Someone wants to rule the planet? We urge them to learn how to hold down a job that pays the rent first.

Someone wants to know they can live forever? We urge them to avoid making health errors, strengthen their emergency survival skills, and choose scientific means to preserve their bodies for possible restoration to life if worst comes to worst.

Someone wants to be able to fly in the air like Superman? We urge them to first learn how to walk on the ground like a normal man.

Of all the Dayside Secrets, the most resistance I see to applying them is with regard to money

management. And since the Dayside equivalent of Lifeforce is money I find that very telling.

"Everything's easy once you know how to do it." -Ray Charles.

Once a member learns to down chunk eating the Dayside elephant by learning to do it in bite size pieces there comes a point when I see a post, or get a PM or email that remarks about now that the situation is under control and the plans are being implemented, it all seems so obvious and even pretty easy to do.

Yet all we have done here is to carefully assemble the best answers to the most common Dayside problems that are normal to a human being: health, money, survival, will power, social communication, and surviving death.

All of the Dayside answers the Temple offers (and continues to look for and improve upon) were invented by other people wholly or in part. We have only attempted to assemble the streamlined essence of these answers all in one place.

Now if it really only takes between a few weeks or a few months to apply these solutions to the most common and pressing Dayside problems, imagine the perspective of someone who has "been there and done that" dozens of times over. Imagine the wisdom and patience of someone who has encountered the entire gamut of the human situation many times over and has lived to tell the tale!

**That** is a small part of what we are dealing with when we consider the perspective of an Undead God.

Think of the smartest, most worldly wise person you can imagine. Think of the value of the kind of advice such a wise one could offer you.

Now consider what it would be like to encounter someone with twice that experience.

Now consider what it would be like to encounter someone with ten times that amount of experience.

The Nightside of the Temple offers a very simple proposition.

Any human being less than 150 years old is not yet an adult.

In essence Those Who live longer have become something greater.

They are not human.

They are Transhuman.

The toddler will not survive without the direct assistance of **some** adult.

The child will not survive with the direct instruction of **some** adult.

If the assistance or instruction of **all** adults is inadequate, death is the result.

The assumption I see is that so-called human "adults" (of a normal human lifespan reared in a culture that values death over life, and inverts almost every pleasure as "evil" and most pain as "good") are valid benchmarks to judge the trustworthiness of a **true** adult Who may have lived far, far longer and learned

what is actually what.

I think that assumption is flawed.

The human world is a neurotic mess dominated by deathism.

The slightest application of reason to the human culture points to the Six Earthly Secrets that are promoted here in this Temple for Dayside mastery.

To apply reason to the ethics and actions of Transhumans Who have actually attained **true** adulthood can be approached hypothetically. I agree.

However...

The assumption that human beings are inherently "evil" or "botched" comes from a deathist perspective.

The assumption that human beings cannot learn or acquire new skills comes from a deathist perspective.

The assumption that the most abject moron human being **cannot** be amplified through the coming genetic and information and nanotech revolution into a Transhuman God comes from a deathist perspective.

In this Temple we keep the door open to the potential of the future.

Some enter and cannot break free of the deathist human culture.

They fail.

Sometimes if they have not burned their bridges, they learn more later and return.

This has happened.

We cannot know if an individual who comes here will exercise their potential or not.

It is not a matter of intelligence, either. I have seen highly intelligent people come here, leave, and are now dust.

I will not pretend that this perspective is an easy one to wrap your mind around.

But here is where the rubber meets the road:

People can and do change.

When we assume that this is not true and assume that an individual is simply "born" this way and **cannot** change, that fits perfectly into the deathist human culture.

That is a simplistic **assumption**.

In other words, the evolutionary gap between Them and us is far, far more than just that of an adult to a

child.

It is **exponentially** different.

So if we project the same stupid errors and assumptions that are part and parcel of human society onto the psychology of true Transhumans, then we could expect vicious, sadistic, psychopathic monsters who delight in torturing innocent animals and humans.

Is that what we experience and see in our own history?

Quite the contrary.

According to the Teachings, They do view human beings as another kind of animal ...but an animal with Potential to become as They are.

Teaching these "animals" (us) these things **consciously** is what the entire Temple is about from the Nightside and Twilight perspectives.

However, to reiterate, you can trust that you will never be asked to do anything that is self-destructive or against your own best judgment from this Temple or the Leadership of this Temple.

If you ever think that you are asked such things, just don't do them.

We are about survival, not self-defeat - Dayside, Nightside, and Twilight.

Trust yourself.

In time you may come to be able to trust Them as well.

Test Everything. Believe Nothing.

We mean it.

#### If the Undead are real then....

Versited WALE Throughout for the thet Others exist When here also designed a formation of the N	_

You stated, "Also, I know for a fact that that Others exist Who have already done what I want to do. Not entirely sure how They got there yet, but I assure you I know They are there."

I am going to challenge you to consider then why you seem to be unwilling to trust what They have offered.

If you really knew They were real would you still doubt Them?

The following was part of an email reply made to a member:

I can even break this down logically.

They are either trustworthy entirely, somewhat, or not at all, right?

If They are entirely trustworthy then it makes sense to follow the instructions They offer.

If they are somewhat trustworthy or **not** trustworthy at all, and you therefore decide to **not** follow Their instructions, then what difference does that make in your life anyway **long term**?

None. You will then age and die, and either will or will not survive physical death.

I am reminded of Pascal's Wager in which he suggested that accepting Christian salvation had no downside and only a possible upside, and therefore made sense to do.

This is really not different in kind as far as I can see.

The abyss that is crossed by **truly** entering Third Circle is to accept that They are real and can help guide you.

Then because of the nature of perception in our makeup, more **can** become available to support that supposition.

In other words, you can't swim until you get into the water.

On another side of this issue, I commonly see all too many members with a resistance to such things - even as they are willing to seek advice and assistance from others with more experience in this or that topic.

But they are seduced by **scientism** - the belief system that pretends to be science and claims that materialism explains everything - even though this was **proven** to be wrong in physics in the last century more than twenty years ago (Alain Aspect validating Bell's Theorem).

So since they lay claim to the omniscience of Jehovah (or Richard Dawkins), and pretend that they already know everything that is possible or impossible with certainty. They already "know" that Undead Gods cannot exist since they already "know" there are no astral bodies, no out of body experiences, no telepathy, no clairvoyance, etc.

The overwhelming scientific evidence that demonstrates the reality of these things they must ignore and debunk.

However this is not science.

Not even close.

It is the false religion of scientism.

I refer you to only one book to demonstrate these facts: *The End of Materialism* by Charles Tart. I have almost finished reading it myself.

I do intend to write a detailed book review of this remarkable tour de force but the book in and of itself is worth getting, reading, and studying. Tart is a legitimate scientist and early parapsychologist. He knows of what he writes.

We live in a very weird world in this regard. Most people have "paranormal" experiences and therefore these experiences are "normal" and not "paranormal" at all. Yet most people if pressed will not admit to a belief in the possibility of ghosts, ESP, etc. due to the social pressures that have resulted from scientism over the last 100 years or so.

Thus we see people who have to have heart attack, drop dead, be resuscitated, and **then** be willing to admit that after having had an NDE that was more vividly real than anything they **ever** experienced before, that there is more to reality than what science has currently identified.

So the Temple suggests that instead of waiting for a heart attack and hoping to be one of the 20% who tend to have an NDE, that you roll up your sleeves and have an OBE without dying. Do the work required to verify what is what on each level of the Temple.

Be different from the masses who only look for permission from authority figures to decide what they can or cannot accept as real!

So returning to my original thought, just consider that if you honestly know They are real then ask yourself what advantage there is to not trusting Their instructions?

I will add that They are **not** asking you to screw up your Dayside life in any manner that I am aware of. No request that you sell all of your worldly possessions and sit on a hilltop waiting to be rescued by UFOs or Jesus. No cyanide-laced Kool-Aid. No vows of chastity or poverty.

To the contrary, as you well know, our members are asked to pull together serious Dayside plans and to quietly go about testing the Nightside Teachings through steady effort.

Just a thought to consider.

So please understand that this is not a criticism but is a suggestion.

There are **levels** of certainty regarding Their reality. But when you are really sure then you will treat what They suggest differently.

I know because I do and I am pleased to be able to state that most of those in the Priesthood do as well.

# The Threat the Temple Poses

Make no mistake about it! The Temple poses a threat to many people who have a vested interest in seeing you fail at the Temple Mission for your self-empowerment. Your success draws attention to their failures and this unintentional side effect truly bothers them though they really do not even understand why.

On almost every level the Temple offers self-verifiable proof that challenges the self-defeating rationalizations so common to the human herd.

From the Dayside alone, the Temple is a huge threat to the complacent and willful ignorance that allows most people to avoid the unpleasant feeling that they are wasting their lives.

In the Intrapersonal Secrets the Temple offers direct and immediately verifiable methods to strengthen your willpower, to master your emotions, and to enable you to overcome the internal fears, guilt, and frustration that are the norm for the average human being.

This flies in the face of a world in which the plight of the victim is trumpeted as the universal excuse for personal failure. "It's not my fault!" they shout when they see dream after personal dream die before their eyes. "It's somebody else's fault!" is their claim over and over.

The blame game ends in the face of the facts the Temple offers in challenge to such self-crippling assertions. And this challenge to rise to self-mastery and mental strength is a threat the Temple poses to the vast majority who do not want to feel responsible for their failures.

And so they deny it is possible. They deny it can work. And they remain as they are as they sink into obscurity and personal pain.

In the Immortality Secrets the Temple really becomes a terrible threat. As long as people can rely on death as the inevitable escape from their futile and painful lives, all is well. The human herd needs the reassurance that life is sad, painful, and a "veil of tears" which is ended by the "certainty" of their personal death.

Then the Temple comes forward and threatens all of that with two scientifically reasonable ways that the individual can use to defeat death! Requiring no belief in an afterlife, the Temple threatens the comfort zones of both the religious and the atheist.

We unintentionally offend the religious with the simple demonstration that everything desirable in their fantasy heavens is already on the engineering drawing boards for modern evolving technology including physical immortality itself. Futurists with a proven track record like Ray Kurzweil are increasingly agreeing that future technology will essentially bring about a "heaven" on Earth.

We unintentionally offend the atheist by confronting these non-believers in any afterlife with the obvious need for them to take action to survive. This threatens their emotionally-based rejection of life even more than the religious believers since they have even fewer excuses to offer for such suicidal choices.

Thus the Temple unintentionally threatens the emotional defenses of both the believers and non-believers alike!

Then in the Interpersonal Secrets, the Temple threatens the tribal assumptions of most of humanity in that we suggest that learning how to communicate effectively with people can be learned and implemented to remove most of the problems in dealing with other people. The Temple cuts through the morass of human-hating assumptions that people in general use to blame others for their own failed communications.

When the Temple states that learning these skills of communication can get others to cooperate with you willingly instead of having to use threats of power or tricks of deceit, this offends the vast majority of people who daily justify their own ineffective and self-sabotaging use of power and deceit.

We threaten their rationalizations and cause clear light to be shed on their pretenses. In this way the Temple threatens their sense of self which is identified with their fairy tales of self-justification. "People are all just assholes," is quickly lampooned when the Temple offers methods to assist people to offer to help you once you know how to effectively ask for their help.

In the Health Secrets the Temple threatens the numerous belief systems of the masses that you cannot feel good, and live longer than the usual human lifespan while enjoying doing so. To every emotional health fad, the Temple offers a threat by looking to the results that can be obtained without such assumptions.

Thus those who have invested themselves in assuming that this or that diet, medical procedure, exercise regimen, etc., is the final word in the "best possible" health effort are upset by the Temple pointing to the improvements that continue to surface as the technology improves.

In the Money Secrets the Temple threatens the popular need for the masses to justify their ongoing work slavery as inevitable. By clearly showing simple pathways to increasing income, decreasing debt, and attaining financial independence through proven investment methods, the Temple pops the belief balloon that there is no real way to become wealthy.

For the vast majority of people this is not an appealing idea because it challenges the excuses they offer for complaining about "the rich" and the powers of "evil multinational corporations" or "the evils of capitalism". The Temple threatens the safety of blaming personal financial problems on other people and groups by offering a way to solve those problems directly by the individual. For this too we are hated.

Additionally, the Temple is hated for our claims for the Nightside, the paranormal side of reality.

When the Temple states that you can verify for yourself the usefulness of our Nightside claims by following certain procedures this is upsetting to all those who have decided that such things are "impossible".

When the Temple explains that you can test and personally verify the secrets behind the so-called "miracles" of the world religions **without** relying upon any of their belief systems, this is very threatening to the true believers of those religions.

When the Temple offers direct guidance to verify lucid dreaming, the out of body experience, telepathy, clairvoyance, psychokinesis, etc., this threatens the world view of classical materialists - those who

assume that human science basically knows all there really is to know about reality and we only need to finish filling in a few small gaps to have a complete TOE (Theory of Everything).

So when the Temple points out the ever-present occurrence of these paranormal events cross-culturally and throughout recorded history, we are a threat to these "omniscient" materialists who deny that such things **can** exist. When we offer to teach how to test and do them yourself then we are hated by these "true disbelievers".

And when the Temple suggests that there may be Others Who have already accomplished such things and may be in active communication with the Temple, this threatens just about everyone imaginable. It threatens the all-knowing cynic as much as the faith-based religious believer. It threatens the occultnik "ceremonial magician" as much as the dyed-in-the-wool materialist.

When the Temple then suggests that it is possible to verify such communications personally then we galvanize the threat we offer to a world filled with those who have formed deep emotional needs to believe that human beings are at the top of the foods chain and the history of the world they have been taught to believe in is the absolute truth.

The suggestion that the Temple then adds that you, too, can attain to that level of mastery and power is the most threatening of all.

So make no mistake about it. Your participation as a member of the Temple whether only from the Dayside or through the Nightside and Twilight is perceived by most of the world as a threat.

It is a threat to their need to protect their feelings of comfort as they are marching numbly to the slaughterhouse of human mortality.

Remember the threat you pose and do not be quick to assume that the mortal will understand why you are driven with joy and determination to test and prove to yourself the many Temple claims.

Test Everything. Believe Nothing.

For them these words are a threat.

For us it is a guideline to living and loving!

And that is the single thing that truly divides us from them more than any other factor:

We are alive to life and growth.

They are closed.

We are open.

Welcome!

# The so-called "paranormal" does not require belief

You really do not have to believe in the paranormal at all for two reasons.

First, if you choose to operate primarily from the Dayside then the so-called paranormal does not matter anyway. Given enough time and a little luck all of the Temple claims can still be achieved through the Dayside alone.

Second, the paranormal does not require belief. It only requires investigation and a willingness to give up an irrational stance of a fundamentalist true believer of one kind or another.

The evidence for what we today call the paranormal is not small. It is overwhelming.

**All** cultures throughout **all** of recorded history indicate that people have had paranormal experiences throughout.

To pretend that all of this by itself could simply be hallucination, hoax, and self-delusion actually requires faith that billions of people for thousands of years have all been fools or insane or both.

**That** by itself seems to be an extraordinary claim that lacks any meaningful evidence, to paraphrase the late Carl Sagan.

Then we simply need to look at what more modern scientific evidence has offered in looking at these things.

Dean Radin examined through meta-analysis (the same scientific statistical method used to verify that aspirin reduces heart disease) the evidence for the paranormal over the last one hundred years of scientific study and determined it has been proven to exist. This was summarized in his book *The Conscious Universe*.

Finally, despite this accomplishment, the failure of parapsychology to succeed in moving beyond statistical proof to authentic control of such phenomena has been due to some fundamental errors of protocol. Scientists have been guilty of asking the wrong kinds of questions to advance scientific understanding of the paranormal. This issue is described in depth in Lawrence LeShan's book *The World of the Paranormal: The Next Frontier*.

Frankly, and this is stated without rancor but as simple fact, anyone who actually assumes that the paranormal requires belief has simply not looked at the evidence and proofs that demonstrate that it is most assuredly very real.

So you do not need to believe in the paranormal at all. You need to "Believe Nothing, Test Everything", and the testing in this case can be as simple as investigating the documented evidence I have mentioned here.

# **About the Nightside...**

New members are sometimes a little confused about how we handle Nightside topics in the Dayside forums on the Lifeforce message board.

The Nightside refers to all of the so-called "paranormal" experiences that are not yet scientifically proven in the normal sense of that word.

For example, lucid dreaming is actually a Dayside topic because the ability to be conscious in a dream has been proven to be real in scientific experiments in which dreamers have been able to communicate with the waking world through coded eye movement signaling.

On the other hand, despite thousands of years of evidence, the out of body experience (OBE) has not yet acquired a clear scientific acceptance as an objective event in reality.

Frankly, there are some very gray areas in which this can be argued pro and con.

For example, the same statistical method (meta-analysis) for proving that aspirin can reduce the incidence of heart disease when applied to research studies of psychic phenomena results in also proving that telepathy, clairvoyance, precognition, psychokinesis, etc. are real. Dean Radin's book *The Conscious Universe* summarizes these proofs.

However, what we have done here on the message board is to generally view those experiences which mainstream science still views as unproven as "Nightside", as opposed to what is viewed by mainstream science as proven as "Dayside".

Additionally, as research results continue to come in, what may be considered Nightside today may very well become Dayside tomorrow.

Because we have members in the Dayside forums who have not personally verified to their own satisfaction elements of the Nightside, we work there from the "lowest common denominator" of agreement about what is "real".

In other words, in the non-Graded forums, we are careful to not treat Nightside topics as proven out of respect for those members who have not proven them!

This creates a very wonderful degree of mindful tension in our discussions here in the Dayside forums.

Just as **outside** the Temple we have to daily deal with people who do not have a clue about many things that are handled neatly in the Temple (such as the many Dayside secrets we are aware of to better our lives, extend our lives, and even beat death), **inside** the Temple in the Dayside forums we need to deal with each other with respect to the varying level of validation each member possesses.

For Graded members who have validated different aspects of the Nightside, we try to remember to not assume that others in the Dayside forums have the same understanding.

Likewise, Dayside Vampires who may be entirely skeptical with regard to psychic phenomena also strive to remember that there are Graded Vampires posting in the Dayside forums who have personally gone beyond skepticism on many such topics.

Everyone comes here with a different background, a different history, and a different set of assumptions about what is real with regard to the Nightside.

For example, you will find that we have members who not only treat psychic phenomena as real but have been engaged in doing so professionally and publicly for many years. As I have tried to explain to some of my non-Temple friends over the years who are adamant in their certainty that all psychic phenomena is "bunk", I have a problem with that view since I personally **know** better.

Here is a specific example that comes to mind: the OBE. Those of us who have had fully conscious out of body experiences and while in that condition acquired validating information that demonstrated the event was real are not going to be swayed by the skepticism of anyone else. If you have been to New York City you will not be swayed by arguments of those who claim that there is no such place!

At the same time, it would be discourteous for those of us who have had validated OBEs to not treat with respect the skepticism of other members who have **not** had such experiences.

In the Dayside forums we perform this balancing act with regard to such things out of respect for each other. Dayside Vampires are asked to not assume that unproven phenomena are "impossible" and Graded Vampires are asked to remember that in the Dayside forums there are other members who have skepticism regarding the existence of such things.

Reality is what it is.

Because this fundamental is true, keeping this truth in mind removes the need to **require** anyone else to ever agree with our own views on this or that.

The Dayside Vampire does not need to defend his skepticism and the Graded Vampire does not need to defend his validations.

Because everything we do in this Temple revolves not around what can be proven as "true" but, instead, about what can be proven as **useful** there is never a need for argument.

I hope this helps clarify how and why we handle the discussion of Nightside topics in the way that we do.

#### Faith in Materialism - a superstition.

There is a common dodge by some "scientists" to assume that if they can offer any kind of explanation for what happens physically then this "explains" such things as the out of body experience, for example.

Michael Persinger, a medical researcher in Canada, applies pulsing magnetic fields to certain parts of the brain, a volunteer has an out of body experience or perceives "aliens" in the room, and then Persinger says that this "proves" it was all a hallucination.

It proves nothing of the sort.

It only demonstrates that sometimes using pulsed magnetic fields you can induce an out of body experience or the experience of perceiving "aliens" in the same room with you.

Persinger does not even consider the possibility that his magnetic fields might be enabling the brain to perceive and do things that otherwise it does not seem to do.

He assumes there is no astral body that could leave the physical body and so he is looking only for what could cause these "hallucinations".

He assumes that there is no one else in the room that the subject reports because Persinger does not see anyone else.

Perhaps Persinger should consider that the subject is now capable of seeing things that Persinger is still blind to!

It is quite sad to see these otherwise intelligent researchers ignore reports from their subjects when they acquire information they "should" not know while having an out of body experience!

But, over and over again, people do exactly that! They continue to have out of body experiences commonly in life threatening situations (such as the near death experience or NDE) and report back information they acquired while away from the body which is then verified as correct.

For the Vampire it is necessary to remember that the ignorant superstitious belief in classical materialism (disproven by physics for more than a century now) is common and stubbornly maintained by many scientists in other fields.

They should really know better but long held beliefs are difficult for the average person to challenge and break free from - especially when all of your peers still seem to view any other perspective as heresy.

The Vampire must recognize that these "authorities" have their own deeply held prejudices just as one would expect from members of a fundamentalist Christian church when confronted with evidence for evolution.

"Materialism" is a faith that has been disproven by science.

This is important to remember since we are still surrounded by "scientists" who are true believers in that faith!

Test Everything. Believe Nothing.

Especially do not simply believe what the priests of a disproven religion tell you is true or false.

Look at the actual evidence and make your own judgments.

Do not just believe what you are told by anyone.

Even so-called "scientists".

# Avoid literalism. Gain perspective.

It is, in my opinion, critical to remember that most of what has been published in the first two volumes of Bloodlines came from articles here in Lifeforce, first prior to the message board and then since then.

Some of these are most definitely Nightside and need to not be taken literally, but metaphorically.

All too often I have seen members read Nightside and Twilight material and then confuse it with the Dayside.

Let me compare this to the Christian Bible for a moment to make this quite clear. In that Bible there are stories of how God created the world in five days, made Adam out of clay, Moses parted the Red Sea, and so forth.

Christians today who take these stories as literally true are called fundamentalists. They actually believe the stories exactly as written. They assume the world is about 6,000 years old and Moses did part the Red Sea, and so forth.

The Temple has its stories as well but the difference is that you are told explicitly to **not** believe in these, and that there **is** metaphor involved.

Metaphor is instructive on both conscious and unconscious levels and, as such, is an important tool used by the Temple to help effect Vampiric Metamorphosis.

However, be careful to not become a "fundamentalist Vampire" by simply assuming that the stories are all literal facts.

When we enter ritual Communion we set aside our doubts and disbeliefs. When we enter into the narratives of the Temple's speculations on history, for example, we do much the same. We set aside doubts and disbeliefs to discover what taking that viewpoint does for us, how we can use it.

From the Dayside perspective, the Nightside is quite impossible. From the Nightside perspective, the Dayside is quite blind.

To be able to hold these two views sequentially as needed does indeed set up a tension between them. Just as friction can create fire, this internal friction can cause a Fire from within.

The danger is to decide that only one or the other is correct. Being either a literalist with regard to the Dayside or Nightside is inadequate to account for the facts of reality.

The parallel example I like best is that of the question, "Is a photon a particle or a wave?" And the only honest answer is that it depends upon how you look at it. Observing the photon in a particular way either reveals it to be a particle or a wave, but never both.

Yet this is "impossible" though it is also true.

The Temple recognizes that the common sense view of reality common to humankind at this time is equally inadequate to describe reality as it is.

In one form of Zen there is the use of the *koan*, a seemingly impossible puzzle which the student is asked to contemplate the find the answer. A classic example of a koan is "What is the sound of one hand clapping?" The purpose of the koan is to move the mind to a perspective of reality that can encompass seeming paradoxes.

In some Sufi teachings, stories are told that undercut normal thinking as well. The Nasrudin stories, often told as jokes, are examples of this such as the time Nasrudin was looking under a lampost for his lost keys even though he dropped them far away "because it is easier to look where the light is."

Similarly, we have been given many insights into speculative history to weave together a different sense of the world and to detect what would otherwise remain unseen. However, without a reliable time machine to go back and check I wish to remind everyone here that history is still **his** story. It may not be **our** story. And you should be careful to not assume that it alone is **the** story!

Is everything written in the Bloodlines volumes true? Yes **and** no depending upon **your** current perspective!

It is what They have related to us. However if you do not yet even know Them, how can you know that these things did happen?

Instead, from the Dayside it is wise to not assume these things are not accurate, and from the Nightside it is useful to assume that these things **are** accurate.

By holding both of these views, Dayside and Nightside, we can then benefit from the wider intent in Their telling us of them.

They become useful.

Enjoy and benefit!

P.S. I have, myself, found these to be quite accurate indeed. But to determine that for yourself is not a matter of simple belief. It will require looking for the clues as well as coming to know that Their guidance is reliable from personal experience.

# You are unique!

You who are reading these words are among a very few in this world.
You have chosen to rise above the weaknesses of mortal humanity.
You have chosen to reject poverty, disease, stupidity, and death.
You have chosen to embrace wealth, health, intelligence, and immortality.
You have chosen to openly examine the rare, the unusual, and the forbidden.
You are among the very few who are attracted to the Night, and feel the promise of Power that resides there.
You are among the very few who can resist the siren song of death and despair.
You are unique.
You are Vampire.
Be proud.

# Are You a Vampire?

You may have wondered about this.

Is it possible that you could be a Vampire and be unaware of this fact?

This is not a silly question to ask. It is, in fact, an important one.

The Temple claims that if you follow the instructions in *The Vampire Bible* you can discover if you are, indeed, a Vampire.

The wonderful thing about the Temple is that you do not have to believe any of our Nightside claims.

However if you are willing to put our claims to the test you will discover they are true.

That is why we openly publish *The Vampire Bible* and offer its initial instructions.

When someone is serious enough to purchase this basic book and mature enough to follow the instructions then we know they will obtain results.

We have many, many members who have applied this simple guideline to discover that what the Temple offers is true and valid.

Every other religion in the world requires that you "just believe" their claims.

All of Christianity requires that you just have faith and believe. So too does Judaism and Islam.

Even the Buddhists expect you to believe that the Buddha had it right when he stated that "life is suffering".

The Temple does not require that you believe any of our claims.

Instead we ask you to do something amazingly different.

We ask you to test our claims.

When you, yourself, test and verify the Temple's claims then you will have proof - not just hope.

We are confident that if you set aside your fears and disbelief just long enough to actually follow the instructions in The Vampire Bible, then you will discover what so many others have learned.

It works.

It is true.

# The Dayside Vampire

"Believe Nothing."

This is the other half of the Temple motto.

Commonly candidates for Temple membership will assume that they must accept the reality of magic, the paranormal, the reality of Lifeforce, the reality of the Undead Gods.

This is simply not true!

The Temple never requires any member to believe anything at all.

This is not a religion based on belief whatsoever.

This is a religion based on the pragmatic, selfish mastery and enjoyment of life as it is.

We do not view money as "the root of all evil". If anything we view poverty as "the root of all evil".

We do not view death as a release from this earthly "veil of tears". Instead we view good health and the effort to achieve unlimited physical life extension (immortality) as desirable.

We do not view humility as a virtue, but as a personality defect. Instead we view honest self-confidence based upon proven skills to be right and good.

We do not view the purpose of life to be to live for others. To the contrary, we cherish the purpose of life to serve the individual.

We do not counsel pacifism and "turning the other cheek". Instead we advocate acquiring legal self-defense skills and the punishment of criminal activity by the law.

It is entirely possible to enter the Temple as a Dayside Vampire who does not believe in any of the Nightside aspects such as magic, Lifeforce Vampirism, out of body experiences, the Undead Gods, or any other part of the so-called paranormal.

Those who wish to test the Nightside claims of the Temple are free to do so, and this is why we have separate forums for Graded efforts with regard to these topics.

However, every one of the Temple claims with regard to personal power and triumph can be achieved in time as a Dayside Vampire alone!

"Test Everything. Believe Nothing."

We really mean it.

# On Testing the Nightside.

Authorized copies of *The Vampire Bible* cover the basic Nightside instructions for the Temple membership.

The **only** reason we do not discuss the Nightside in the Dayside forums is to prevent **any** member from accepting on faith anything the Temple teaches.

We want you to test the Nightside.

To do so carries the rewards of discovery and knowledge.

We tried to have an open, free-for-all discussion of such things when the message board first opened but due to the frustrations created between those who had validated Nightside issues and those who had not yet done so, we finally separated the various levels of validation by Grade.

That has worked fairly well overall.

In the Dayside forums, Nightside essays (like this one) are permitted but we still do not wish to see Nightside questions and answers posted here, just essays.

With that understanding, allow me on this Vernal Equinox when the day is in balance with the night, to discuss something that is critical for all Temple members to understand about testing the Nightside.

Test Everything. Believe Nothing.

This is the Temple's motto for many years now.

It serves us well.

When you purchased *The Vampire Bible* you purchased an instruction manual and a succinct world view that we refer to as the Nightside.

An instruction manual is useless if you do not actually follow the instructions, of course.

The Vampire Bible explains exactly what to do to practice Vampirism and to contact the Undead Gods.

It deals with how to test and validate the Nightside of Vampirism.

But have you really been testing the Nightside?

This is the question I want you to consider.

For example, if you do not **know** that you can draw the Lifeforce from a human being, then you still need to test this.

The instructions for doing so are already in your hands.

Now if you are not yet **certain** that Lifeforce is real and that you can draw it into you, how often have you tried to do this?

Do you attempt it at least once a day?

Did you attempt Vampirism at least daily for a week?

For a month?

Exactly what have you done to actually test Lifeforce Vampirism?

And how about the Ritual Calling of the Undead Gods, Communion?

If you have not performed this ritual then you have not begun to test it.

If you have performed it, how many times have you done so?

Did you ever try doing the ritual daily for a week?

For a month?

Believe Nothing.

When you attempt Lifeforce Vampirism do you really try to do it?

Or do you halfheartedly go through the motions while assuming you are kidding yourself?

When you Call the Undead do you really try to Call Them?

Or do you stand there following the outlined steps while assuming that you are just fooling yourself?

Do you realize that if you are coming to these Nightside activities with the assumption that these things are "impossible" then you are choosing to **believe** that they are impossible?

That is not "testing".

That is **believing** these things are "impossible"!

Do you get that?

Do you understand that as long as you choose to believe that such things cannot be, that you are not truly testing them at all?

Look at this from the other perspective.

Suppose for just a moment that the Nightside of the Temple is exactly correct.

Suppose for a moment that Lifeforce is real.

Suppose that Vampirism is real.

Suppose that the out of body experience is real.

Suppose that there are Others Who discovered this long ago and were able to master these realities.

Suppose that mastery of these realities allowed Them to live on long beyond the normal human lifespan.

Suppose that **you** were one of Them.

Now you become aware of a Temple member halfheartedly going through the motions of the ritual Calling.

You are completely aware of the fact that this member does not think for a moment that you could exist.

How inclined would you be to remove their ignorance?

How much does even the most avid teacher want to work with a student who is uninterested in learning but clearly demonstrates by their actions that they think they already know everything?

How to stop standing in your own way.

The Temple motto spells it out clearly and simply.

"Test Everything. Believe Nothing."

If you come to test the Nightside but already believe that Lifeforce doesn't exist, that Vampirism doesn't exist, that Communion is only talking to yourself, then you are full of beliefs that will stand in your way.

Your expectations are part of the testing.

You cannot test the Nightside as an objective, uninvolved observer.

Lifeforce is mindstuff.

It follows your mind.

If you assume Lifeforce does not exist then you will first tend to "explain away" any perceptions or other evidence of it as something else.

That is fine if you are trying to only operate in the Dayside, but it effectively cuts you off from testing the Nightside.

If you assume that you cannot draw Lifeforce from a human being into your own body, then this will

effectively stop it from happening.

If you assume that there are no Undead Gods then you will succeed in having nothing happen in Communion.

Disbelief is believing that something doesn't exit.

Holding disbeliefs is not "Believe Nothing".

**Suspending** disbelief, **really** suspending disbelief is a necessary **prerequisite** to opening the door to testing the Nightside.

I see a lot of "magicians" come to the Temple who claim they already know how to suspend their doubts in ritual.

It is pretty easy to discover who really can do that and who can't.

Those who can get results.

Those who are still fooling themselves **don't.** 

You touch a cashier's hand at a store to collect your change from a purchase while Drawing in Lifeforce.

If you attend to what you feel and **don't** think "This is nonsense", you are beginning testing.

If you do this every time you touch a human being for a week and every time you do this you can feel the flow of Life Energy move up through your hand and arm into your body then you are testing and gathering knowledge about this Nightside act.

If you go into a darkened room to Call to Those Who Live but keep thinking, "This is stupid. I'm just standing by myself in an empty room", you are really testing how strong your assumption that this is "stupid" is you.

If you go into the same room and merely wonder, "What if They really could be here?" and proceed with that expectation, then you are really testing Communion.

How serious are you?

The Nightside of the Temple makes a wide range of claims and promises.

If you thought these could possibly be real, how serious would your commitment be to testing them?

How often have you **really** attempted Lifeforce Vampirism in the last day? The last week? The last month?

How often have you **really** performed Communion this month?

Once?
Twice?
You can gauge for yourself how serious you are about testing the Nightside by honestly answering these questions for yourself.
Want to prove that Lifeforce and Vampirism are real?
If you <b>really</b> do, then try it without disbelief <b>every time</b> you encounter a human being.
Do this for a week.
You'll know.
Want to validate the reality of Communion with the Undead?
If you seriously want to do this, do it daily for at least one month.
But really leave your certainties that it is "impossible" at the door of the ritual chamber.
Really test these things.
Conclusions and suggestions You can fool yourself.
You can trick yourself to expect failure and get it.
You can trick yourself into not recognizing what you are actually experiencing.
You can fool yourself into thinking that you are testing the Nightside when you are not doing any such thing.
You can con yourself into proving the common (human) views are correct and the Temple Teachings wrong.
You can hypnotize yourself into not seeing what you see, hearing what you hear, feeling what you feel, and knowing what you know.
This is the <b>normal</b> condition of humankind: blind, deaf and dumb to the realities all around them.
How can you avoid this?
How can you uncover the treasure that lies waiting directly before you?
Simple.

Test Everything.
Really test it.
Drop your assumptions and <b>really</b> test it.
Dedicate yourself to performing Lifeforce Vampirism every time you encounter a human being.
Discover what is so.
Dedicate yourself to performing Communion daily if possible.
Discover what is so.
You are surrounded by a tissue of lies built upon the beliefs of those who are your inferiors.
Rise to your own correct and proper level. Balance the Day with the Night.
The rewards are waiting for you.
Do it now.

# Yes. Stop thinking that way.

What if I call the Undead Gods and I don't have enough Lifeforce to offer them during Ritual? Does this offend Them?

I will answer your questions with a question.

What have you got to lose?

You stand like a condemned man on a scaffold with a noose around your neck.

At any moment the trap door beneath your feet could drop open and you will die.

So what have you got to lose?

You want to test and validate these things.

For example, once you have satisfied yourself that Lifeforce is real you do not have to keep on proving it to yourself, over and over.

Once you validate Vampirism as real, **really** validate it for yourself, then that job is done, isn't it?

Once you validate that the out of body experience is real even if you only do it one time, then you now **know** that the OBE is real, right?

Once you validate **even just once** that Communion is real and not just your imagination, that issue is finished as well.

It only takes one white crow to **prove** that all crows are not black!

Once you know something - not merely believe it, but have **validated** it - then you have knowledge of that fact.

At that point six billion Richard Dawkins or Amazing Randis can rise from their television thrones and shout that there is no such things as Lifeforce, or Vampires, or out of body experiences, or Those Who have mastered such things, and you will hear their words and laugh at their blindness.

How is this possible?

Because you will know.

That is the bedrock upon which this Temple is built.

Not monkey politics, peer pressure, popular assumptions, or blind faith.

Fact, not fiction.

Truth, not fantasy.

Self-verifiable experience, not words.

As you prove to yourself that elements of the Nightside are real, then they become elements of **your** Dayside.

It is just that simple.

#### You have to find out for yourself.

I regularly have members approach me by email, PMs, and in person and ask me questions like:

"Is Lifeforce really real?"

"Seriously, is Vampirism real?"

"Are the Undead Gods actually real?"

If I simply say, "Yes", then I am not merely offering my opinion. That is asking them to believe me.

That is pointless.

The **only** way you can "know what you know" is to **prove it to yourself**.

The human world is filled with religions that will tell you to believe what they tell you.

We don't.

This is "Adult Swim".

We expect all members to get into the water and do what is necessary to learn how to swim themselves.

Anything less than that really is just piling on another level of untested beliefs.

We operate from **knowledge** not mere assumption.

To get that knowledge **requires** that the member actually test the Teachings - not just play logic games.

To get that knowledge **requires** feeling uncomfortable with your former untested beliefs - not just looking to the opinions of authority figures.

To get that knowledge **requires** that you realize that you **don't** already know it!

Monkey politics (dominance games) run deep out there, outside the Temple walls.

Humans talk, talk, talk about their beliefs and assumptions all the time.

They fight with each other over this nonsense all the time.

From simple verbal disagreements to outright wars, humans waste their time arguing for why they "must" be right and commonly choose to be **dead** right and buried six feet than to set aside their false certainties to discover what is actually so.

Even in the face of **enormous** factual evidence that their beliefs are off base or just plain screwy.

For example, just take the out of body experience (OBE).

In its most common modern form, the near death experience (NDE), we know that millions of people who "died" have been restored to life and they all tell essentially the same story that went on even when their brain was flatlining.

They describe, over and over, a classic OBE.

They commonly report information they obtained from that OBE that they should not have known about unless they were actually having an OBE.

This is not just a small amount of evidence.

This is a Mount Everest and Himalayan Mountain chain of evidence that is as easy to ignore as an elephant standing on your foot!

Yet the OBE is dismissed out-of-hand by most "scientists" as mere hallucination without their even reading anything about the detailed evidence that it is most real and increasingly common.

But all of this hubris does not have to affect the Temple member if the member will not base his validations of the Temple Teachings on authority figures but, instead, roll up his sleeves, get to work, and get the experiences for himself!

So when I get these questions such as "Do the Undead Gods have physical bodies or not?" I **know** I am **not** answering the question by offering a direct answer.

The only valid and useful answer always is:

You have to find out for yourself!

Anything less is pointless.

# Your body is a machine.

Vistas of immortality open when this is understood.

From the Dayside, if you view your physical body as a machine then it becomes easy to understand that with adequate understanding and tools any machine can be kept running indefinitely.

Aubrey de Grey, the Cambridge gerontologist and founder of the SENS Project for defeating human aging, has explained this very well using classic cars as an example. Cars that are 100 years old can be kept up "as new" because as parts wear out or break down they are replaced.

What we are seeing happening already today is the same thing with human body parts such as liver, kidney, skin, heart, eye, larynx, etc. Your own body organs are now able to be grown in the lab and transplanted into your body with zero rejection issues.

The brain is a machine also.

Whether the brain generates the mind and stores memories or is only a receiver to "play" the mind and access memories from "elsewhere" is not important to this issue. It remains a machine.

If we could duplicate your brain molecule-for-molecule like a three-dimensional snapshot and place it into a clone of your body, when your clone would awaken "he" would be as much "you" as "you" are "you" right now.

Your so-called "identity" is actually a mental process of **identification**. It is a process and not a thing.

The essential point to understand is that several different scientific approaches (such as molecular nanotechnology) are expected to eventually enable us to do just this - duplicate your entire body molecule-for-molecule.

This will first tend to happen as a repair mechanism to restore your body to prime health as an ongoing part of living. Tiny nanobots will cruise through your blood and lymph systems killing infections while repairing damage. The outcome will be eternal youth.

Then the capability of storing the "plans" for recreating your body will become a standard "back-up" feature as computing power continues to increase to greater and greater levels.

It is critical to grasp that nothing I have described here requires **any** new discoveries and that the evidence of research points to these things inevitably coming to pass very soon.

Sometimes when I suggest these things members will ask me, "But what about the astral body?"

What is incredibly amusing and satisfying about this is that the question answers itself.

If you grant for discussion purposes that the astral body is real (as explained in *The Vampire Bible*) then you need only recognize that it obviously interfaces with your physical body (including your brain) right now.

If we maintain the physical, the astral will obviously maintain its interface.

What is there is a complete break in time, however?

What if your physical body were utterly destroyed in an airline crash or explosion of some kind? And then fifty years later we duplicated your body and brain from a data back up? The question arises will your astral body "return" to occupy it?

Of course the only way to really know this is when it might happen, but interestingly enough it would seem that there is fairly strong anecdotal evidence to support at least the potential ongoing survival of the astral body...if the person following death pursues the practice of Vampirism (thus avoiding the Second Death).

However, let us suppose that you failed to do this (Tsk! Tsk!) and your astral body disintegrated in a Second Death following physical death.

So what would happen then?

To answer this question regarding a possible future, you need only examine your own past.

How did you acquire an astral body in the first place?

It was seemingly generated by the physical body.

Whether this preceded conception or not is irrelevant. (Those who cling to reincarnation ideas should realize that reincarnation does not really answer this question, but only puts it off).

In any case, since your physical body generated an astral body once before, it seems entirely plausible to assume that your physical body could do so again.

However all of this still is irrelevant to the issue of would it be "you" who woke up in the new body.

It would **have** to be you.

The memories are yours, not someone else's.

Whether we place the mechanism for self-awareness in the physical or the astral, we do know that it is working **now** (of you would not know right now that you are you!).

And since it is working through a machine, whether than machine is physical or astral or both, it is working. Any machine can be repaired and maintained indefinitely.

Immortality is not a pipe dream. It is entirely feasible.

I hope this little discussion helps you better understand why.

# Tests you can perform.

The subtle seduction of the belief in reincarnation as **your** survival can be demonstrated to be false through some tests you can make.

I would encourage **actually doing** these tests to move out of mere thoughts about this critical issue to **emotionally charged experiences** that will then remove this trap from your mind effectively and forever.

#### Test Number One.

Go talk with a patient with advanced Alzheimer's (senile dementia).

Nursing homes are filled with these tragic cases.

As you talk to the victim of memory loss ask yourself how important is memory to identity.

#### **Test Number Two**

Then see if you can talk to any family and friends who knew this patient **before** they lost their memories.

Be prepared to see them emotionally break down due to the impact of the "loss" of the patient.

Ask yourself how the grief that you see is different from the grief of someone discussing someone who is dead.

#### **Test Number Three**

Quietly look in on a patient who is in a coma, a "human vegetable".

As you look at that body lying there unconscious ask yourself how important being able to remember memories are to being who you are.

#### **Test Number Four**

See a newborn baby.

Cute as it may be (or just loud) consider if reincarnation is "real" just how much this infant retains of the person who "lived before".

If you ask the infant what its name was, does it even understand your words?

#### **Test Number Five**

While in the presence of a newborn, ask yourself another important question.

If you were convicted of a crime and your punishment was to have your memories and mind reduced to that of the newborn you see, how would you feel about that?

Let me expand on this test.

If, right now, you were to have a stroke and the resulting brain damage reduced you to the same mental level as a newborn baby, would you truly assume that "you" survived?

Think about this one very carefully because this is <u>exactly</u> what reincarnation is like:

#### Reincarnation:

- 1) You die.
- 2) A baby without your memories is born.

#### Simple Materialistic Death:

- 1) You die.
- 2) Others live, others are born, others die.

From the perspective of any individual, you can see that reincarnation is, at best, your complete destruction.

You are your memories.

Lose those and you lose "you".

**Others** may possess "simple awareness" (consciousness) but if you do not know who you are, you cease to be.

Perform these test and you will come to understand this.

Reincarnation = personal death.

Your memories + simple awareness = "you".

Remove your memories and/or simple awareness and "you" are not there.

The only survival that makes sense **must** include "you" and that **requires** the survival of your memories.

#### Street Smarts, Disinformation, and UFOs.

"Street Smarts: Practical wisdom that allows a person to be successful."

-Webster's Dictionary.

The Vampire seeks to obtain and maintain "street smarts".

One excellent rule of thumb for determining if something is true about the world is to understand that there are active forces involved in keeping most people "street dumb".

By keeping most people "street dumb" they are easily fooled into believing certain ideas and behaving in certain ways.

So if the majority of people believe that something is true, a street smart individual will immediately question that belief and attempt to discover what the evidence is regarding that belief.

The moment you hear the phrase "Everybody knows..." then alarm bells should go off in your street smart mind.

Disinformation is intentional and deliberate lying which is intended to make people street dumb.

An example of worldwide disinformation in action is the UFO phenomena.

In 1947, "flying saucers" began to be reported worldwide and by 1952 radar-reflecting UFOs besieged Washington DC twice within a week, witnessed by thousands.

The first official investigation released by the US government regarding these worldwide events was in 1955 in the form of "Project Blue Book Special Report 14".

Of the investigated 3,201 sightings in the report 21.5% were "unknown" and an additional 9.3% had "insufficient information", amounting to a total of 30.8% of the sightings.

So just shy of one third of all the sightings were unexplainable.

However, the disinformation came with the press release statement that accompanied the actual report in which Donald B Quarles, the Secretary of the US Air Force stated, "Even the Unknown 3 percent could have been identified as conventional phenomena or illusions if more observational data had been available."

Quarles' lie changed 30.8% down to a "mere" 3%.

Further the claim without any evidence to support it that that fictional "3%" could be explained with simply more effort was the "padding" commonly used with disinformation to steer the lie correctly.

The street smart Vampire would note the lie and then remember that this was made for a purpose.

The street dumb public would simply ignore the evidence of their own senses and assume that there was no evidence.

Further examples of disinformation drawn from this first government report on UFO's are easy to spot.

Authority figures in science then made pronouncements about how most UFO's were reported by crackpots.

The Report indicated that 1.5% of the sightings could be attributed to "psychological manifestations".

1.5% is not a majority. It is a very tiny minority. Even less than the 3% lie offered in place of the 30.8% figure for unidentified sightings.

In this way disinformation offers the truth (buried in the 965 pages of a detailed report) but then offers the quick and easy verbal summary in a press release that controls minds of the street dumb public.

Precisely the same disinformation technique was used in the next authority-sponsored UFO investigation called the Condon Report, named after Dr. Edward U. Condon, a professor of physics at the University of Colorado in Boulder who directed the investigation.

In a August 9, 1966 memo from Robert J.Low, an assistant dean at the U. of Colorado, he wrote:

"Our study would be conducted almost entirely by nonbelievers, who, although they couldn't possibly prove a negative result, could and probably would add an impressive body of thick evidence that there is no reality to the observations. The trick would be, I think, to describe the project so that to the public, it would appear a totally objective study, but to the scientific community would present the image of a group of nonbelievers trying their best to be objective, but having an almost zero expectation of finding a saucer..."

And it worked just fine.

The press coverage repeated the press release given by Condon which denied there was any evidence while the guts of the report showed that 30% of the 117 cases were "unknown".

So then a cadre of scientists and, of course, the public at large for the greater part of fifty years swallowed whole the successful disinformation spin on those two authority-sponsored reports.

I have offered these two examples of the UFO phenomena because here is a worldwide visual phenomena which leaves physical traces (you didn't know that?), that has been tracked on radar, has shut down and destroyed pursuing military jets when fired upon, sabotaged hardened ICBM missile sites in both the US and former Soviet Union, and yet has been a source of popular ridicule for anyone pointing to these facts.

As a Vampire you wish to see behind the veil of lies that are used to manipulate the masses.

It may not be important that you accept that at least some UFOs are as real as rocks, but it is critical that you see through and reject the numerous other beliefs that, left unchallenged, can block your path to personal power and even survival.

Being street smart leads toward personal success.

You want to be able to reject the assumptions of the street dumb masses and rise to rule your own world.

As Harry Browne put it in the title of his best-selling 1973 book, you want to know "how to find freedom in an unfree world".

How can you become more street smart?

It is simple.

Test Everything.

Believe Nothing.

#### You Are Elite.

We are elitist for good reason...

You who are reading this now are elite.

What does it mean to be elite?

I rather like the treatment of "elite" in Wikipedia:

"Elite (occasionally spelled Élite) is taken originally from the Latin, eligere, "to elect". In sociology as in general usage, the elite is a relatively small dominant group within a large society, which enjoys a privileged status envied by individuals of lower social status."

"The position of an elite at the top of the social strata almost invariably puts it in a position of leadership and often subjects the holders of elite status to pressure to maintain their position as part of the elite. However, in spite of the pressures, the existence of the elite social stratum is usually unchanged."

So what makes you, as a Temple member, elite?

Several things all of which you had to pass through to be reading these words.

First, you cannot be elite if your thinking is completely concerned with "fitting in" with the viewpoints of the majority.

Most people are terrified to not be accepted by their peers in the common culture. They do not want to be identified as "odd" or a "misfit".

When you ask people "If you could physically live forever in a young and healthy body, would you want to?" you will swiftly learn that the vast, vast majority will tell you "NO!"

However the reasons they will give simply do not make sense. And the reason they do not make sense is because the real reason, the reason they might not even consciously recognize as the real reason is **always** the same.

That reason is that if they chose to live forever in a youthful body this would not be acceptable to the majority of other people!

To be blunt, whether he realizes it or not, the average person will choose death before choosing possible peer rejection every time.

Today another 147,000 deaths will prove once again that what I have just written is absolutely correct.

Today, as yesterday, another 147,000 human beings will die and be buried or cremated rather than take a chance of being restored to life in the future **because** "what would other people think if I did?"

I am not exaggerating about this at all.

So simply having purchased *The Vampire Bible* which speaks directly of our traditional (Nightside) means to defeat death, simply reading what is written on the public Temple website and ending up being able to read these words places you in an elite of a few thousand who are willing to say to death "No!"

The humans who continue to embrace mortality as "good" betray their secret (and often to their minds somewhat sinful) desire to be physically immortal.

They betray it most obviously today in their love of the Hollywood vampire image.

The full history of the Vampire can be pieced together from a careful examination of the oldest religious records from Sumer and Egypt, when Gods ruled men openly, and those who died would Rise again to take Lifeforce from the living priesthood and the masses who sacrificed in the Temples.

However, after the withdrawal from the eyes of men, the image of the vampire became one of the tottering corpse that would drink physical blood. A very disgusting image that horrified and degraded the image.

Since at least the early 1900s, the popular image of the vampire has been evolving from the Dark Ages walking corpse into a romantic figure who possesses once again many god-like qualities such as strength, speed, invulnerability, youthful appearance, but, most of all, immortality.

It is this fundamental trait that trumps all others in the return of the defining of the Vampire back toward the nature of the original Gods.

Thus the mortal human being continues to be drawn to the seduction of the Vampire, because what he secretly wishes for is to defeat death, to live on and on, enjoying the pleasures of life.

However, the deathist religions of the world today condemn this wish. Only God can choose who will live or die. Only God can decide who is worthy of any joys in life.

And so the human crawls on his knees before the God Who would deny him survival or pleasure, and hopes (though it is sinful to do so) that he will be spared.

The literalist versions of Christianity that won out over the Gnostic versions did so because they offered eternal life on the cheap. Let Jesus take the fall for your unworthiness by acknowledging his sacrifice and then you will live forever ...in heaven.

The problem remained that while this beat dying and going to Hell for eternity, it really does not satisfy the deeper desire to live forever **here and now** in **this** world.

I think it was Woody Allen who, when asked if he didn't want to live on after death, said he would prefer to live on in his apartment!

And this is the hidden, deeper sin that infects the average person.

Deep down inside they do want to skip dying. They do want to live forever, healthy and happy right here, thank you.

They would rather die.
And they do die.
But you are here.
You are considering these ideas.
You are daring to think about them.
And you may already be taking actions to do something about them.
This makes you elite.
You might notice how each one of the Six Earthly Secrets define you as elite for studying and then applying them.
You are willing to consider how to better communicate with people to get what you want.
You are willing to learn how to better control yourself to enable you to enjoy life more and break free of senseless constraints on that enjoyment.
You are willing to study proven simple methods to protect yourself from dying in dangerous situations.
You are willing to challenge the accepted beliefs about health and strive to apply cutting edge research to protecting it.
You are open to learning how to control money and make it work for you instead of you just working and slaving away for it.
You desire more from life than "just getting by".
You acknowledge that your desires are good and that you see nothing wrong in seeking to attain them.
You are even willing to push aside the taboos that would attempt to prevent you from exploring and proving to yourself that you can possess god-like powers yourself.
You are willing to consider that there may be a true Ruling Elite working from "behind the scenes" of this human drama and dare to aspire to become One of Them.
Any of these things makes you truly elite.
Why?
Because you are Vampire.

However, to fail to conform to the agreed-upon general morality of their peers is too frightening for them to be able to actually think about.

I bow before You!

And they, poor lost souls, do bow before Us.

If not before death then upon death.

You are Elite.

## A Warning to Muggle Magicians

Magic as the word is used here in the Temple describes a technology intended to produce real results in the real world that cannot yet be explained by science.

We reserve its discussion and development to the Nightside Graded forums to avoid confusing those who have not yet validated its reality.

However there is a concept of no small importance for all members to grasp since everyone here possesses *The Vampire Bible* and therefore understands that magic is a part of the Temple Teachings.

In the Harry Potter tales and films, the new word "Muggle" was used to describe "non-magical folk" and the implication was that if you were a Muggle you could not do magic.

Magic is dependent upon many aspects of the mind and is directly involved with the interface between mind and matter (if I may be forgiven for implying an authentic separation between the two in such a description).

Thus magic follows mind.

In parapsychology, early studies such as the "Sheep-Goat" studies of Gertrude Schmedler, a past president of the Parapsychological Association and Professor Emeritus, City College of the City University of New York, demonstrated the tendency for those who choose to believe that ESP is unreal to unconsciously use ESP to score below chance beyond what statistics can account for.

In other words, choosing to **disbelieve** in magic can cause you to "prove" to yourself that magic not only does not work but can cause it to backfire on you. For example, a dyed-in-the-wool disbeliever in magic who tried to create a job might very well remain unemployed longer than could be explained in a normal sense! Or a "true disbeliever" in magic who would attempt to heal someone might make them worse!

But apart from the negative repercussions of getting what you **don't** want (if you choose to doubt magic but attempt to employ it), there is the additional simple fact that at the very least actively disbelieving in this mental technology will cause you to be unable to make anything happen at all.

You can train yourself to become a Muggle!

I very commonly read the suppositions of those who come to the Temple wishing to treat ritual magic as if it were playacting for emotional release or a means of finding catharsis with situations that are "beyond control".

However, this will cause you to cut yourself off from being able to have magic actually work for you.

For example one of our primary magical acts is the Calling of the Undead Gods (Communion) as described in detail in *The Vampire Bible*. You are instructed to suspend your disbelief at least while performing the Calling. And why is that suggested so strongly? The reason is that if you actively choose to treat magic as mere play acting, then you undercut the probability that it will become anything more than that.

Because the Calling is involving Others Who may very well decide that They do not care what you expect or believe, this can sometimes work out with results anyway, but the formula is really quite clear: Magic follows mind.

Understand that disbelief is just another belief.

It is a belief that something does not exist.

When the Temple suggests that you should "Believe Nothing" that includes disbelief.

So this is the "warning" to those who wish to cling to doing "magic" but are still actively disbelieving in its effects on the real world:

Don't.

Either recognize that playacting is for entertainment and should be restricted to live theater or movies while magic is something quite different, or do not attempt magic at all.

There is nothing more ridiculous than a "Muggle magician".

And nothing more sad.

Be wise.

Control your mind.

Believe nothing ...including disbelief.

In time you can then substitute knowledge for beliefs, and results for desires.

## Do not stop with words.

Most humans never grow up.

They cling to their childhood fantasies and never look to see that, like cattle entering the slaughterhouse, their future is death.

The Temple offers alternatives to this situation.

In the Dayside Secrets are **two** methods that can bring you back from the dead based upon science. One of those methods does not require **any** new discoveries or inventions. It is already here.

In *The Vampire Bible* and *Revelations* there is our traditional Nightside approach to life beyond death that does not have to wait until death to be validated. The Graded forums are devoted to that effort.

I see new members come and go all the time.

I read their statements of dedication, determination, and so forth.

I always hope for the best each time I read such words.

However...

It is in your **actions** that you reveal your honest intentions.

It is from your actions that you reap the rewards of power, wealth, health, pleasure, immortality.

Another normal human quality is to make a grand promise, be congratulated for making that decision, and then do nothing.

Then if this is ever pointed out then another normal human quality is to quickly evade the discomfort of admitting that the required action has not been taken or continued.

That is commonly where the would-be Vampire leaves the Temple and "decides" the fault lies in the Temple, not with their own failure to take action.

I recall one former member who was highly upset that the Temple might be seen as the only true path that exists to survival. He was offended that we would lay claim to such a thing.

What he did not understand and probably never will is that he is now back in the only "true path" ...to certain death!

#### Everyone out there is dying.

The Dayside methods the Temple recommends should bring you back ...but you will still die first.

## Everyone out there is still going to die.

Death is the only taboo in our culture today. Sex used to be taboo also but is no more.

Death is what human beings explain away, ignore, deny, pretend is not there and is 100% going to kill every one of them.

No matter where in the world you live you are not far from a funeral parlor.

No matter where in the world you live you are not far from a morgue.

About 150,000 people die every day. That's almost 55 million people a year. That's over 500 million people in only ten years - which is close to the total population of the United States.

If someone pulled you off the sidewalk into a dark doorway and pressed a sharp steel knife against your throat then the reality of your potential death would have all of your attention.

Except in such emergencies, human beings think about death about 0% and if they do then they change the subject.

Here in the Temple we expect the member to rise above the human level and see reality as it is.

On the Dayside level we expect the new member to seize the information in the locked Dayside Secrets threads and in the *Tome of Dayside Mastery* and **do** something to apply those methods!

The airy, fairy, stars-in-their-eyes and mush-for-brains occultniks who arrive here with nothing but theories of "magic" and excuses for powerlessness **hate** this.

They usually do not last a month.

If they ask for and get a Mentor and the Mentor asks them to actually **do** something to improve their lot in life, they feel "insulted", "pressured", and usually run for the door.

That door only leads to the crematorium.

Those here who do "get it" only shake their heads at the utter stupidity of the human perspective.

The Temple offers life.

Those who come here are doomed to death ... unless they change their ways ...and do not stop with words.

## For newly arrived occult masters...

We see so many "occult masters" who come to the Temple and then reveal they cannot afford to pay their rent or are living off welfare.

You would think they would see the high hypocrisy revealed by such things and simply recognize that they are slaves and not "masters" of anything at all!

Anyone can have a temporary financial reversal or pass through a low-paying apprenticeship to better their future income.

What I am describing though is a chronic condition of lifelong losing.

This is why the Temple demands that each new active member immediately set goals for achieving Dayside mastery - real mastery of their lives.

Mastery of money, such that you no longer have to work for a living.

Mastery of health, so that you can enjoy living.

Mastery of communications with people so they can serve you.

Mastery of your own mind and emotions so they can serve you.

Mastery of two methods for achieving immortality based on science (in addition to the Nightside procedures as outlined in The Vampire Bible).

The Temple is not for losers.

Those who come here are offered the shortcut secrets to becoming winners.

We do not boost false pride but enable the active member to create a rock-solid foundation to practice real magic and real mastery.

Fools who wish to substitute words for reality are not welcome in the Temple.

Before the Nightside can be mastered, the Dayside must be brought under some degree of control.

This is not an opinion.

It is a fact.

These are the objectives set for the first 90 days of active membership here.

If you have not begun, begin now!

Mastery comes later.

A warm welcome all **future** masters!

Welcome to Hogwarts!

## The Vampire is not a victim.

I was watching a George Carlin comedy routine and was struck by the conspiracy theory he expressed there.

In short, Carlin was being very clear that the really rich people run "the system" and that the rest of us are slaves to "the system" with absolutely no hope of becoming free. He emphasized with his clever withow there was a select group of people who run everything and that the rest of us were not in that "club" and that no one in that "club" would ever let any of us in.

This has been a very popular conspiracy theory that successfully launched Marxism as well as Nazi Germany. Marxism claimed that the conspiracy was the rich business owners in particular whereas Nazi Germany specifically pointed to the Jewish financiers as the cause of all their economic woes.

My fellow Vampires, this is all victim consciousness nonsense.

It relies upon convincing you that you are held down by "them" (whoever "they" are) and that "they" will never let you rise out of your miserable situation.

Victim consciousness relies on making you feel hopeless.

The Temple is in direct opposition to that kind of thinking.

Frankly, each one of the Six Earthly Secrets contributes, one with the other, to enabling you to rise above all of your current problems and limitations.

For example, take money.

If George Carlin was still alive and I could actually sit down and calmly discuss his ideas with him, I would point out that he was missing some critically important facts.

If someone were to get a job and put a regular sum of money into an investment plan such as suggested by the Temple, in a limited period of time they would **become financially independent**.

That means that money they would have invested would create enough cash to pay their bills without having to work for anyone else ever again.

"They" will not stop this from happening to the person who chooses to do so. "They" would **benefit** from having more money invested in the stock market, invested into companies that produce goods and services.

"They" would get richer because you are getting rich.

I won't try to offer a lesson here on how businesses **create** wealth. But they do exactly that.

What I do want to focus on here is how you are affected by understanding that you can become financially free.

In the locked Money Secrets forum (and the *Tome of Dayside Mastery*) the Temple member is shown exactly what to do to improve income through career choice, reduce debt, and perhaps most importantly how to invest to achieve financial freedom.

If you follow those steps you will come to a point where you can absolutely understand how you can build up your money so that on a specific date usually only a few short years away you will **no longer have to work for a living.** 

You will know that by a certain date your plan will lead you to a point where your invested money will work for you to give you the money you need **and you can quit having to ever work for money again!** 

Those members who really "get" this, usually become very excited but, more importantly, they attain a condition of **realistic hope**.

They understand exactly what to do to get free.

They make their plan and put it into action.

They know when their plan will be achieved.

The result?

They feel in **control** of their lives insofar as money and working for money is concerned.

This is the **opposite** of the victim consciousness that George Carlin and others actually believe to be the truth.

And it is a great way to blame others for the hopelessness you might feel if you were into being a victim.

It is a great way to excuse never having to try to succeed.

It is a great way to commiserate with others who feel equally victimized by "them".

But it only keeps you a slave.

The Temple looks at this nonsense and simply asks you, "Wouldn't you rather be one of 'them'?"

Really, if the conspiracy whiners, like the late George Carlin, were right and we are subjugated by rich, uncaring bastards who run the world ...why not join **them**?

The fact of the matter, as I mentioned above, is that "they" **want** you to succeed because in doing so you are helping to produce more wealth as well as making more money available for "them" to invest in their efforts for continued "global domination".

When you realize that by applying yourself intelligently to this issue that you can actually throw off the chains of having to work for money and truly realize financial independence, your attitude toward life will skyrocket upward.

There is more to life than just having all the money you need without working, and the other five Earthly Secrets deals with each one of them, but while money can't buy you happiness, poverty can't buy you anything!

The Vampire is not a victim.

The Vampire is a winner.

You can choose to win. Here you will find the suggestions that can lead to you winning.

Or you can buy into the popular victim consciousness and assume that it is all hopeless and "they" will always stop you anyway.

Just ask yourself these questions, however.

Which perspective **feels** better?

Which perspective offers you a way out?

Which perspective makes sense?

Which perspective has worked for other people ... such as "them"?

Just think it through and you will make the right choice.

The Vampire is not a victim.

## The Nightside Path to the Undead Gods

You possess an authorized copy of The Vampire Bible.

This book contains the basic instructions to enable you to follow the traditional path of the Gods to Rise as a Vampire above the physical body and to Feed upon the human and attain everlasting life even should your physical body die.

Additionally the small gesture you have made in purchasing this book from the Temple enables you to be recognized in Communion by the Undead Vampire Gods as having met the most basic requirement for attaining Nightside empowerment.

This has been the hidden secret reserved only for the very few, the true Rulers of this world - the ancient kings, the ancient pharaohs. This is the deep secret lost to the Egyptians, the Hebrews, the Masons - substituting human-based belief systems of religion and mysticism to continue their ignorance and subjugation.

As a Temple member you are to believe none of this.

As a Temple member you are not even required to test any of this.

However, if you wish to penetrate and master the Nightside Teachings of this Temple, you will need to follow the Nightside Path to the Undead Vampire Gods.

The method for doing so has been laid out in its correct sequence in the order of the writings in The Vampire Bible.

"The Vampire Creed" establishes the overall posture of the Temple member toward validation of experience. In essence, "The Vampire Creed" requires that one should "Test Everything - Believe Nothing". "The Vampire Creed" also makes clear that you assume the supreme role of absolute God in your own life.

"The Dragon Speaks" clarifies the identity and power of Who you really are and what that means for attaining Nightside Control. "The Dragon Speaks" also briefly outlines the Nightside Path to the Undead Vampire Gods.

Communion, The Calling of the Undead Gods, is the first step.

You perform Communion to declare yourself not human, but Vampire, and you offer up as a free will Sacrifice the Lifeforce from your own body to attract and entice the Undead Vampire Gods, Those Who have mastered the Nightside Path, to come to you and aid you in attaining Nightside mastery.

Please note that while the instructions recommend gathering Lifeforce to offer up, Communion is described first because it is always the first step.

You perform Communion and whether or not you attain evidence that you have succeeded, you then go

to sleep to follow the Nightside path of Vampirism.

You perform Communion as a mental choice of Calling and Giving your Lifeforce for a very specific reason.

Later when you lie down to sleep after Communion you wish to Rise above the physical, to have a conscious out of body experience so that you may then go to the side of your human beings and draw from them the Lifeforce that will further empower you, that will Feed your astral body and enable you to remain conscious and in control even following physical death.

Lifeforce is required for consciousness.

To be Awake is everything.

To Awaken in the out of body condition is what the Undead Vampire Gods have achieved as a skill.

This is why you Call to Them in Communion.

You are seeking Their direct assistance in learning this trick of Awakening in the out of body state.

This is a skill which is not conveyed by words any more than any physical skill is. Someone can describe how to ride a bicycle to you forever but only when you try to actually ride the bicycle can you learn the balance and actions required to do so.

Direct Transmission of these skills for Rising above the body is your highest purpose for Calling to the Advanced Ones in Communion.

So then you perform Communion to Call to the Undead and then, when you sleep, you fix in your mind the intention to Rise above the physical, to Awaken out of the body, and to then go to the humans from whom you will take the Lifeforce to remain Awake and to gain Control of the astral and then the physical.

And you are to believe none of this.

You are, instead, to do it.

We are Vampires.

We Connect to Those Who are astrally free, Those Who have greater mastery of the out of body experience, Those Who have shed the physical, Those Who can operate through the physical bodies of those They choose at will.

We then work to Rise to fly through the night skies and descend upon our prey, the human, to draw in their Lifeforce. We do this to attain increased Wakefulness, to become Awake when the physical sleeps. We do this to maintain Wakefulness to survive physical death.

We do this because it is the Nightside Path to the Undead Vampire Gods.

We are Vampires.

We do not harm the human. We Take from the human What they radiate mindlessly.

We are Vampires.

We are not cannibals who ingest human physical tissue, blood or meat.

We are Vampires.

We are invisible to the human eye by day, and in the highest form of our practice are invisible to the human who sleeps by night.

We are Vampires.

We are the Gods of the human.

Each night they bow down before us.

So it has always been and so it shall always be.

## Question about partners and Communion.

Just today a member asked if a marriage partner who is not a member of the Temple needs to first buy The Vampire Bible before performing Communion.

Here is what I answered:

Married couples (or the equivalent) can share Temple literature and discuss anything they wish.

Because divorces and breakups do happen, the Temple prefers that each member has separate subscriptions and their own copies of the literature.

The issue of making a personal commitment is what the purchase of an authorized Bible is all about.

For example, someone downloads a pirated copy of The Vampire Bible and then attempts Communion. No matter what that person might try to do, deep down inside they **know** they stole the Bible and are now trying to contact the Authors.

That is truly a waste of their time at best.

(Frankly it is pretty stupid to steal from Vampires and then invite Them into your home!)

Your partner's situation is entirely different, I would think. The key would be that deep down inside your partner should feel no hesitancy in inviting the attention of the Undead.

I cannot prove this of course, but frankly, They always do come when Called. However, that does not mean that the person doing the Calling will perceive this, and neither does it mean that They will approve of that person and help them.

So please help your partner to know that you are welcome to discuss anything you wish with her, she can read any Temple literature you have, and that she only needs to be certain that **she** does not feel that performing Communion would be inappropriate.

If so, then she need only make the same promise to the Temple to become a lifetime registered member: no crime and no discussion of the Temple with the public. And, to be clear, anyone who is unwilling to make that promise has no business participating in our religious services.

I almost forgot to mention that married couples or their equivalent are also free to perform Communion together. Otherwise, the Temple requires that a member of the Priesthood be present at any other kind of group Communion to better assure a positive Connection.

#### Love and Death.

True love is consciously making the other person the number one most important person in your life, even above your own.

In other words you would take a bullet for that person because the very thought of them being harmed or killed is simply too great to bear.

Anything less is affection but not true love.

A simple question to ask yourself when you wonder if you are in love with a mortal is whether that person would knowingly cause **you** to die merely to please a whim they have.

Deathism is the cultural norm. Choosing to die comes easy to the deathists. They often view it as heroic.

Your partner might be willing to die for you, but will he demand you die for him ... unnecessarily?

Beware of identifying with your emotions.

## How to not lose your Temple membership.

It really is stupidly simple.

In a nutshell all the Temple requires is that you:

- 1. Do not advocate or perform criminal acts (felonies).
- 2. Do not involve yourself with the very few groups who are actively opposed to the Temple Mission (such as physical blood drinkers or those who advocate crime).

That's it.

Nothing more is required.

And nothing less will be tolerated.

Why?

To protect the membership from the effects of such things.

The Temple **does not care** if you affiliate with **any** other group or organization **unless** they are advocating crime or actively against the Temple.

We have members who belong to all kinds of different social groups, other religions and organizations.

Not a problem.

So how can you avoid "accidently" affiliating with a criminal group or an anti-Temple group?

Here's a clue.

Read what they say.

For example one group has the following quote form S. Hunter Thompson on their home page:

"I hate to advocate drugs, alcohol, violence, or insanity to anyone, but they've always worked for me."

On another page there is a prominent display of human blood drinking.

Folks, the Temple is an IQ test.

Noticing things like this are part of that test.

I am very pleased to state that those who are here are, for the most part, the elite of this world.

You are the few who embrace life and are thinking clearly about the most important issues of life.

I am honored by your presence.

However, for the few who are not engaging their minds about such things please understand that for the protection of the other members and the protection of the Temple Mission, there will always be a zero tolerance policy here for advocates of felonies or groups that oppose the Temple.

Thank you for your understanding.

Carry on.

## No Crime or Criminal Advocacy

Crime is not a short cut to wealth. Crime is a short circuit in thinking.

Yes, there are drug lords who have risen from nothing to enormous wealth and act as potentates in their own little kingdoms. And the odds of rising to that level instead of being shoved down into a grave are worse than winning a national lottery.

Yes, there are "idealists" who have this or that cause in disagreement with the current laws of the land. They jump up and down about why alcohol is legal while pot is not. They scream and yell about their "rights". And they are only getting flat feet and sore throats as best, and jail terms at worst.

Compare all that to just following the Six Earthly Secrets presented in the locked Secrets threads on this board (and in the *Tome of Dayside Mastery*).

The fast track of crime almost always leads to prison, bad health, or just old fashioned death.

The slower but surer track suggested by the Temple leads to security, wealth, health, power, and immortality.

I sometimes fantasize about it as if it were a TV quiz show.

"Now behind Curtain Number One is everything your heart desires - wealth, health, companionship, sex, security, and even immortality.

"And behind Curtain Number Two are three dozen very hungry, very angry velociraptors.

"Which curtain do you wish to select?"

#### Regarding neoNazis, psychos, etc.

The Temple is not stupid. Any organization or group that is running in a gray area such as Ku Klux Klan groups that claim they are completely legal or neoNazi groups that claim they are legally squeaky clean are nevertheless **not** okay for Temple members to affiliate with.

Anyone out there with an ounce of street smarts can realize that if it walks like a duck and quacks like a duck, the duck hunters will be shooting at it!

Legal loopholes will not cut it for affiliation with crazy people, gangsters, psychos, child molesters, etc.

It isn't an issue of freedom. It is entirely an issue of sanity.

And it is an issue of the Temple not being fooled by those who feel restricted by the rigors of sanity.

## The Secret Society

Every Vampire leads two lives.

The Nightside life is the one in which we experience our full glory. The Nightside Vampire is the one who practices Lifeforce Vampirism, lucid dreaming and Communion with the Undead. The Vampire by Night learns to visit others in their dreams. Our traditional method of surviving physical death lies in the Darkness of Night.

The Dayside life is quite simply the side of us we show to the mortalkind. The Dayside Vampire never reveals his Nightside nature to those who shall die. When instances of real Nightside power manifest in the Dayside, the Dayside Vampire always gives humans a way to dismiss or ignore it. In such a way, mortals may view the Dayside Vampire with awe and reverence, but they never suspect the real reason behind his majesty.

Why do Vampires lead such dual lives? Why do we insist on maintaining the Lie that obscures the Truth?

Allow me to turn to analogy. If you plug a battery backwards into an electronic device, what happens? In most cases, absolutely nothing. This is because electricity must flow through the circuitry in a particular way. By reversing the roles of the positive and negative charges, you have made it impossible for the battery to power the device.

Electrical power comes neither from positive charge nor from negative charge. Electrical power comes from the *separation* of the two charges. When the two opposite charges are separated and allowed to interact, electricity flows between them. That flow is what permits our modern technology.

In the same way, Vampiric power does not come solely from the Nightside. Without the separation of Night and Day, Nightside practices become mere fantasy and the life seen by others is a pathetic waste.

Do an internet search for "real vampires." Look at a few of the organizations that show up. Every one of them is steeped in victim language with a few references to role playing games. These are people who have tried to claim the heritage of Vampirism without respecting the division of Night and Day.

Search again for "Wicca." Here you will find people who claim to be witches, complete with magical powers. Read carefully. These people struggle with money, health, and personal relationships to degrees that boggle a sane mind. Once again, they bemoan the discrimination leveled against them, as though life itself has chosen to victimize them for their beliefs. As with the "vampire community," Wiccans often must qualify their magical powers by saying that no one can actually perform the dazzling displays of power spoken of in legends. This, again, is the price for blending Day and Night: powerlessness, a weak life, and a promise of eventual death.

There are countless instances of this. The Christian who claims that by having faith in God, he needn't take his sick infant to a doctor. The new age fanatic who climbs to the top of a hill hoping to be taken by "space brothers." The gambler who mentions his "secret" superstitious methods in order "get lucky."

In every instance, the blurring of Day and Night results in a murky, confused state that carries them straight to the grave.

Why does this happen? Why should the Day and Night require separation?

The answer is simplicity itself.

In order for real power to manifest, there must be some way in which it can manifest.

The mortal "sorcerer" who tells everyone of his supposed power makes a terrible mistake. In doing so, he has blurred the distinction in his life between fact and fantasy, truth and metaphor. This means that **his very act of imagining what he desires is indistinguishable from material manifestation**. The power is extinguished before it can act. He never "separated charges," so to speak.

Where, instead, do we see real power?

The corporate CEO.

The successful politician.

The savvy investor.

In these and many other instances, there is no doubt of the real success and influence these people have.

And in every single case, there is no hint of magic.

Thus it is that the Dayside Vampire presents a side that is totally believable. He never speaks of his Nightside world. He never even hints at it. At every turn, in every instance where magic manifests and the Vampire recognizes it, he privately acknowledges it for what it is and then turns to the mortals among him to provide an excuse.

Never with a wink.

Never with a suggestion that there might be something more.

In every case, the dismissal is given in such a way that the humans who observe even the most fantastic of events will walk away thinking that it was, at most, an entertaining trick.

This is why the Temple is a secret society. This is why we demand that you do not speak of Vampirism with the public. This is why the members of Council remain unknown. This is why members do not encounter that which they actively disbelieve in. This is why we advise anonymity when assisting the Temple Mission.

Everything about your magical side should be completely hidden from mortal view.

Your advantage in seeking immortality.

Your awareness of Lifeforce.

The fact that you have a hidden Dark side.

Everything.

Allow the mortalkind to see only someone who is practical, successful, clear-headed and insightful. Let them see you by the light of Day.

It is only by carrying the true secret of Night, separating Darkness from Light, that there can be a Crack between the Worlds.

It is only by living the Day and the Night separately that we may walk in Twilight.

## The medium is NOT the message.

We Vampires are pragmatic.

If we did not already have a motto ("Test Everything. Believe Nothing."), it might have been instead, "If it works, use it!"

Yet from time to time we can fall into the trap of assuming that just because of **who** offers an idea or **what group** promotes a suggestion that it must automatically be "wrong" or that it would be a betrayal of our values to use it.

This mental trap whenever it surfaces stems from confusing the medium with the message.

Stupid people can sometimes communicate vitally important, even highly intelligent ideas.

Idiots can know where the fire alarm is.

Morons can sometimes point to the nearest emergency exit.

Serial killers can discover new approaches to treating cancer.

Communist nations, like China, can offer excellent business opportunities.

Conservative political leaders can promote important human rights legislation.

Liberal political leaders can offer successful measures to balance the budget.

Demagogues can write beautiful poetry.

Deathists can successful research life extension technologies.

It is extremely valuable to separate the invention, tool, or idea from the person or group that creates or suggests it.

Pragmatism is doing what works.

It is not doing what the "right" people or organizations offer.

We are Vampires.

We constantly attempt to rise above the usual identifications of the mortal mob.

They are forever pretending that what they do is what they are.

We see through that falsehood.

What you do is simply what you do.
You are not your actions.
Neither is the source of any tool or idea the idea or tool itself.
The medium is truly <b>not</b> the message.
Be vigilant!
Be pragmatic!
If it works, use it!

## The Dayside Path to the Undead Gods

I realize that this has been explained in *Revelations*, but every so often I will get an email that reveals to me that a new member doesn't understand this.

The proper long term goal of any Temple Member is to become like the Undead Gods whether you think they are real or not.

If you get this, then all the issues about feeling that we of the Temple are subservient inferiors to the Undead Gods drops away.

They are us ...if we get our act together and master the same kinds of skills attributed to Them.

So what are the attributes that the Undead Gods have that you should also want?

- 1. Immortality.
- 2. Self Control.
- 3. Power over the World.

And before I discuss each one of these, I want you to also grasp something important.

You can accomplish all of these through the Dayside.

The Nightside is not even really necessary.

But back to the attributes:

#### 1. Immortality.

You can't exactly be Undead if you are dead.

Immortality as the Temple uses this word is not living forever.

It is really just not dying or not staying dead.

The Dayside of the Temple indicates that there are two ways to accomplish this involving science.

If the Temple is correct then setting yourself up for these methods offers you immortality.

That potentially makes you Undead.

#### 2. Self Control.

Immortality in eternal torment would not be very God-like.

For this reason alone it is extremely useful to gain increased control over your mind and emotions.

The development of willpower and choosing happiness over anxiety, depression, or ongoing rage, for example, are important parts of gaining control over your own mind.

The Dayside secrets that deal with these issues are also here before you, outlining how to gain self control and make life truly worth living.

Things can and will go wrong around you from time to time.

Learning how to rise above the events around you and find happiness despite such setbacks when they happen is critical to being your own God.

#### 3. Power over the World.

Making external events happen the way you prefer them to is what technology is all about.

Tools enable us to master the environment and the Dayside of the Temple embraces the accelerating technologies that are even now rushing toward us.

Nanotechnology by itself holds immense promise to do for physical matter what computers have done for information.

Thus we look to the immediate future with a scientific hope that our lifespans will be radically extended, health made the fundamental norm as diseases are wiped away, and the current-day concerns of limited resources and energy are completely solved while opening the door to authentic space travel and completely viable virtual worlds where you can be, do, or have anything you can imagine.

Anything.

To increase the odds that you will live to see this happen and be in the forefront of those who will benefit from the advances as they happen, the Temple promotes attention to personal survival, health, and accumulating wealth.

We are passing through the last bottleneck leading to God-like power over the material universe.

Staying alive and healthy is critical.

Accumulating wealth will not only offer you more personal freedom but may very well assure you of being first in line to benefit from the very technologies that will uplift you from being "just human" to being an "Undead God" in the very simple terms I have attempted to outline here.

I am mentioning all of this to remove the nagging doubts that might block especially newer members from thinking that the Temple is only a Nightside religion.

The technologies being developed in the Dayside right now will cause everything that the Temple Teaches as the Nightside to be produced through scientific engineering.

Now let me be exceedingly clear.

I am not suggesting that the Nightside is not real.

Frankly, any technology that becomes advanced enough will point to a direct effect by mind upon matter - what we call magic.

I also should point out that it would actually be pretty amazing if no one else before this time had been able to do just that.

Finally, if you look at the oldest stories about humanity with an open mind, the story is presented there as clearly as can be put into words.

Superior technology gave mankind a helping hand in the creation of tools, agriculture, and more.

The Temple offers that these events not only did happen but that Those responsible never really stopped Their involvement.

However, all of **that** is and remains Nightside in nature, because these things cannot be proven to you directly.

If you want to probe beneath the visible surface of such things that is what the Nightside of the Temple is all about.

My words here are not about that.

I am not going to reverse twenty years of asking that members not just believe anything. Instead, I am asking you to test and prove everything.

That is the only way to knowledge that is reliable.

What I am trying to communicate is that every one of the Nightside skills attributed to the Undead Gods has a Dayside technological plan that you can achieve.

The Dayside Secrets are here for many reasons.

They all amount to the best ways for you to beat death and gain mastery.

Beat death = Undead.

Mastery = God.

The Undead Gods.

We are not here to worship "ghosts in the sky".

We are here to become Undead Gods ourselves.

You can do so with the Dayside alone if necessary given enough time with the progress of technology. But you will need to make it through the current bottleneck to do so.

So get to work!

## **Progressing in the Temple.**

The measure the Temple uses to determine if you are "progressing" or not, is first whether you come up to speed on Dayside goal-setting and plan implementation.

The Six Earthly Secrets are the foundation for securing your Dayside.

Then the Nightside becomes something you can actually work on for its own rewards and not as a stress-filled and therefore futile effort to somehow magically make your mundane life work.

Over the years we have seen that all of those who entered the Temple and failed to progress, first failed to deal with their Dayside.

Since we have placed this emphasis on taking the first 90 days of active membership to set Dayside goals and devise specific Dayside plans, we have seen a complete turn-around in the progress of members in the Nightside as well.

Pyramids need to be built from the bottom up.

Abraham Maslow's "Hierarchy of Needs" is just such a pyramid. At the bottom are biological survival issues and at the top are self-actualization issues.

From the Temple's perspective this simply shows how the Dayside is the required base for building the Nightside upon.

All of the so-called "magical" groups and organizations that try to only magic their way to overcoming mundane problems produce a continuous stream of poverty-stricken, excuse-making losers.

We are entirely different. We begin at the beginning.

This upsets those who only want to wave a magic wand and win the lotto - and dooms them to eternal wand-waving and poverty.

The Temple can be great fun just as going to a swimming pool can be enjoyable exercise.

However, the Temple is "Adult Swim".

If you are looking for the authentic item, you should not have to be told to "just believe".

You should be told that you need to...

Test Everything. Believe Nothing.

Hmmmm.

That sounds somehow familiar.

## The Royal Path to the Undead Gods

Sigmund Freud referred to dreams as the royal road to the unconscious.

Lucid dreaming, however, is far superior in many ways.

A lucid dream is one in which you awaken in the dream and realize that you are dreaming without physically awakening.

Lucid dreaming was proven to be a scientific reality by psychologist Keith Hearne of Hull University in 1977 (Hearne, K.M.T. [1977]. *Eye-movement communication from lucid dreams: A new technique and initial findings*. Paper given to 11th Post-doctoral Conference in the Behavioural Sciences, Hull University, April 15-18).

There are many degrees of lucidity ranging from being barely aware that "this is a dream" to conditions in which you can exert complete control over anything you wish to experience in the dream.

Lifeforce is mind stuff and the essence of consciousness. When you take Lifeforce from humans you can usually feel the "awakening" effect physically. Your vision brightens becoming more vivid, your sense of touch becomes more sensitive, your hearing sharpens and opens, etc.

Vampirism leads to greater wakefulness.

In Communion when you Call to the Advanced Vampires to come to you, your hope is that you will receive the return Flow of Their Lifeforce, the Rain of Mercy, which will further empower you and enable you to directly "learn" from Their experiences.

Later, when you go to sleep, that refined Lifeforce can be called upon to aid you in awakening in the dream state - to have a lucid dream.

When you awaken to the fact that you are dreaming, your primary goal should first be to go to a human being and take his Lifeforce - to Feed.

By doing so you are approximating the act of actually Feeding or may, without knowing it, actually **be** Feeding upon a human who is also sleeping and dreaming.

When you Feed then you can Awaken.

When you Vampirize the human, even in a dream, you are establishing the set of habits you require to become conscious in your dream.

If you awaken enough in a lucid dream, you will discover that you eventually will have an out of body experience.

It is all a matter of degree.

In a lucid dream the trick is to not lose wakefulness but to remain awake, to remain lucid and even attain

to greater levels of lucidity.

Vampirism is the key to doing so. Vampirism is the lost secret that enables this to happen. Vampirism can lead you to follow the Royal Road to Immortality beyond physical death. For following the death of the physical, you enter into a dream state.

If you have established the habit of Feeding you will do so then and Awaken out of body.

To be Awake is everything.

Consider the many ways this path is closed to the human.

They reject taking the Force of Life from the living as evil.

We embrace it.

They reject choosing eternal life and living.

We embrace it.

They choose to enter the dream states of the mutually shared dreams of heaven (or hell). We reject this slow path of exhaustion to the Second Death.

They choose death over life.

We choose life over death.

From the writings in the Temple of Unas in Egypt to the "horror" film of the present day, the Royal Road to the Undead Gods has remained the same:

Feed and Awaken.

And so it is.

## **Understanding the Oath of Fealty**

The Oath of Fealty is the Temple's outer form of the Most Ancient Pact (<u>The Vampire Bible</u>, p. 16). In short, this Pact is that the Undead will ensure that you survive physical death in return for your loyalty to Them. Exactly what that means is elaborated upon in the below essay.

Anyone can swear this Oath in Communion with the Undead when they are ready. I would only caution you to think carefully about whether you really want to do it. Anyone who swears this Oath and then rejects the Temple will not be welcome to return. We strongly advise that you meet the Undead Gods in astral projection (i.e. an "out-of-body experience" or "OBE") before you swear the Oath of Fealty. That will give you the personal knowledge needed to fulfill your side of the Oath.

-----

Anyone who intends to enter the Inner Temple must first swear the Oath of Fealty:

I Swear by My Lifeforce and the Breath that Sustains It My Loyalty and Obedience to *Hekal Tiamat*.

I shall Live by the Force of Fang and Claw.
I shall Forever Respect the One True Law.
I Pledge My Blood, My Will and My Power.
I Commit Myself Totally from This Very Hour.
I am Of and For the Body of the Blood.
I Now Only Serve the Great Dragon God.
If This Oath be ever Broken by Me
May I be Denied Immortality.

It's important that you understand what you are promising before you swear this oath. I'll go step by step through it to explicate what I can. Please ask if you have any questions about the Oath of Fealty after reading this. There shouldn't be any ambiguity in your mind if and when you choose to take this oath.

I Swear by My Lifeforce and the Breath that Sustains It

•

If This Oath be ever Broken by Me May I be Denied Immortality.

The beginning and the end of the oath mirror each other. They really say the same thing. When you swear by something, you're offering that something as collateral should you break that promise. This means that if you ever break the oath, you relinquish ownership of both your physical and astral life.

It's important to notice that this is an eternal oath. It's hard to appreciate what that means if you're not

used to thinking in terms of an immortal lifespan. You are saying in effect that no matter how many centuries or millennia pass, you will still abide by this oath on pain of eventual death.

## My Loyalty and Obedience to Hekal Tiamat.

We loosely refer to the Inner Temple as *Hekal Tiamat* at times, but strictly speaking that's improper. *Hekal Tiamat* is one of the older names for the Vampire Family. This includes Those Who Have Risen and those Living Vampires who have been Initiated into our Traditions. Anyone who has truly accomplished what we expect of them upon entering the Priesthood of Ur will certainly be at least a Living Vampire, but since the Temple does not investigate the authenticity of members' claims it is still possible that there are those with the title but not the Initiation. Conversely, some who are Initiated are not yet members of the Priesthood and may not even be members of the Temple of the Vampire.

However, Those Who govern this Temple are most certainly Advanced Members of the Family. This means that in swearing loyalty to *Hekal Tiamat*, you agree to assist the Temple in its Mission however you can. At the very least, this consists of remaining an active member and doing your best to master the Teachings so as to be a good example of what Vampirism has to offer. It is for this reason that members of the Priesthood who resign are forbidden to return.

Obedience to *Hekal Tiamat* means putting your Vampiric nature before any lingering mortal weakness. You are expected to practice Deidentification and strengthen your Willpower. You are expected to Fly the Dragon every night. Your efforts at becoming more than human are to take highest priority. This doesn't necessarily mean sacrificing what you want in life, but it does mean rearranging how you strive for your desires so that everything you do is in support of becoming more than human. You have been given the essential instructions needed to live forever. You are expected to master them.

Obeying *Hekal Tiamat* also means that you choose to respect any direct instructions the Undead Gods may give you. You are expected to show these Adults respect. This will mean little to those of you who have not yet knowingly met the Undead, which is part of why we require you to do so before joining the Priesthood of Ur. Again, however, They rule this Temple, and therefore in swearing the Oath of Fealty you agree to abide by the requirements that the Temple of the Vampire sets before you. This includes at the very least securing physical immortality and working to master your Dayside life.

Finally, loyalty entails supporting other members of the Family however you can. This includes being supportive of those with Potential and helping them to realize their Vampiric nature. This assists the Family as a whole as we approach the Final Harvest.

It is not necessarily a breach of the Oath of Fealty if you, say, forget to Fly the Dragon one night. It is your intent that matters, and anyone can err. However, honest intent will manifest as correct action over time. You are expected to put your training first and your concerns for familiarity or comfort second.

# I shall Live by the Force of Fang and Claw. I shall Forever Respect the One True Law.

These lines say essentially the same thing. The "one true law" is survival. Survival can be framed as a matter of who eats whom, with those at the top of the food chain surviving the longest and best. The "force of fang and claw" refers to the fact that you must take and sometimes destroy in order to remain at the top of the food chain. This part of the oath indicates that you agree to fight for your worthwhile

survival, you will continue to Drink the Blood of the living, and you will change the way you think to remove any sense of obligation to show mercy to those who would threaten your well-being. Mercy isn't forbidden per se, but the attitude that you *have* to forgive those who have wronged you is mortal nonsense. You are promising to extinguish the habits of weakness and submission that come from having been raised in a mortal culture.

# I Pledge My Blood, My Will and My Power. I Commit Myself Totally from This Very Hour.

These two lines form a statement of total dedication. This defines the degree of loyalty to *Hekal Tiamat*. In pledging your Blood, Will, and power, you are saying that everything you have to give will be given in service to the goals of the Family, which include your personal Vampiric Metamorphosis. This may mean making career choices you otherwise wouldn't. This may mean doing a tremendous amount of work when One Who Has Risen calls upon you. This may mean reorganizing your life so that you have time to practice the Teachings. Exactly how you execute this is very much up to you, but from the moment you swear the Oath of Fealty you are expected to put Vampirism first and foremost in all that you do.

This does not necessarily mean sacrificing things you love, however. Proper application of the Teaching should enhance your health, make your relationships more rewarding, and generally improve every facet of your life. The point is that you agree to exalt your Vampiric nature and assist the Family rather than being lazy or giving in to a fear of change.

#### I am Of and For the Body of the Blood.

The "Body of the Blood" is another reference to the Vampire Family. Being of the Body of the Blood means that you acknowledge your Initiation. You know you are a Vampire, which in our Tradition means you know you are taking the Lifeforce of the living, have given it to the Undead Gods, and have received the Rain of Mercy in return. You know that the Promise given - immortality in exchange for loyalty - applies to you.

Being for the Body of the Blood is, again, a reference to being loyal to *Hekal Tiamat*.

## I Now Only Serve the Great Dragon God.

Most people serve their egos. This is the essential reason why they are mortal. They are too busy following the impulses of their habits to experience reality as it is. They are too busy yelling to feel their anger, too busy complaining to feel their fear, too busy cheering to feel their happiness. They hold grudges and call each other names rather than simply recognizing what they can expect from one another. They are oblivious to the feel of the cloth on their skin or the sound of leaves brushing against the air as they fall.

In swearing to serve only the Great Dragon God, you are agreeing to set all this behind you. You will practice the Deidentification Process and do your best to Awaken the Dragon Within. You will strive to experience your emotions rather than just reacting to them. You will smell the air as it smells, feel pain as it feels, and read words as they are written.

The Inner Temple Mysteries rely on this. Serving Tiamat means experiencing fully and being awake to

that experience. The work done in the Inner Temple focuses largely on this part of the oath.

In short, in swearing the Oath of Fealty you agree to the following:

- You are a Vampire. This implies that you know that the Undead Gods exist and that They govern this Temple.
- You will do your best to master the Teachings. This includes putting your personal comfort second to the training methods you have been given.
- You will help other Vampires to master the Teachings. This includes at the very least remaining an active member of this Temple as long as it is here (although a temporary hiatus is certainly fine).
- You will do what the Undead Gods ask you to do. Since the Undead govern this Temple, this includes doing what the Temple asks of you such as following Temple Law and doing what you can to assist the Mission.

In return, you will receive Assistance upon physical death so that you may live forever.

If you have not personally validated the existence of the Undead Gods, this is a pointless oath to swear. Without that validation, you would be swearing to stay a member of this Temple and pretend that you believe everything we've told you, and all that you would reasonably expect to gain in return is access to more Temple services and literature. So let me be clear:

# If you do not know for a fact that swearing the Oath of Fealty will ensure your immortality, then do not swear it.

No one is ever required to swear this oath. It is meant only for those who come to recognize that the Promise of the Elder Gods is real. Only they have the ability to provide the loyalty that this Promise requires, and therefore only they can benefit from swearing the Oath of Fealty.

In closing, I would like to mention that there have been some people who have claimed that the Oath of Fealty is simply an oath to oneself, interpreting *Hekal Tiamat* as one's physical body and the Great Dragon God as oneself. There is a sense in which this is true, but it does not change what you promise to do. The experience required to understand this perspective illuminates the rationale behind the Promise of the Elder Gods, but it really changes nothing. Loyalty to oneself **is** loyalty to the Vampire Family when properly understood. It is for this reason that the Inner Temple Mysteries are reserved for those who have already sworn the Oath of Fealty.

We will never expect you to believe anything, but we will expect you to uphold this oath once you've sworn it. Therefore, if you have any questions about it, please feel free to ask.

## When pride first requires humility.

"The Vampire Creed" is explicit in naming the Vampire as the superior being who is destined to rule over his world and the humans in it.

"I am the only God that is," is a statement of intense pride.

Yet to attain that state of world mastery, to honestly possess that pride, requires that the Vampire be open to learn what is required to do so.

The phrase we commonly use to describe that attitude of openness is to "empty your cup". This comes from the old Zen story in which the student was told that to taste the master's tea of knowledge he had to first empty his own cup of assumptions.

We see all different kinds of people arrive here at the Temple gate.

Some come with empty cups. Some do not.

To acquire knowledge you must not assume that you already know all of the answers.

To worship the gods of the current scientific assumptions is no more being open to what is real, than to worship the gods of Abraham or Mohammad or Buddha.

There needs to first be a sense of humility in the awareness that current assumptions about what "everyone knows" **could be wrong.** 

For example, I commonly run into people who are struggling with the idea of astral bodies or astral projection because their assumptions are that "science" has ruled that out as superstitious nonsense. Apart from the simple fact that this is not true at all, I often have to smile a bit, bemused by such statements.

You only need to have one single but verified out of body experience (OBE) to **know** that those who build up certainties that such things are not true are simply wrong.

Validated personal knowledge trumps any scientific theory that would disagree with that knowledge.

When you absolutely have come to know what you know directly through personal experience, and not indirectly through assumptions and the testimony of others, then you may feel honest pride in your certainty.

Less than this is only a form of self-deceit.

Sit down before facts like a child, and be prepared to give up every preconceived notion, follow humbly wherever and to whatever abysses Nature leads, or you shall learn nothing.

— T.H. Huxley

## **Dayside Perspectives.**

The Dayside of the Temple is the skeptical perspective, however, and (this is very important to grasp) the Dayside is **not** a lock-step embracing of the current assumptions held by academia in any particular field.

That would not be skepticism.

That would be simply trust in the opinions of authority figures.

Some might call that "faith".

For example, the age of the Sphinx can no longer be just "accepted" as what the Egyptologists have held it to be for many years because geologists have offered evidence that could easily place that structure as much, much older.

In this example that does **not** prove that the Egyptologists' dogmatic assertions are "wrong".

It does mean that they can no longer prove that they are "right".

The difference is important to grasp.

There is solid evidence on **both** sides.

The evidence is now no longer one-sided, if it ever was.

The Dayside is intended to be a place where the Vampire applies street smarts to the belief systems of the human world.

When we accept any one group's claims to certainty despite what may be contrary evidence, then we are being taken in, duped, if you will.

For another example, there is the age of the Great Pyramid based primarily upon markings "found" above the King's Chamber by an English archeologist **who produced fraudulent archeological evidence during his lifetime.** 

So the Egyptologists accepted his evidence and this became unquestioned in their field.

Does that prove the Great Pyramid is much older?

No, it does **not**.

However, it ought to cause the Dayside Vampire to consider the fact that at this point the actual age of that structure is not so certain after all.

In other words, the Dayside Vampire applies doubt to the evidence offered by **anyone** in looking at these kinds of things - and that most definitely must include the current crop of authority figures in "science".

I place "science" in quotes because the ideal of **real** science is always open to following the lead of evidence.

The history of **scientists**, on the other hand, is replete with examples of those who pigheadedly refused to look at evidence that did not meet their preconceptions.

This is true of humankind as a whole.

So what is my point?

It is actually quite simple.

Do not be duped either way.

From a strictly Dayside perspective there are many curious things both historical and current that **cannot** be objectively proven with the evidence at hand one way or the other.

Those who claim otherwise are usually either self-deceived or deliberately lying.

I am not saying that many of these issues **cannot** be proven **to one's self** or that many of these issues have not **already** been proven.

But that involves the Nightside at this point.

I am saying that from a common **Dayside** examination of the evidence available, most all of these kinds of mysteries are still just that - mysteries.

The **true** Dayside is not a blind embracing of one view of reality, but an open acceptance of evidence when it is present, and a willingness to change one's opinions about things based upon that evidence.

But the really critical part of the true Dayside is to **not** assume that you know something with absolute certainty when you actually do not.

Absolute certainty in the Dayside is an absolute impossibility.

How can I state such a thing?

I can and do state this because right now, at this moment, you cannot be certain that this experience is not a dream.

Think of the film "The Matrix".

You cannot know with certainty that **any** experience you have is not being created as an hallucination while you are lying in a deep coma in some hospital.

I am not being silly here.

Not at all.

You cannot have absolute certainty.

You can, at best, have **provisional** certainty.

Now the reason there is such an immense drive for human beings to "be right" about their "certainties" is all due to primate dominance psychology.

Yes, it is all ultimately due to pecking-order competition between the monkeys!

What we seek here as Dayside Vampires is a trans-human state of awareness.

That requires a willingness to not be certain about some things.

That requires deep honesty.

So this is a request for all Dayside Vampires to not simply seek "the truth" but to enlarge their awareness of what **seems** to be true, and especially what can be used in a practical sense.

When you find that you are arguing over "evidence" the chances are very high that it is time to look deeper at the "evidence" and be certain you are not being caught up in monkey politics.

# **Regarding Romance and Sex...**

I was asked to comment on this particular issue.

To all reading this, please understand that the Temple encourages you to be cautious in meeting other members.

No one here **must** meet with other members.

No one here needs to even get along with other members.

This is not a social club, and at no time does anyone need to meet **any** interpersonal standards of behavior except for those required for membership.

These requirements are:

No crime or advocacy of crime, no physical blood drinking, and courtesy extended to all other members.

Anytime anyone in the Temple implies you **must** or even **should** do anything social (and that **especially includes issues of romance or sex!**) then know you are dealing with someone who is **not** representing the Temple.

This experiment was designed to work for any serious individual even in complete isolation from any other member.

Meeting together in Cabal is icing on the cake for those who want it.

It is **not** the cake itself whatsoever!

We members are all adults here.

What you do with other adults socially is your business.

It is not the Temple's business.

Do not ever believe anyone's claim otherwise.

You may rely on this post as bedrock Temple truth on this matter.

#### Why should They Come to you?

"It is Their [the Undead] intentions and Their desires which must be accepted and appeased." -page 5, The Vampire Bible

I am writing this to the active members who have **not** validated the reality of the Undead Gods and who also have **not** posted their efforts to aid the Temple Mission this month.

The Temple Mission is the reason the Undead have permitted the Temple to come into existence.

The success of Temple Mission is what **They** want.

**You** are here to test the Teachings and master your world.

The Teachings are explicit that Contact with the Undead is what is required for you to Rise and succeed at the traditional path of Vampirism.

Once you **know** that They are real, everything changes for you.

And in order for you to know that They are real, They must be successfully enticed by you to Come to you and allow you to discover that They **are** real.

So what can you do to successfully "entice" Them to do so?

Perhaps you have been truly trying.

Perhaps you have gathered Lifeforce through Vampirism and performed Communion but ... nothing happens.

Well, consider the simple fact that if you do nothing other than Call to Them while ignoring Their stated Mission, what do you expect?

The Undead are not unconscious "forces" or "archetypes" or "imaginary friends".

The Undead are conscious entities with personalities.

They have desires and intentions.

One of these intentions is clearly spelled out in the Temple literature over and over again.

It is the Temple Mission - the effort to attract those of the Family who are unaware of their Heritage and to expose them to the Teachings for conscious attainment of the Vampire Condition.

In short, the Temple Mission is to save the lives of those of us who can be saved.

It is an effort of rescue for Family members still in ignorance.

It is an experiment for consciously approaching those with Potential - a survival outreach program - rather than only skimming off a very few individuals and then allowing the vast majority to simply die a final death.

This Temple exists to promote the Temple Mission.

This is what They desire.

So if you do nothing to help with Their Mission, but then Call to Them in Communion to help you... why should They come to you?

And if They **do** Come when Called, why exactly should They reveal Themselves to **you**?

Why **should** They give **you** the evidence you want?

Think about it.

You are asking Someone to help save **your** life but you are doing nothing to help **Them** save the lives of others just like you.

Why should They help you if you will not help Them?

Think it through.

Now a final word on this topic.

Unlike the nauseating human religions that send out legions of hypocritical idiots who go door to door, bothering people with their superstitious prattle, the Temple does **not** ask you to make a fool of yourself in any manner.

We do not ask you to sell flowers at airports, hand out "Chick tracts" in restrooms, or otherwise demean yourself by behaving in embarrassing or asinine ways.

To assist in the Mission we ask that you conduct yourself in a dignified and somewhat aloof manner.

The membership is even required to **not** discuss the Temple with others! This hardly lends itself to the common arguments of the evangelists who attempt to browbeat people with argumentation or "debate"!

Instead, we suggest confidentially even anonymously offering a Temple business card to someone who strikes you as perhaps having the Potential.

We suggest offering the Temple website URL to others in emails, in signatures on posts, and placing the URLs to the growing collection of Temple "bridge pages" designed to appeal to those in certain special interest groups.

None of these actions require personal risk nor embarrassment.

They can even be done anonymously.

But they do require some small effort.

And it is this effort that They will note when you Call to Them in Communion.

The Sacrifice of Lifeforce in Communion is not one of only Nightside Lifeforce.

Dayside Lifeforce - work - is the other side of the coin.

You cannot fool yourself.

Neither can you fool Them.

I fully realize that many of you reading this have not validated the reality of the Undead and what I have written here is **not** to be taken as an issue of faith.

The Temple is opposed to faith - holding beliefs without evidence to support them.

However, this is written because in order to gain the evidence you do desire with regard to validating the Undead, you need to offer a Sacrifice that will actually entice Them to Come to you such that They will reveal Themselves.

They need to find you worthy.

To those who have not validated the reality of the Undead and also have not posted your efforts to aid the Temple Mission, I hope I have better assisted you in understanding what you need to do.

The choice is yours.

The decision is Theirs.

# Am I a Vampire?

From time to time I receive notes from Dayside Vampires who tell me that they really are benefiting from the Dayside Secrets but have done virtually nothing with the Nightside.

I had a recent such note from a Dayside Vampire who has been here for years but has never performed the Calling in Communion!

He was wondering if he was a Vampire or not.

Some answers to that question follow.

First, Vampirism is a **religion**. The followers of this religion are "Vampires", which is one reason we capitalize the name. Just as followers of Christianity are Christians, followers of Buddhism are **B**uddhists, etc.

Second, the Temple designates non-Graded active members as **Dayside** Vampires very specifically. *Revelations* covers the details with regard to the Dayside perspective of the Vampire.

So, yes, even if your curiosity has never gotten the best of you and you have not done **any** Nightside testing (which really does boggle my mind as to how you could restrain yourself that way!), you **are** a Dayside Vampire.

Finally, if you apply yourself to the Six Earthly Secrets you are buying yourself time.

You are hopefully improving your health, better protecting yourself from harm, acquiring wealth that will contribute to your survival prospects, learning how to not screw up your own mind as well as how to better control other people, and setting up at least one of our two strategies to defeat death so that even if you do die you will have a good chance of coming back to life.

That buys you time.

Frankly, any member who is ignoring the Nightside must have some issues they need to work through involving Deathism. So by pursuing the Six Earthly Secrets you are undercutting those issues.

We expect that given time, you will overcome whatever hang ups are preventing you from testing the Nightside and will do so.

This is seduction to "the Fanged Side", pure and simple.

We know that if you don't quit or die, you will eventually come around.

So there is no rush.

The table is set and the goodies are there for you to feast on whenever you are ready.

If you are reading this as a member then you **are** Vampire.

You just may not yet be a Nightside or Twilight Vampire.

We can wait.

In the meantime, enjoy!

#### A Word To The Wise.

One of the reasons the Temple has Grade and Title for members is so that any member can know what portions of the Teachings that member has testified to having attained.

Anyone who enters the First Circle as an Initiate has determined from their personal experience that they are willing to make a lifetime commitment to master the Teachings.

Anyone who enters Second Circle as a Predator has determined from their personal experience that Lifeforce is real.

Anyone who enters Third Circle as a Priestess or Priest has determined from their personal experience that the Undead Gods are real.

As you all know, the Temple accepts as truthful the testimonies of the members to attain Grade and Title.

And that means that from time to time we will see members who will lie about testimony to gain Grade and Title - despite the fact that such "attainment" will not assist them in any meaningful way.

So how can any member know if a Graded member has truly attained their Grade and Title or if they are self-deluded or just deceptive?

There is one clear and unmistakable indicator that demonstrates whether or not the member has actually verified the reality of the Undead Gods as required for Third Circle.

Respectful obedience.

Anyone who has discovered that the Lords of Life exist and are real will immediately treat Their Guidance and Intentions with respect.

All egotistical "resistance" to the Undead and this, Their Temple, vanishes.

Instead the true member of the Priesthood wants to please and assist Those Who Have Risen.

The true member of the Priesthood will not undercut the Temple, the Teachings, or those who work in the administration of this Temple.

So how can you know when someone is truly at Third Circle?

You can know this by the manner in which they treat the Temple and the Teachings.

Those who have met the Gods will love and respect the Gods.

Anyone who truly achieves Third Circle wishes to mature and join the Gods in mastery.

Those who are only pretending they have done so reveal this pretense with every lingering bit of

sarcasm, questioning, and any denigrating statements ever made with regard to the Temple and the Undead.

Anyone in the Temple can rely on this simple method to identify those who have not truly achieved Third Circle.

Those who are truly Third Circle and up do not ever speak against the Temple, are loyal to the Temple and do not deviate from this perspective ... ever.

Why?

Because they now know!

Respectful obedience. Any who claim to be of at least Third Circle and fail to show this are still not at that level.

They still need to complete that level of knowledge.

A word to the wise.

#### We are what we are: Predators.

*The Vampire Bible* introduces new candidates for Temple membership to the essentials required to practice our religion.

The Lifeforce messageboard works to assist members in strengthening their mastery of the human world to elevate their perspective to one of authentic power and control.

We expect any new member here to take no more than ninety days to set up the foundation for Dayside mastery by the application of the Secrets listed in the locked threads and compiled in the *Tome of Dayside Mastery*.

#### Dayside and Nightside.

What anyone truly considers to be "real" we refer to as their "Dayside".

Therefore much of what is in *The Vampire Bible* is "Nightside" since for most who first come to the Temple such things as Lifeforce, Lifeforce Vampirism, out-of-body experience, the Undead Gods, real Magic, and so forth are still outside of what they know to be "real".

What I am about to write will require that you set aside any current personal problems you may have with treating the Nightside as real to grasp this essential truth about the Vampire.

I want to briefly remind everyone reading this about an oft overlooked fact of what we are.

Everyone here is expected to be practicing the Nightside techniques outlined and explained in *The Vampire Bible*.

While discussion of personal efforts are restricted to Graded membership in the appropriate Graded forums, *The Vampire Bible* remains the essential guide to what is required to practice and master the Teachings.

#### The Predator of Humans

This phrase acts as a stumbling block to many. They assume that a predator must kill prey and that somehow the Vampire must be a killer of humans to be a predator of humans.

However, the predator-prey relationship is actually all a matter of "who eats whom" (page 25, *The Vampire Bible*).

Eating is the critical defining word here.

The act of Vampirism is the "eating" of the Lifeforce of humans *however* this does not require killing or harming the human at all. In point of fact, the human continuously radiates Lifeforce like a water

fountain almost all of the time.

To help make this point crystal clear *The Vampire Bible* states on page 28,

The Vampire does not kill the human any more than a dairy farmer destroys his herd by drawing off the milk from their udders.

This image does not seem to match the ferociousness of the animal predator who seizes prey in his jaws and as an image of a predator seems rather sedate.

This however is not the whole picture.

In *The Vampire Bible* we are instructed in how to perform Lifeforce Vampirism in stages as the Vampire masters this skill, moving from instinctual to conscious control over the Act. On page 22, the four developing stages of Vampirism are outlined going from physical contact required to contact by mind alone.

The developing Vampire usually finds it easiest to achieve Lifeforce Vampirism in that specific sequence. Touching allows for Vampirism to work with greater ease and certainty than by sight, and sight more easily than by sympathetic contact, etc.

Thus we see members who will strive to validate Lifeforce Vampirism when coming in close contact with human beings.

Yet whether performed by touch or by mind alone, all of these stages of developing Vampirism are usually performed by the member while in the body, while physically awake.

This is not the most powerful form at all.

The description of being a Predator comes with the truly most powerful form of Vampirism.

And it is why we are what we are: Vampires.

#### **Supreme Vampirism**

This "higher level" of Vampirism is described in clear, concise words in *The Vampire Bible* on page 18:

The most refined source of the Lifeforce energy for Living Vampires is thus found in the astral bodies of humans while the humans are sleeping or in some other way not conscious. We often travel to the sides of sleeping humans to draw off the accumulated store of their life energy from the drowsing astral form which rests near.

This is the Predator of humans.

This is the Vampire.

When our bodies go to sleep, we Rise and go to the side of sleeping humans. There the human rests,

unconscious, open, unassuming.

We Drink deeply from the mortal.

We Take from the mortal.

We Eat their Life even though it does no harm to them to do so.

If you have not Risen to have this experience, *The Vampire Bible* is quite clear that you should strive to do so.

You are instructed to do what you can to Take Lifeforce, to perform Communion, and to seek to Rise.

Each time you close your eyes for sleep, the opportunity to Rise and Hunt comes to you.

#### "The Dreamer Eats the Sleeper."

Thus we are the Predators of the human. We do not kill or harm the living, but we do Take.

We Eat.

And from this higher and more refined Lifeforce that we Eat, we grow and evolve.

These things are true whether you have validated them for yourself or not.

Your duty to the Temple and to your own survival is to do so.

You have the necessary Tools.

Hopefully now you also have a better understanding.

The Vampire is the Predator of the human

We are what we are.

# Financial Independence.

The reason the Temple requires that you create a true and complete plan that will lead to financial independence to attain Graded membership is two-fold:

#### 1. Results.

Your plan will work only if you understand why you will need to keep following it even when it **appears** to not be working.

This is **always** the case.

**Every** investment plan will go through periods of poor results or even losses. There is no avoiding this reality.

If you do not fully grasp what you are doing and why, then the first time your plan seems to be failing you will quit and that is exactly what 99% of the humans do.

They allow a short-sighted (Deathist!) perspective to cloud their rational judgment.

Until and unless **you** fully understand why your plan should work over what time scale and with what degree of possible loss, you will not attain financial independence.

You will only bail out at the worst possible time and lose money.

Just like most human beings do, year after year.

#### 2. Mastery.

When **you** are certain your plan will work because **you** understand it, you will not only follow through so that you achieve the goal but you will **emotionally** acquire the calm certainty that comes with **mastery** of this aspect of living.

You will achieve the long view of acquiring wealth over time to achieve financial freedom.

You will **feel** and **think** differently from the human slaves who are slaves because they are trapped by short-term (Deathist!) perspectives.

The only way to achieve the Immortal perspective is to practice it actively until it becomes **your** normal view of things.

Nothing less will do.

These two reasons are why we will commonly reject incomplete plans for financial Independence.

Please understand that the purpose of your creating a complete plan for financial independence is to help **you**.

If **you** do not have a viable plan that you fully understand and can stick to even when the inevitable reverses happen, then **you** will not benefit at all.

I hope this better explains why the Temple requires this step for all those seeking Grade.

This is the Religion of the Rulers.

To Rule others you must first Rule yourself!

# Time Enough for Love.

The following was an email exchange with a potential member. I thought it might be worth sharing here.

-----

You are a very considerate and caring person. I do not understand why, but I have always thought of Vampires as being very cold and rude. It must be a misnomer due to the fact that you are not allowed to reveal much information about yourselves. I have always yearned to live forever and I cannot wait to become one of You.

Thank you for your kind words.

It is always the perception of personal insecurity that drives discourteous behavior.

The need to prove something about one's position or character stems from the simple fact that those who feel compelled to do so lack security and confidence.

When one comes to view life as potentially unending then priorities change, truly long-term goals become realistic and are planned for, and an understanding of why those who expect they are running out of time behave as they do.

I do not fault a cat for behaving like a cat and not like a dog. It does not upset me that a cat has the traits it does. In the same way, as the reality of authentic life extension dawns on the Temple member, that member tends to increasingly drop the need to play the usual primate dominance games that permeate all of normal human social interactions.

If you can and do proceed, it may very well be that you will discover these are common traits for Vampires: calm, patience, persistence, and acceptance.

There is also "time enough for love", as author Robert Heinlein once put it. Not just the usual sexual love, but an authentic love of life and living.

Just breathing can be a lasting pleasure in and of itself.

#### Nightside topics.

The **only** reason we do not go in depth on Nightside issues here in the Dayside forums is because years ago, when this message board started, we tried to do so and utter confusion resulted.

What you now consider the Dayside will change as you validate more of the Nightside issues.

For example, for most people who first arrive here, the idea of Lifeforce Vampirism may seem ridiculous, a piece of superstitious nonsense.

By the time you have validated Lifeforce and Lifeforce Vampirism (two requirements for achieving Second Circle) those two items will be considered by you to be Dayside!

You will **know** from personal experience that they are very, very real - as real as tables, cars, mountains, bridges and computer screens.

So what happens when you put together a group of people some of whom have a wider version of reality than others and then try to talk about such things?

Well, we learned that you only create chaos and confusion but very little useful communication.

So please understand that we do not cower in fear from discussing Nightside issues here.

We have learned to not discuss as real those things that those reading have not proven as real.

So despite the fact that *The Vampire Bible* spells out the Nightside of this Temple in quite a bit of detail, to include treating as totally real the Undead Gods, Communion, Lifeforce Vampirism, bodyshifting, body-hopping, the War of the Gods, the Coming Apocalypse, etc., we are careful to not treat these as "real" in an un-Graded Dayside forum.

Take the out-of-body experience (OBE) for example. I have had conscious, fully objectively-validated OBEs since I was five years old. They are a definite part of **my** Dayside because they are as real to me as bread and butter.

However, I would venture to say that this is not true for probably most of those who are here as Dayside Vampires.

So if I were to expect others to "respect" only my word and I were to discuss OBEs as a fact with others here, I would really be asking those members to **believe** me and to take what I am saying on **faith**.

We do not do that here.

"Test Everything. Believe Nothing."

Instead, we ask that the Dayside Vampire roll up his or her sleeves and work on Nightside issues as directed in *The Vampire Bible*.

It is just that we avoid discussing these issues here out of practicality and courtesy, respecting the reality of the situation as it is.

Every so often when I am pressed to the wall to answer a question about the Nightside from someone who has not validated the issue being questioned I will finally suggest that they take it up in an OBE.

"Get out of the crib if you want to talk with the Adults."

I am well aware of the fact that many new members buy and read *The Vampire Bible*, and then subscribe to active membership just to discuss Nightside issues.

Then they may feel frustrated because they see that the Temple places a strong emphasis on practical, "ordinary" goals such as building wealth, improving health, securing physical immortality, building personal inner strength and better manipulation skills in dealing with human beings.

I realize they want to deal with floating out of their bodies, flying to a human victim, Drinking that Blood (Lifeforce), meeting with the Undead Gods, performing powerful feats of magic, etc.

And guess what?

Just talking or posting about such things will do **nothing** to accomplish them.

The Vampire Bible explains what to do.

To paraphrase Benjamin Franklin, "The Undead Gods help those who help themselves."

Every time you close your eyes to sleep you have the opportunity to experience these things and prove that they are most real.

The Nightside always beckons.

In time, if you pursue it, it will become your Dayside as well.

Strive on!

#### Feeling overwhelmed?

Have you been looking at the Dayside Secrets and feeling that there is just too much to tackle?

Or you seem hung up on proceeding with one particular area?

Maybe the Money Secrets seem impossible? You just find you are unable to face digging into what is needed to create a plan for financial independence? Thinking about buying stocks is something that makes your eyes cross?

Or do our technical suggestions for defeating death look like something a little worse than entering and completing medical school? Or the idea of having to find and buy life insurance seems complicated beyond repair?

Perhaps you have some other issue that seems to stand as a tall brick wall between you and some other Temple-recommended goal. You live in a country that is antagonistic to this or that goal. You have a personal health issue that is unique. You have a marriage partner problem. You have a privacy problem.

Whatever the issue or problem, if you are feeling somewhat overwhelmed then I have some simple suggestions for you that can help.

#### 1. Relax.

Take a deep breath. Let it out. (Pull in that Lifeforce from the individuals you have been Feeding on!).

Rome was not built in a day. There is not wild rush required. This is not a race.

You may have just realized that there are all these answers.

You do not have to apply them all in the next sixty minutes!

#### 2. Prioritize.

After reading through the different Secrets to get a general overview (if you haven't done this, this is what you should do next), I would suggest starting with the Immortality Secrets locked thread and taking five minutes to perform the first step for defeating death.

Yes, this is only a beginning. No, it may not be enough to save your life (though it might).

However, if you start in on doing something real to gain immortality, then you have all the time you need to deal with **anything** else.

Think about that.

Really.

If you really get the fact that you might have **forever** to do whatever you want or need to do, **will you** still **feel overwhelmed?** 

I don't think so.

You will find in the instructions for each of the Dayside Secrets locked threads the suggestion that working on any one will help with the other five. However, immortality is the key to the other five. Secure yourself against death and you will be well on your way to accomplishing all that you need with the other ones as well.

#### 3. Down chunk.

"A journey of one thousand miles begins with a single step."

It is necessary to step in the right direction, and to continue to take more steps after that first one, but **any** task needs to be broken down into the steps that you need to take to complete it.

How do you eat an elephant?

One bite at a time.

A large part of feeling overwhelmed is not knowing what the first bite is, and then the next, and the next, and so on.

So a critical part of getting something done is to figure out what are the bite-size steps you need to take to do it!

Once you know that then it becomes easy.

If the first step feels overwhelming, break it down into smaller chunks or steps until you get to steps that you **can** take.

The Apollo Moon Mission was a HUGE project. But it was accomplished because the mission was down chunked into steps that could be taken, one after the other, until the job was done and the astronauts all safely returned to the Earth.

## 4. Write down the steps.

Your conscious mental capacity has been measured to contain only 7 plus or minus 2 separate chunks of information at best. If you try to simply remember ten unrelated items in mind at least one will drop into amnesia.

Why fight your nature?

Write down the plan and the steps you will need to take to complete it.

If you do, you will almost immediately discover a sense of relief and enthusiasm.

You will feel relief because before you wrote it down you were feeling the tension of trying to just remember everything - and you knew you couldn't really do it!

You will feel enthusiasm because once you see the plan written down with steps that you realize you can take, it will be seen by you are possible to do.

Motivation happens anytime you want something and know what to do to be able to get it and believe this can really happen.

### **Summary.**

If you follow these four steps you will reduce and finally remove feeling overwhelmed by ANYTHING.

And that is a special Secret to remember all by itself.

Now ... get to work!!!

#### What about crime?

Every so often I get an email about this topic. I am including this exchange as an example.

\_\_\_\_\_

When I first found out about TOV, the rules were don't murder humans or animals, don't drink blood, no criminal activity, and no revealing Temple secrets to outsiders.

I did not know about anything pertaining to past criminal history. Are there any convictions that would disqualify someone from being a TOV member (other than murder)? And if so, what are they?

No offense intended when I say this, but why does the Temple request such a goody two-shoes, holier than thou appearance from it's members?

I mean, I can understand common sense things like don't draw attention, don't be a hedonist, don't rape, pillage, murder, etc. Okay, I get that.

But why such strict adherence by Vampires to human laws?

Humans don't even obey human laws.

From the Dayside perspective, I can understand wanting to avoid bad publicity for the Temple. But is there a Nightside perspective also? If so, what?

To answer your question, Temple Law exists as is to enable the Temple, which is a **public** experiment, to continue to exist, as well as to protect the members of the Temple from vicious criminals.

Any public organization will be shut down that advocates or permits crime.

Those who feel constrained by laws lack personal power and smarts.

We expect our members to become smart and leverage reality as it is to achieve success.

The Six Secrets of the Dayside are designed to assist members in doing exactly that.

Those who seek the "shortcut" of crime are simply short-sighted and stupid.

As explained before, the nature of any former crime is assessed by the Temple on a case by case basis.

Violent crime is of special concern. So-called "white collar" crime is not.

For example, violent crimes involving physically threatened or harmed victims are not acceptable to the Temple.

For example, non-violent, victimless crimes are of no special interest to us.

The Temple has an obligation to attempt to provide a safe environment for the members to interact with each other. We strive to meet that obligation as best we can.

However neither is anyone who wants to run wild in the streets thumbing their nose at the law welcome as a member of this Temple.

We consider such behavior to be all too human. And very immature.

From the Nightside this is Their Will.

We only seek those with Potential.

Temple Law is as written.

One Life. One Chance.

We mean it.

### "Explaining away" the Temple.

The following was an email reply to a well-meaning Graded member of the Temple who was suggesting that a public FAQ might be devoted to dealing with public disinformation about the origin of the Temple.

-----

The desire for those who wish to set aside the real challenge of the Temple or to explain their personal failure in testing the Teachings (or both) results in a need to "explain it away".

One common way to do this is to make it as mundane as possible. This can be approached by seeking to either show that the people involved are not perfect (no one is!) or that they were or are lying about everything.

The true test of the Temple as you well know is not with any such thing that is "visible".

If someone wants to determine if the Temple (which IS the Teachings) is true, then they have to personally and actually test it.

If they fail, they can blame themselves or blame the Temple but the stark reality is that lack of evidence is **not** proof of anything.

Those who succeed do not have to blame anyone.

Those who succeed do not need an FAQ.

Those who succeed have proof.

As I have written on many occasions, I was partially instrumental in the creation of the Temple, but I was not and am not alone.

Somebody had to type out the words, arrange for the printing, and so forth.

I was not and am not alone in that effort either.

But guess what?

Those who are intent with these issues are not interested in discovering that this is all true.

They only want to remove that threatening possibility.

Over the years, when I have run into people who concern themselves with these issues I have **never once** found that repeating to them the plain truth does any good at all.

Once they buy into any explanations that denigrate the Temple that seems to be the end of it for them.

They do not test the Nightside.

They muckrake.

They do not verify the Nightside.

They believe what they wish to.

I appreciate your desire to want to once and for all clear the air on these topics, but we have long ago published the true story.

We are not generating any lies.

They are.

And they have no desire to do otherwise that I have ever seen.

The door is always open for anyone to correct themselves, but it is quite clear that some people would rather be dead right and buried six feet than discover that they were actually wrong!

Active members have not just sat on their bottoms and wagged their tongues.

They have and are taking real actions and it is **they** who can truly discover the truth.

But for the public?

That seems completely pointless to me as they have ignored these facts whenever they have been presented in the past.

Words are cheap and actions dear.

It requires action to test the Temple Teachings.

That is not always easy.

But then, the Temple is not for everyone.

Only for some very rare and talented ones.

Thank you for your kind suggestion in any case.

### Those who fail the Temple.

As is standard practice, we remove any discussion of former members of the Temple. I wish to take a moment to explain why the Temple follows this policy.

First, we do not give credence to liars or fools by doing anything more than to sweep them out of the way as we attend to the serious work at hand.

Those who come to the Temple and testify to experiences and actions taken to achieve Grade are given the benefit of the doubt as honest and trustworthy.

If some single element of a Grade testimonial is later determined to have been in error by the member who realizes that either they misinterpreted the actual requirements or have deluded themselves, the Temple will usually simply ask them to attend to accomplishing in fact what they have realized they missed.

If they reveal that they were simply lying about their testimonies then the Grade is removed and depending on the context of the deceit their active membership may be suspended or their complete membership terminated.

It all depends upon the context of the issues involved.

However, those who defiantly lie and betray our trust are not brooded over nor are they singled out for extensive analysis.

They are set aside as the mortals they have proven themselves to be and henceforth ignored.

Second, we do not publish quotes or links from such untrustworthy individuals here as we frankly do not wish to lend any importance to their nonsense.

Everything in the Temple requires that you be honest with yourself first.

If you honestly test the Temple Teachings then it is possible to validate those Teachings.

"Do not deny what you verify."

It is important to keep notes on what you have accomplished as you work through the Teachings as there is a natural tendency to "forget" what you have learned unless you make the effort to remember.

This is at least in part because you are moving against the normal cultural tendencies to follow the herd

and there are real psychological pressures to simply believe as they do.

For this reason if no other it is critical to be completely honest with yourself and with the Temple as well.

In the sense of allowing your grasp of the Teachings to strengthen and become reliable, the Temple acts as an anchor of support and a litmus test of verification.

Finally, the Temple does not bar any member from examining what anyone writes anywhere. We fully expect that if you encounter claims against the Temple that you will not simply believe what others say.

We expect that you will use good common sense to realize that when someone has lied to you once, that they will be very willing to lie to you again.

Anyone who has testified to Grade who then leaves and denigrates the Temple, has already lied to you once.

They lied to you by testifying to a Grade that they did not achieve.

Why would they not lie to you again?

Their motivation for further lies is even higher since now they have demonstrated that they DID lie.

So understand that if you go "slumming" where you read the words of those who failed the simple requirements of the Temple's test of honesty, you will only find those who must make the Temple wrong rather than own up to their own failure.

"If you lie down with dogs you will get up with fleas."

My suggestion is to simply stay true to your own intentions.

The Temple has six critical Dayside goals to be set up and achieved.

The Temple has a Nightside agenda for all members to practice and validate.

The Temple offers a Grade system for those who actually accomplish specific goals and wish to work more intensely on Nightside and Twilight goals.

If you go looking for criticisms of the Teachings that is exactly what you will find - from those who have failed.

If you spend the same amount of time promoting your own goals you will only get to those goals more swiftly.

The Temple does not require that you believe anything we offer.

We don't have to.

It is all true and if you are willing to do so, you can prove that to your own satisfaction.

It is just that simple.

### Vampires lead and rule, but do not follow.

Compartmentalization of conflicting assumptions and beliefs is a very common mental trait we all possess.

For example, Objectivists, the followers of the philosophy of Ayn Rand, do not believe in life after death but reject physical immortality for the same reasons as true believers in fundamentalist Christian religions. They have simply compartmentalized their opposing views - just as the Christians do.

More examples are the classic conflicts of traditional Christians who are supposed to "turn the other cheek" but then conduct wars. "The Patriot" with Mel Gibson demonstrates this kind of conflicting compartmentalization as does Gary Cooper's classic film "Friendly Persuasion".

So, in the same way, I would suggest that it is entirely possible to "be" a classic "born again" Christian by choosing to assume those beliefs in context and then choosing other perspective or beliefs otherwise.

This goes against the grain of those who worship universal "integrity" above all else. However that "god" does not admit to the mental ability we all have - compartmentalization!

It's just a part of human nature and something that the Vampire can choose to do consciously as required.

For example, if you are talking to a small child who believes in Santa Claus are you flexible enough to be able to enter into that same belief at least while interacting with the child?

Or as another example, if you are talking to an older man who is a kind hearted Mormon can you allow for working within his perspectives and understand how he sees the world?

In both cases, the inflexible individual would be unwilling to "compromise". The outcome of such interactions would be argument, debate, and in the case of at least the child an unnecessary painful doubt in the Christmas morning magic of Santa.

For those who are out to "change the world" such "no compromises" approach to life are common. They have a cause to defend and promote, rather than just enjoying life as it is, which I would contend is a far more Vampiric perspective.

We seek to blend in, not stand out.

We seek to not attract undue attention to who and what we are.

This flexibility is very useful. As I have suggested before, life is not a war. Life simply is.

Additionally, the Temple motto is really the beginning of wisdom, not the end.

After you choose to "Test Everything, Believe Nothing" it is perfectly understandable that you will come to draw conclusions based on what you experience as a consequence.

Then that ladder will have enabled you to climb to a perspective that may enable a wider, more inclusive view of reality as it is.

I find it quite easy to don and doff belief systems as required by my surroundings and company, and see flexibility as a valuable skill.

Ultimately, my overall perspective is that of the Temple Twilight but from a Dayside view the best I can offer is to simply suggest that religions should serve you as a Vampire. To reverse that is to follow a religion.

Vampires lead and rule, but do not really follow.

Thus ends Bloodlines Volume Three.

# How to Create Your Own Astral Temple

Ever wanted to visit someone's dream, or go to a place in your mind where you can talk to a friend that is sleeping. Create your own Astral Temple with your mind.

# **Steps**

- Construct your temple any way you wish. This is your area.
- Visualize the outside of your temple first. This can be a pyramid or any shape you choose, and made of any materials you choose (they should be strong).
- 3. Walk through the door.
- Create your own altar, carpet or floor, any size, shape or color. You can add anything to your temple that you wish. Burning lamps of fire, huge statues, velvet walls of red, blue, or black, seats with cushions lining the walls for meeting with the gods, or friends. huge golden or silver incense burners- these are just a few ideas.
- 5. Know what some uses for your astral temple could be. Uses for your astral temple:
- Ritual
- Meditation (all kinds and astral work)
- Telepathic communication with other human beings
- Meeting with gods
- Here is a place where you can communicate and ask questions.
- O. You can also go there and focus on certain issues requiring psychic ability or communicate telepathically.
- To communicate telepathically with another human being, go to your temple at a time when he/she is sleeping and 'will' his/her soul to your temple. Do this by visualization. When he/she is present, if you wish to influence him/her, separate his/her soul drawing out the light body and speak to the light body, giving short commands in the present tense.
- If you wish to discuss something of importance, speak as you would as if he/she is actually sitting across from you. You can also tell him/her that he/she will not remember the actual meeting taking place when he/she awakens, but will obey all commands

# Dayside - Interpersonal:

# Intrapersonal Deidentification and Dayside Mastery

As explained in the *Tome of Dayside Mastery* as well as in *The* V *Ampire Predator Bible*, the Deidentification Procedure is the Teaching that best <u>leads</u> to the development of V *Ampiric Will*.

What has perhaps not been emphasized sufficiently is that the use of deidentification not only allows one to develop Will to overcome obstacles and achieve goals, but it also is the means by which you can overcome a wide range of inhibitions, fears, frustrations, self-doubts, apathy, anger, despair, grief, and other such limiting emotions that can otherwise block you from setting goals as well as taking steps to achieve those goals.

By discovering as an experience that you are not the feelings and thoughts that stop you, you will reduce them or dissolve them.

If you do this with careful attention you can completely dissolve any blocking thought or emotion immediately.

Look at the Dayside Secret that is the hardest for you to deal with.

WHICH ONE IS IT?

Now which part of it is the greatest problem?

How are you describing the droblem?

Are you saying, "This just seems too complicated"?

Are you saying, "I just feel overwhelmed"?

Are you saying, "I will never be able to do this"?

FIND OUT WHAT WORDS SEEM TO DESCRIBE THE BLOCK

Now does the block also have any feelings attached to it? Frustration? Anger? Exhaustion? Despair? Boredom?

Try to zero in on what the actual experience is that is this "block".

Dlease take the time to do this right now.

Okay.

Now you should have an experience of what has been a block for you. You have words and some feeling or feelings.

Good.

Now apply deidentification.

<u>Where</u> do you feel this feeling? Is it in your throat? Your belly? Your face?

If you feel something you must feel it in your body somewhere.

So where is it?

Be certain you can find it as an experience.

Good.

Now just let it be there as you remember that this feeling is there and you are behind your eyes observing it, feeling it.

Notice how this feeling is not "you".

Be present behind your eyes and feel the feeling.

Do this right now.

JUST LET THE FEELING BE THERE.

As you do this you will notice that the feeling changes.

It may change suddenly or slowly, a little at a time or greatly. It may even vanish.

However the most important thing you are doing is separating "you" from this experience.

Deidentification allows you to remove the power these blocks hold over you by recognizing that you are not them.

For example, if you say "I am frustrated" that implies that you are identified with the feeling and thoughts of frustration.

However, you have never really been frustrated. You have only <u>felt</u> frustration, just as you can feel any object in the world around you such as a telephone or a pen.

Experiencing this separation of "you" from a block is the very magical key to giving you easy power over that block.

Realizing as an experience that you are not the words and feelings of something that is holding you back allows you to discover that <u>it</u> never was holding you back at all!

The block never had any power to inhibit you.

Any power the block had was power you gave to it.

For example, if tackling the suggestions for investing seems to give you a feeling of "I can't do that stuff" - frustration - then understand that the frustration never stopped you.

You stopped trying <u>only because</u> you felt the frustration.

THE FRUSTRATION CONNED YOU.

It whispered in your ear, "You can't do this" and because you felt this was true, because it made you feel weak or tense or whatever feelings came with the words, you chose to give up.

So when you pay attention to the block, the words, the feelings while remembering that you are there behind your eyes, separate from the experience, the experience loses its ability to con you.

You realize that these are only words and feelings. Nothing more.

Once you experience this, then you realize that you have the freedom to choose what to do or not do.

You always did.

It is a liberating feeling indeed to get this.

# ALL BLOCKS CAN BE DIS-EMPOWERED AND DISSOLVED.

Many members come here with all kinds of beliefs and disbeliefs, assumptions and expectations.

Many of these can block you from actually applying the Teachings, from testing the Teachings.

For example, there is the concern for what others might think

There is the concern that there is no Nightside.

There is the worry that you may be just fooling yourself.

Take each and every one of these ideas and assumptions and apply the Deindentification Procedure to them and you can remove their power and dissolve them from your awareness.

Let's take "What will other people think?"

We have some members who come here with strong materialist

PERSPECTIVES AND DO NOT WANT TO LOOK LIKE FOOLS TO THEIR SKEPTICAL FRIENDS.

What does that feel like? What would it feel like for someone you know to laugh at you for "being a fool"?

Do you feel that in your neck? In your chest? Where?

What are the words that describe this event? Embarrassment? Frustration? What?

Now go behind your eyes <u>while</u> you experience this concern with the judgment of others.

Feel the feeling but be separate from it as you feel it.

You are in one place (behind your eyes) and the experience is somewhere else, perhaps in your body, perhaps in an imaginary situation, perhaps in a memory of a situation somewhere.

Just let the experience be there while you are there too - seperate from it.

Do this until you actually "get" how you are not these feeling or thoughts or imaginings or memories.

It might take a minute.

Just do it.

Now if you have done it, notice the change.

Has the emotional charge on that experience dropped down? Has it perhaps vanished?

If so then this issue will <u>never again</u> have the same impact on your own thought and feelings and actions ever again.

You are now more free to choose what <u>you</u> want to do instead of

# BREAKING FREE OF LIMITS

As you encounter more and more blocks and apply the Deidentification Principle to them you will discover that you are <u>dissolving</u>many problems that were actually being created and perpetuated by you.

YOU WILL INCREASINGLY DISCOVER THAT YOU CAN REMOVE BLOCKS, FEARS, INHIBITIONS, DOUBTS, DISBELIEFS, IRRITATIONS, IMPATIENCE, FRUSTRATIONS, AND ALL MANNER OF UNPLEASANT FEELINGS BY SIMPLY FOLLOWING THIS SIMPLE PROCEDURE.

The human bows to the slavery of his <u>mind</u> and emotions. If he feels bad he is stopped in his tracks. If he feels guilt he runs to hide. If he feels fear he freezes. If he feels frustration he gives up.

We. the transhuman, the  ${f V}$ ampire, take a different path.

Limiting thoughts and feelings become challenges to defuse and disempower. Fears are overcome. Frustrations bypassed. Doubts quelled. Disbeliefs discarded.

This allows us to then set goals and achieve them.

SO THE NEXT TIME YOU FIND ONE OF THE DAYSIDE SECRETS CAUSES YOU TO FEEL BAD INSTEAD OF GOOD, FRUSTRATED INSTEAD OF CHALLENGED, PLEASE REFER TO THIS POST AND APPLY THE DEIDENTIFICATION DROCEDURE.

Your Innermost Self is the Dragon.

Allow the Fire of the Dragon to incinerate anything that stands in your way.

Stay strong.

# S.M.A.R.T. Goal Setting Strategy

At work, some time ago, I was introduced to a goal setting strategy that utilizes an acronym S.M.A.R.T. It works well for me, and so I'd like to share it (and I did a search here and didn't find any previous posts on this topic).

Making a S.M.A.R.T. goal means the goal should be:

- "Specific" "Measurable" "Attainable"
- 'Realistic"
  'Timely"

# Specific: **Ouote:**

Goals should be straightforward and emphasize what you want to happen. Specifics help us to focus our efforts and clearly define what we are going to do.

Specific is the What, Why, and How of the SMART model.

- \* WHAT are you going to do? Use action words such as direct, organize, coordinate, lead, develop, plan, build etc.
- \* WHY is this important to do at this time? What do you want to ultimately accomplish?
- \* HOW are you going to do it? (By...)

Ensure the goals you set is very specific, clear and easy. Instead of setting a goal to <u>lose weight</u> or be healthier, set a specific goal to lose 2cm off your waistline or to walk 5 miles at an aerobically challenging pace.

#### Measurable:

#### Quote:

If you can't measure it, you can't manage it. In the broadest sense, the whole goal statement is a measure for the project; if the goal is accomplished, the is a success. However, there are usually several short-term or small measurements that can be built into the goal.

Choose a goal with measurable progress, so you can see the change occur. How will you see when you reach your goal? Be specific! "I want to read 3 chapter books of 100 pages on my own before my birthday" shows the specific target to be measure. "I want to be a good reader" is not as measurable.

Establish concrete criteria for measuring progress toward the attainment of each goal you set. When you measure your progress, you stay on track, reach your <u>target</u> dates, and experience the exhilaration of achievement that spurs you on to continued effort required to reach your goals.

#### Attainable:

#### Quote:

When you identify goals that are most important to you, you begin to figure out ways you can make them come true. You develop that attitudes, abilities, skills, and financial capacity to reach them. Your begin seeing previously overlooked opportunities to bring yourself closer to the achievement of your goals.

Goals you set which are too far out of your reach, you probably won't commit to doing. Although you may start with the best of intentions, the knowledge that it's too much for you means your subconscious will keep reminding you of this fact and will stop you from even giving it your best.

A goal needs to stretch you slightly so you feel you can do it and it will need a real commitment from you. For instance, if you aim to lose 20lbs in one week, we all know that isn't achievable. But setting a goal to loose 1lb and when you've achieved that, aiming to lose a further 1lb, will keep it achievable for you.

The feeling of success which this brings helps you to remain motivated.

# Realistic:

### Quote:

This is not a synonym for "easy." Realistic, in this case, means "do-able." It means that the learning curve is not a vertical slope; that the skills needed to do the work are available; that the project fits with the overall strategy and goals of the organization. A realistic project may push the skills and knowledge of the people working on it but it shouldn't break them.

Devise a plan or a way of getting there which makes the goal realistic. The goal needs to be realistic for you and where you are at the moment. A goal of never again eating sweets, cakes, crisps and chocolate may not be realistic for someone who really enjoys these foods.

For instance, it may be more realistic to set a goal of eating a piece of fruit each day instead of one sweet item. You can then choose to work towards reducing the amount of sweet products gradually as and when this feels realistic for you.

Be sure to set goals that you can attain with some effort! Too difficult and you set the stage for failure, but too low sends the message that you aren't very capable. Set the bar high enough for a satisfying achievement!

Timely:
Quote:
Set a timeframe for the goal: for next week, in three months, by fifth grade. Putting an end point on your goal gives you a clear target to work towards.

If you don't set a time, the commitment is too vague. It tends not to happen because you feel you can start at any time. Without a time limit, there's no urgency to start taking action now.

Time must be measurable, attainable and realistic.

Everyone will benefit from goals and objectives if they are SMART. SMART, is the instrument to apply in setting your goals and objectives.

# Deathism is a Religion

Deathism is the advocacy of death as somehow "good" or "desirable" for the individual.

It occurred to me that it is actually a faith-based religion with a set of beliefs none of which are true when examined for what they really mean.

Deathism is actually the largest mass religion in the world as all the major mass religions are subsets of it to include all of Christianity, Islam, Judaism, Buddhism, Taoism, etc.

I thought it might be very useful to ask members to suggest some of the beliefs that Deathism holds to be true as well as to look at each such belief to see if it really makes sense or not.

I'll kick off with a few that I hear most commonly.

Please feel <u>free</u> to add your own examples and suggestions.

This should be fun and, for some of our newer members, hopefully enlightening!

#### THE BELIEF THAT I WON'T DIE ...NOW.

#### l ogical flaws:

Anyone can die at anytime due to a car accident or even a sudden, unexpected heart attack.

What the Deathist is having faith in is that he or she will be "lucky". Usually the Deathist will try to explain this fallacy in reason by suggesting the statistics.

However if <u>you</u> happen to be hit in a head-on car accident because an oncoming driver sneezed, had a heart attack or stroke, or was drunk and crossed into your lane, you are dead 100%.

Or if you happen to have born with a weakened blood vessel in the brain you could drop dead anytime, just like the superb athlete martial artist Bruce Lee did.

If it happens to you then the statistics are meaningless other than the one that is the you-are-100%-dead statistic.

We have had members in the last ten years with that 100% statistic who are rotting in the ground ("a decent Christian burial").

POST YOUR EXAMPLES OF THIS DEATHIST BELIEF AND WHY THEY ARE IRRATIONAL BELOW THIS POST.

"I am too young to die anytime soon."

LOGICAL FLAW:

But drunk drivers or brain aneurysms or heart attacks happen even to newborn babies.

Your age is no <u>defense</u> against death.

Thinking so is a common belief in the religion of Deathism.

"I come from people with long <u>life</u> spans."

LOGICAL FLAW:

First, I can assure you that in your genetic family tree there were members of your family that died younger than you are now.

Second, your biological tendency to live a long life can be cut off at any point by a car accident even if you are not driving.

Having faith in your genetic tendency to live longer does not protect you from death at this moment at all.

It is a superstitious and irrational idea to think so.

"I am very cautious and careful and always take safety precautions."

Logical flaw:

And if you are sleeping in a building which catches on fire and you do not wake up before dying of carbon monoxide poisoning, all of those cautious behaviors in your past will not save you.

Or if you have a sudden stroke or heart attack, all of the care you took in looking both ways before crossing a street will not matter.

Or if you are in a car that is hit head on by a drunk or high driver, your fastened safety belt will not save your body from being killed by the engine block that passes through your torso while severing your head from your body. (Ask any EMT!).

Knock on wood and carry a rabbit's foot. These beliefs are on the same level as the religious belief that Deathism holds that if you are very careful then you will not die anytime soon.

That is crap.

"Death is something I don't concern myself with because it is far off in the future."

LOGICAL ERROR:

Unless it doesn't.

Unless it could happen tomorrow ...or in the next ten seconds.

"Denial" of the facts of reality is an important part of the faith of Deathism.

Deathism converts younger people by also helping them pretend that everything will always be just fine and that death is just something that "might" happen to them<u>someday</u> "but I'll cross that bridge when I get there."

Sure.

The fact of the matter is that this is the future of a moment ago.

Death can happen at anytime to anyone.

Pretending that it won't happen "just yet" is an irrational belief and a prime tenet of the religious faith of Deathism.

That belief draws you in as it is a "quick fix" until you finally become a true believer and decide that death is really a "good thing".

"My religion tells me I already have an immortal soul."

LOGICAL FLAW:

What if what you have been told is wrong? Then what?



"I can remember my past lives and know I will be reborn to live again."

LOGICAL ERRORS:

Assuming that these memories are the same thing as actual survival. They are not.

These are, at best, fragmentary "memories" that hardly come even remotely close to the kind and quality of memories you have of this life, your <u>real</u> life.

Furthermore, reincarnation is no different than some kind of "spiritual Alzheimer's". If you know people who have lost their personal memories, you will know why this has been called a "living death".

Your immortality requires that you know who you are. Anything less is not immortality. It is only a tragedy.

Reincarnation is a popular part of the religion of Deathism

"I had a near death experience, found myself fully conscious outside of my body, obtained verified information that validated that this was real, met some of my dead relatives, and felt the presence of God which changed my life and assured me that I would live forever without a physical body."

#### LOGICAL FLAWS:

This powerful experience does not mean that you will not die later as a ghost. In fact there is a long tradition called "The Second Death" which states that this is exactly what happens.

The religion of Deathism usually interprets the Second Death stories in one of two ways. Either the "soul" returns as a reincarnated baby or goes on to a "higher" more invisible heaven to be closer to "God".

This is all speculation.

The NDE and OBE can produce a powerful experience that is vividly real and aspects of it can be verified as real (such as the OBE). Additionally there exist medical cases in which the OBE evidence occurred while the brain was without blood or oxygen or glucose.

This is evidence to support the reality of the OBE.

It is <u>not</u> evidence that if you die then your "astral body" will not die as well. In fact all the reports we get about this suggest that the Second Death does indeed happen. However this evidence is actually a Nightside topic and is reserved for the Graded forums.

The bottom line is that just because you have a verified OBE does <u>not</u> mean you will live forever.

"When I am old I will welcome death."

#### LOGICAL FLAW:

While it might be true that you might commit suicide to end excruciating pain, this is not what is implied in this belief.

What is implied is that death will be a good thing when I am "worn out" and old.

However, this assumes that you will have to hate life more than you love it when you are older.

There are many old people who are enjoying life right now and if you said to them "Isn't it your time to die today" would punch you in the nose and <u>call</u> 911 to report your murderous threat against them!

When you grow "older" you don't become someone else. You will still be you then just as you are you right now.

Barring horrible circumstances, you will want to live then just as you want to live now.

Death is not an answer you will embrace as you age ...unless you become a true believer in the irrational faith of Deathism!

"Life is pain and death is a release from pain."

LOGICAL FLAW:

All of life is <u>not</u> "pain" (Gautama Buddha was simply wrong) and death may end pain but that is because it ends <u>you</u>.

Life may have painful periods of time but it also has pleasures and joys and ...THERE IS NO PLAN B!

And viewing death as a treatment for pain is nuts.

Think of the kind of television commercials that could create:

Have a sore throat and stuffy head from a cold? Use Bayer Head Grenades for fast relief! Just put one Bayer Head Grenade up against your forehead and pull the childproof safety pin. Relief guaranteed in one second or your <u>money</u>back!

Life is life. Death is the end of life.

The religion of Deathism may try to twist the meanings of words to confuse the world but definitions are our friends.

Don't be taken in by the irrational religion of Deathism.

"Death permits my spirit to evolve."

LOGICAL FLAW:

Why does my body have to be dead for my spirit to "evolve"?

And here we touch on the true "Original Sin" of the religion of Deathism.

Being alive is evil in the view of Deathism.

Only if you kill the body or at least rise above the temptations of the pleasures of the flesh can you attain true spiritual heights or merge with God (or whatever).

The carnal life is evil. Only "God" (big non-material ghost) is good.

That is the underlying dogma of Deathism.

But is any of that sane, much less true?

Not at all.

Just think it through.

Why should what feels good be "bad"?

And if you ditch all the pleasures of the material world just when will it finally be okay to enjoy anything?

Actually never, according to Deathism.

At best you can reside in a heaven with a harp and tell God how big and wonderful he is, until other more "evolved' Deathist mystics come around to tell you that as long as you have an ego (the sense of being yourself as an individual) you cannot really be happy.

Frankly, I have heard paranoid schizophrenics in a lockdown psychiatric ward make better sense than this while they were hallucinating.

Death does not enable any improvement that you can't achieve with far more certainty by staying alive.

Do I really need to belabor this one???

"Death is desirable because this world can not sustain an unlimited human population."

LOGICAL ERROR:

First, this assumes that human beings will never achieve space travel to access (or build) more places to live and we will not be able to use the

resources of the (most current estimate) five billion earth-like worlds believed to be in our galaxy alone.

Second, this assumes that human beings must choose between death or endless mindless breeding. Please tell your Deathist friends that there is this thing called birth control!! (Do it quick before they help kill the planet!! 🧓 )

By the way, the evidence is quite clear that as societies become wealthier they have fewer children. This appears to be a self-correcting issue.

Third, this assumes that we will stop improving our technology to be better able to use the resources we already have.

When you hear these "ecological" arguments you are in the presence of proper true believers in the Deathist religion. They think that Doomsday is coming but they don't even expect a Messiah to save them. They view human beings (that's <u>you</u>!) as the problem.

Original sin and Doomsday. The ultimate faith go-getters of the Deathist religion!

Excellent example! Thank you!

#### You are in the right spot.

The wrapper of Vampirism did not appeal to him so he chooses to continue to move in the direction of the morgue.

Practically speaking, I would <u>approach</u> him about cryonics without the Temple at all.

Get past our mythos imagery by simply going for the basic facts:

1. Can you die?

2. What if you do?

3. Would you like an alternative to death?

And don't beat on your father or anyone else for their Deathist religious beliefs. They were brought up in it and don't know better.

You <u>might</u> be able to awaken him from his deathist trance but you are fighting the assumption that "6 Billion Lemmings Can't Be Wrong!" 觉



### I don't want to outlive my loved ones.

You wrote "Others do it.".

I am changing that to the belief "I don't want to outlive my loved ones."

I think that is what they really are saying.

LOGICAL ERROR:

When someone dies I hate it and if too many people I care about died then life would be horrible.

This seems to make sense but let's use pets as an ongoing example of why this is not true.

Cats and dogs live much shorter lives than most human beings.

Chances are you are or know a pet owner who when through the grief of losing a pet to death. Yet the chances are extremely good that they have gotten new pets since then that they love and enjoy just as they did the dead one.

Unless we train ourselves to live with a pessimistic perspective we will grieve the loss of loved ones when they die and we will also make new friends who will occupy our attention instead of those who are now dead.

I have had many pets and I still treasure their memories but that does not stop me from enjoying new pets that are right here and right now.

Same with people.

And, as you rightfully point out if their friends stopped being devoted Deathists they would not have to lose anyone at all.

There is no rush. (Procrastination). "There is no rush." LOGICAL ERROR: Procrastination does not help you in an emergency situation. If the house is on fire then you need to get out now. If the mugger has a gun on you then you need to get away<u>now</u>. If the tidal wave is headed your way then you need to get to higher ground <u>now</u>. If you are diagnosed with a virulent disease then you need to get treatment now. If you are in a mortal body then you need to do something intelligent about it <u>now</u>. Procrastinators only get eulogies at best. Don't give your friends the opportunity to tell everyone what a nice person you were. Act <u>now</u>. "It would be boring." My God! How could I miss that one! Thank you! I usually hear that one first! LOGICAL FLAW: Ask the person just exactly when having a sexual orgasm will become boring? 🙃 Ask when the next time he or she gets really hungry that a good meal will be boring? This is the same error many mystics make in deciding that the world is "evil". They do not grasp the simple fact that life is a process. Just because you get hungry doesn't mean that you are always starving to death! Whenever you eat you feel satisfaction, and even (gasp!) pleasure! 🙂 If you can actually get a Deathist to discuss the idea ask them if they can remember the difference between entertainment options alone from their childhood (even is they are young adults) to the present. Point to the internet, cell phones, texting, Google, Facebook. Wasn't life more boring before these existed? Isn't the thrust of technology making life more entertaining and exciting? Point to old movies and then to modern movies ...even in 3-D now. Point to old book stores and libraries, and then compare them to the options with electronic book readers, the Gutenberg Project with over 33,000 free e-books and growing! The past WAS more "boring" than the present and it only keeps getting less boring the longer we live. And that's the truth. "Death Gives Meaning To Life." Yes. Another classic! Thank you. What is really, really <u>funny</u> (falling down laughing funny, I might add) is that this implies that you will somehow <u>know</u>how death gave meaning to

Uh, how's that?

If you are really DEAD, and I mean you NO LONGER EXIST, then <u>you</u> will <u>NEVER</u> know that your life suppsoedly had meaning, and that leads to another Deathist article of faith I will create as a new subthread in a moment:

"I will achieve immortality in the memory of others."

"I will achieve immortality in the memory of others."

LOGICAL FLAW:

This is simply insane.

If everybody in the world become your raging fan and memorized everything about your life like a beloved rock star, if 6 billion people all chanted the praises of your name, repeating in an unending hymn of devotion facts about your life, your birthdate, your school accomplishments, quotations from your own lips, and created trillions of images and videos about you and your life, guess what?

YOU'D STILL BE DEAD.

Being famous after you are dead is not immortality.

It just means that you are dead and other people remember you.

If you actually want others to think well of you and you want to know that they do, then DON'T DIE!

If you are DEAD (which means that you DON'T EXIST) then you do NOT KNOW OR CARE what anyone remembers about you.

IT JUST DOES NOT MATTER.

This leads right into all this "respect for the dead" bullshit. You may be showing respect and consideration for other living people who knew the dead person but showing respect for the dead as if they know about it is psychotic.

RIP (Rest In Peace) is insane.

Why?

Okay let's cut to the chase.

If the person is "surviving" as a ghost or something and knows what you are saying about them, then that person is NOT REALLY DEAD IN THE SENSE OF DEAD = NONEXISTENT.

So if you are concerned with the feelings and opinions of dead people by showing THEM respect then you are revealing that YOU DO NOT BELIEVE THEY ARE REALLY DEAD.

And if the person is really DEAD in the simple sense that DEAD = NONEXISTENT then it is pretty strange to pretend that they do care anyway.

I really have to chuckle on this one. I know plenty of people who pride themselves on being certain that when you are physically dead that that's it. Period. Finito.

And then I hear them voicing such platitudes as "May he rest in peace" or "Goodbye old friend".

A very tiny few realize they are actually expressing respect for what the dead person did or represented in an effort to share their sorrow for his loss with others who also care.

But that is not what they are saying.

Deathism is worldwide and insidious.

The first thing to do to root it out of your own assumptions is what we are doing in this thread.

We are looking at the beliefs that Deathism offers and challenging them with simple reason.

You do <u>not</u> achieve immortality by having other people remember you.

You achieve immortality by STAYING ALIVE

 $\dots$ or as suggested through cryonics or cloning with memory uploads, <u>RETURNING TO LIFE AFTER DEATH.</u>



"I will achieve immortality through my children."

I remember my mother saying this phrase.

This is simply <u>not</u> true.

If I only look at <u>her</u> personality, <u>her</u> way of thinking and acting and at mine, there <u>is</u> a huge difference. Even if we were identical twins we would have two completely different identities. I had the chance to observe some identical twins throughout my life and they <u>always</u> showed completely different attitudes.

So, even if we assume, that I carry the majority of genes from my mother in my body, she would be dead, if she died. At the same time, I would still be living.

And because it's me, it <u>cannot</u> be her.

Even assuming that she will live on after death as a ghost in my body, sounds rather insane and remembers me of horror films like "The Exorzist".



The situation becomes even more complicated as my mother has<u>two</u> children. So, she must live on in two of us. Therefore she would not be complete or intact, but in the better case only half of her. This sounds even more insane.

You have to die sooner or later anyway.

Yes. Very good.

"Death is inevitable."

LOGICAL FLAW:

Some living things never age or have to die.

Deathist reply:

"That doesn't count!"

Our reply.

And exactly why not?

Death is the result of a breakdown in the continuation of the process of life. If you can prevent or reverse that breakdown then death does not happen.

Sooner or later <u>science</u> will be able to completely do all of that.

Right now we are partially successful and there is no reason that trend cannot continue until death is defeated utterly and completely.

It is strictly a matter of engineering. Nothing more.

\_\_\_\_\_

# THE BIG DICTURE KEED IT SIMPLE BY NEMO

\_\_\_\_\_

AS I prepare the editing for publishing "Bloodlines Volume Three - Return to the Source", it gives me

PAUSE TO LOOK AT THE "BIG PICTURE" OF THE TEMPLE.

ALL TOO OFTEN WE FORGET ABOUT SEEING THE FOREST FOR ALL OF THE TREES AND IT IS OFTEN REFRESHING AND

INVIGORATING TO STEP BACK AND GAIN PERSPECTIVE ONCE AGAIN.

WHAT DO WE HAVE IN THE TEMPLE?

WE HAVE TOOLS.

None of these tools require blind faith as we see so commonly in other groups and religions. None

OF THESE TOOLS REQUIRE THAT YOU BOW DOWN BEFORE SOME "TOOLMAKER" OR SINGLE PERSON WHO IS THE "GOD"

OF THIS RELIGION.

TO THE CONTRARY.

THE TEMPLE OFFERS THESE TOOLS AND SAYS "TEST THEM! PUT THEM TO USE! SEE THE RESULTS! AND ONLY THEN

YOU CAN DRAW CONCLUSIONS BASED UPON WHAT YOU HAVE DISCOVERED."

"Test Everything. Believe Nothing."

NOT JUST PRETTY WORDS BUT A CLEAR GUIDELINE TO FOLLOW TO BUILD RELIABLE KNOWLEDGE ABOUT ANYTHING.

So when a new member enters active membership there is no need to just accept any view, any plan,

AND PERSPECTIVE. INSTEAD THE MEMBER IS OFFERED TOOLS TO APPLY TO A NUMBER OF CRITICAL CATEGORIES FOR

PERSONAL SUCCESS IN THE WORLD.

WE REFER TO THESE TOOLS AS THE DAYSIDE SECRETS AND HAVE DEVOTED FORUMS TO EACH OF THEM ON THE

MESSAGE BOARD. WE BREAK THE DAYSIDE WORLD DOWN INTO SIX CATEGORIES: INTRAPERSONAL, IMMORTALITY, INTERPERSONAL, HEALTH, SURVIVAL, AND MONEY.

What I find fascinating about active membership is that it requires no Nightside (magical)

INVOLVEMENTWHATSOEVER TO BE EFFECTIVE. QUITE LITERALLY AN INDIVIDUAL COULD JOIN THE TEMPLE AND TREAT ALL

OF THE NIGHTSIDE (MAGICAL) AND TWILIGHT (ESOTERIC) TEACHINGS AS PURE METAPHOR AND ACHIEVE ALL OF

THE INTENDED GOALS PROMOTED BY THE TEMPLE.

ALL OF THESE GOALS REVOLVE AROUND PROMOTING INDIVIDUAL FREEDOM.

Intrapersonal tools are intended to create a better understanding of how you think and make

DECISIONS, WITH THE CLEAR INTENTION OF STRENGTHENING YOUR WILLPOWER. INTERPERSONAL TOOLS ARE INTENDED

TO ALLOW YOU TO COMMUNICATE MORE EFFECTIVELY WITH OTHER PEOPLE BY BETTER UNDERSTANDING HOW THEY

THINK AND MAKE DECISIONS WITH THE OBJECT OF ACQUIRING THEIR COOPERATION IN ACHIEVING YOUR GOALS.

IMMORTALITY TOOLS (WE CURRENTLY HAVE TWO DAYSIDE VERSIONS) ARE INTENDED TO DO THROUGH SCIENCE WHAT

HAS USUALLY BEEN THE PURPOSE OF MOST FAITH-BASED RELIGIONS - RAISING YOU FROM THE DEAD, IF YOU SHOULD

DIE. HEALTH TOOLS ARE INTENDED TO IMPROVE THE PHYSICAL QUALITY OF YOUR LIFE AND EXTEND YOUR LIFE BEYOND

THE CURRENT NORMAL LIFESDAN.

SURVIVAL TOOLS ARE INTENDED TO HELP YOU AVOID GETTING KILLED OR IN JURED IN ACCIDENTS, EMERGENCIES,

AND ATTACKS ON YOUR PERSON. MONEY TOOLS ARE INTENDED TO SHOW HOW YOU CAN ACHIEVE RELIABLE INCOME

WITH WORK YOU CAN ENJOY, WHILE REDUCING DEBT, AND BUILDING INVESTMENTS THAT CAN DAY YOUR BILLS FOR YOU -

FINANCIAL INDEPENDENCE.

Individual freedom on the Dayside level actually requires all of these different areas to come under

YOUR PERSONAL CONTROL AND ALL OF THESE TOOLS ARE OFFERED TO ENABLE THIS TO HAPPEN FOR YOU. THIS

BECOMES CLEAR IF YOU CONSIDER HOW MUCH FREEDOM YOU LOSE IF ANY OF THESE AREAS FAIL FOR YOU.

If you cannot control yourself and you cannot obtain cooperation from other people, you are not free. If

YOU ARE DEAD OR ARE EXTREMELY ILL, YOU ARE NOT FREE. IF YOU ARE KILLED OR CANNOT DAY YOUR OWN BILLS, YOU ARE

NOT FREE.

Individual freedom begins with the tools of the Dayside and another great thing about these tools is

THAT ONCE YOU SET UP YOUR PLANS, ONCE YOU UNDERSTAND AND EMPLOY THESE TOOLS YOU ARE FREED FROM

MANY FORMER CONCERNS THAT LURKED AT THE EDGE OF YOUR AWARENESS AND WERE ROBBING YOU OF YOUR ZEST

FOR LIFE. MOST PEOPLE PUSH FORWARD BLINDLY THROUGH LIFE TRYING TO IGNORE THESE ISSUES AND, AS A

CONSEQUENCE, YOU SEE THE FRUSTRATION AND DESPAIR IN THEIR FACES.

Individual freedom does not therefore require mastering all of these tools. It only requires

UNDERSTANDING WHAT THEY ARE AND THEN PUTTING THEM TO USE. ONCE YOU HAVE YOUR PLANS IN PLACE, YOU

WILL FEEL THE RELIEF THAT RESULTS. SOMETIMES, THE RELIEF IS A SURPRISE AS THE INDIVIDUAL DID NOT EVEN REALIZE

THE TENSION THAT WAS THERE!

THIS IS WHY THE TEMPLE RECOMMENDS READING AND APPLYING THESE TOOLS. BY THEMSELVES GIVEN TIME,

THEY CAN FULFILL ALL OF THE TEMPLE PROMISES FOR PERSONAL FREEDOM AND EMPOWERMENT. AND THEY ALSO FREE

UP THE MIND FOR CONSIDERATION OF THE NIGHTSIDE AND THE TWILIGHT.

I do not mean to suggest that members cannot simply ignore the tools of the Dayside secrets. That is

A PERSONAL CHOICE AS WELL. HOWEVER, TO THE EXTENT THAT A MEMBER'S PERSONAL DAYSIDE IS OUT OF CONTROL

THAT WILL DRAIN HIS ATTENTION AWAY, WHICH FROM THE NIGHTSIDE IS A DRAINING OF NEEDED LIFEFORCE.

Any member, active or not, can pursue the Nightside, of course. The Vampire Bible's first chapter

IS INVOLVED WITH THE NIGHTSIDE RITUAL OF THE CALLING OF THE UNDEAD, AFTER ALL, HOWEVER, TO GET

RESULTS THAT ARE RELIABLE AND LASTING, THE NIGHTSIDE INSTRUCTIONS ARE QUITE CLEAR AS WELL WITH REGARD TO

WHAT IS REQUIRED THERE, AND IF ONE'S DAYSIDE IS IN TROUBLE THEN SUCCESS IN THE NIGHTSIDE IS GOING TO BE FAR

MORE PROBLEMATIC.

In looking at Graded membership, the big picture remains clear as well. When a member is

SERIOUS ENOUGH TO BE WILLING TO ACCEPT GUIDANCE IN THE NIGHTSIDE RATHER THAN JUST WORKING IN ISOLATION,

THERE IS THE FIRST CIRCLE. WHEN THE MEMBER HAS VERIFIED THAT TREATING LIFEFORCE AS REAL IS TRULY MORE

USEFUL THAN ASSUMING OTHERWISE, THE SECOND CIRCLE OPENS. AND WHEN THE MEMBER HAS VERIFIED THAT

TREATING THE UNDEAD AS REAL IS TRULY MORE USEFUL THAN ASSUMING OTHERWISE, THE THIRD CIRCLE OPENS.

AT THE SECOND CIRCLE THE MEMBER NEEDS TO HAVE SET UP DAYSIDE PLANS. AT THE THIRD CIRCLE THE

MEMBER NEEDS TO HAVE DEMONSTRATED A COMMITMENT TO LIFE OVER DEATH AND A FUNDAMENTAL TRUST THAT

THE TEMPLE HAS GUIDANCE. AT THE FOURTH CIRCLE THE MEMBER NEEDS TO HAVE TESTIFIED TO THE REALITY OF

MAGIC. AT THE FIFTH CIRCLE THE MEMBER NEEDS TO HAVE GRASPED THE REALITY OF THE DRAGON AND WHAT

THAT IMPLIES.

In short, the big picture for Graded membership is self-honesty and loyalty to what one has proven

TO ONE'S SELF. SELF-HONESTY BECAUSE WHAT YOU TESTIFY TO HAVING ACCOMPLISHED AND ACCEPTED AS TRUE

IS NECESSARY TO AVOID SELF-DECEIT. LOYALTY TO WHAT YOU HAVE DISCOVERED BECAUSE THE PEER PRESSURE OF

THE OUTSIDE WORLD CAN AND WILL ATTEMPT TO UNDERCUT THAT WISDOM.

LIFE IS A CONTINUOUS PROCESS. YOU MUST CONTINUE TO BREATHE, TO HAVE YOUR HEART PUMP BLOOD, TO EAT

AND DRINK, AND MORE. THE SAME IS TRUE FOR WHAT YOU LEARN. IT IS NECESSARY TO REMIND YOURSELF OF WHAT

YOU HAVE DISCOVERED, ESPECIALLY WHEN SURROUNDED BY THE IGNORANT WHO WILL DENY IT.

Maintaining your own view of the big picture is critical. Just discovering what is true is not enough.

YOU MUST NOT LET YOURSELF FORGET WHAT YOU HAVE LEARNED EITHER.

AND HOW TO DO THIS?

Trust your own experience and ignore what others claim or say when that opposes your own experience.

You do not need to debate with anyone the presence of the sun at noon. See it. Accept it. And when it

IS NIGHT DO NOT ASSUME THAT THE SUN NO LONGER EXISTS. REMEMBER WHAT YOU SAW AT NOON.

"Test Everything. Believe Nothing."

AND DO NOT DENY WHAT YOU VERIFY.

KEEP IT SIMPLE.

MAGICAL GOALS THAT WORK
<b>S</b> ноот віс.
Or at least shoot bigger.
I fully grasp why folks will try for parking places but not the lotto.
They really don't believe that they can win the lotto but getting a parking place _well, that is "possible".
This is really an example of disbelieving in magic.
Here is the tightwire balancing act $I$ would urge everyone reading this to try:
STOP WORRYING ABOUT WHAT IS POSSIBLE. START FOCISING ON WHAT YOU WANT.
If you don't try to win the lotto that is because you are fixated on the idea that it isn't "possible".

Well, we already know that winning the lotto is very possible. Deople win the lotto all the time. AND WHAT DO YOU MEAN BY "DOSSIBLE"? By "possible" you really mean possible for YOU! So stop concerning yourself with predicting how YOU have to be the EXCEPTION TO ALL THE OTHER PEOPLE WHO CAN BUY A LOTTO TICKET AND WIN. CURRENTLY YOU ARE SAYING THAT ANY ONE OF THEM CAN WIN IT, BUT YOU CANNOT. (Sounds like the lotto gypsy woman cursed you!). SO TRY THIS INSTEAD: Forget about whether it is "possible" for you to "beat the odds" and INSTEAD DWELL ON WHAT IT IS THAT YOU WANT. AND YOU REALLY DON'T WANT TO WIN THE LOTTO!

YES. I REALLY MEANT THAT.

YOU DO NOT WANT TO WIN THE LOTTO.

YOU DO HAVE THINGS THAT YOU MIGHT WANT TO DO IF YOU HAD THE MONEY THE LOTTO PROVIDED.

BUT DO YOU KNOW WHAT THOSE THINGS ACTUALLY ARE?

Do you?

If the Genie in the Lamp suddenly showed up with a checkbook to write you checks to buy whatever

YOU WANTED WITH MONEY, DO YOU ACTUALLY KNOW WHAT YOU WOULD BUY?

Do you?

HAVE YOU MADE A DETAILED LIST OF EXACTLY WHAT YOU WOULD PURCHASE WITH A FEW MILLION DOLLARS AT

YOUR DISPOSAL?

By the way, I doubt that you have any such list.

DROBABLY YOU HAVE SOME VAGUE "LIST" THAT GOES LIKE THIS:

"Well, I'd buy a bigger house and a new car. And I'd take a vacation."

GUESS WHAT? THAT IS NOT A LIST OF MAGICAL GOALS.

THAT PALTRY KIND OF BLURRY "LIST" IS AN OPEN CONFESSION THAT YOU STILL DO NOT THINK THAT MAGIC CAN WORK IN

A MEANINGFUL WAY FOR YOU.

WHY DO I SAY THAT?

BECAUSE IF YOU REALLY DID KNOW THAT YOU COULD HAVE WHATEVER YOU WANTED YOU WOULD HAVE A DETAILED LIST

OF EXACTLY WHAT YOU WOULD BUY OR YOU WOULD BE LOOKING ONLINE OR AT CATALOGS OR IN STORES OR ON

TELEVISION PROGRAMS FOR THINGS THAT YOU WANTED TO HAVE!

JUST PRETEND WITH ME FOR A MOMENT.

DRETEND THAT YOU DID BUY A LOTTO TICKET AND AGAINST THE LAWS OF GOD AND THE UNIVERSE YOU JUST LEARNED

THAT YOU WON TEN MILLION DOLLARS AFTER TAXES THAT YOU CAN DEPOSIT TO YOUR BANK TOMORROW.

After you regain consciousness, after you stop screaming, after you stop repeating "I don't believe it, I

Don't believe it, I don't believe it, I don't believe it!", after you start to recover from the emotional shock...

## WHAT WILL YOU DO?

YOU WILL SIT DOWN AND START TO MAKE A LIST OF WHAT YOU WANT TO DO WITH THAT MONEY.

Let's skip all the problem-ending actions. Forget about paying off your debt and your family's debts.

FORGET ABOUT WHO ELSE YOU WILL GIVE MONEY TO. FORGET ABOUT WHAT CHARITIES YOU MIGHT DONATE TO.

FORGET ABOUT INVESTING AND PROTECTING YOUR CAPITAL. FORGET ABOUT WHICH ACCOUNTANT YOU WOULD HIRE TO

HELD MANAGE YOUR TAXES.

Let's skip past all of that and get down to the bottom line.

WHAT WOULD YOU BUY THAT YOU WANTED?

And I assure you that very, very soon you would have a detailed list of exactly the kinds of items

AND THINGS YOU WOULD BE SPENDING MONEY ON.

YOU WOULD HAVE A LIST THAT WOULD NOT SAY "BIGGER HOUSE".

IT WOULD SAY SOMETHING LIKE "A BIGGER HOUSE WITH A VIEW OF A LAKE IN THE BACK WITH TWO STORIES, A

LARGE KITCHEN WITH AN ISLAND FOR CASUAL SEATING, A LIVING ROOM WITH A NATURAL GAS FIREPLACE AND

BOOKSHELVES, WITH A SECTIONAL COUCH AND TABLE LAMPS ON END TABLES FOR READING, A HOME

MOVIE ENTERTAINMENT ROOM WITH A LARGE SCREEN AND FOUR RECLINER CHAIRS FOR GUESTS, A LARGE MASTER

BEDROOM WITH A KING SIZE BED, AN ADJOINING BATHROOM WITH A WALK-IN SHOWER AREA, A FOUR CAR GARAGE

WITH AMPLE AREA FOR A SHOP WITH TOOLS IN PLAIN VIEW HANGING ON THE WALL ABOVE A SHOP TABLE..."

In other words you would be making that Genie get writer's cramp from filling out all of those checks

BY HAND FOR THE DIFFERENT THINGS YOU WOULD WANT TO PURCHASE OR DO.

YOU WOULD KNOW WHAT YOU WANT, IN DETAIL.

AND EVERY DAY YOU WOULD BE EXPANDING AND ADDING AND EDITING THAT LIST AS YOU REFINED WHAT YOU LIKED

AND DISLIKED ABOUT THINGS.

So do you have such a list right now?

If not, there is only one real reason.

YOU DON'T THINK IT CAN HAPPEN TO YOU.

WHICH MEANS THAT YOU ARE DISBELIEVING THAT MAGIC CAN WORK FOR YOU.

OR. YOU ARE AFRAID THAT IF YOU START TO MAKE SUCH A LIST AND THEN YOU DON'T GET WHAT YOU WANT YOU WILL

BE ...DISAPPOINTED.

SO YOU DON'T WANT TO FEEL BAD.

You don't want to get your hopes up and then feel despair at not having these things happen.

BUT HERE IS THE RUB.

"And it is actually the rub on the lamp that gets the Genie working for you.

YOU CAN EITHER "PROTECT" YOURSELF FROM FAILURE BY NOT REALLY TRYING, OR YOU CAN COMMIT TO WHAT YOU

REALLY WANT.

YOU CAN EITHER ASSUME THAT SUCH THINGS COULD NEVER HAPPEN FOR YOU AND SO IT IS BETTER TO STICK WITH

ONLY GETTING PARKING PLACES AND FINDING ONE DOLLAR BILLS ON THE STREET.

OR YOU CAN SIMPLY START FOCUSING ON WHAT YOU REALLY WANT.

Now here is the mind blower on all of this.

If you start to really focus on what you want (instead of what is "dossible") it becomes FUN!

If you start a list of "If I had a billion dollars to spend I would." and really start to write down what

YOU WANT, IT BECOMES FUN!

Now it is not fun if you do this while only thinking about what is "possible". This is not fun if you think

YOU WOULD LIKE TO HAVE A NEW LEXUS FOUR DOOR SEDAN BUT THEN THINK, "BUT WHO AM I KIDDING? THAT WILL

NEVER HADDEN FOR ME."

THAT IS NOT FUN. THAT IS JUST MASOCHISTIC. STOP IT!

Doing this right is just another application of Vampiric Will.

CHOOSE TO MAKE A LIST OF WHAT YOU REALLY WANT.

ADMIT TO YOUR DESIRES.

And watch what happens.	
Sноот віс.	
Make this a daily habit.	
Refine and detail your desires.	
IDENTIFY YOUR DESIRES.	

\_\_\_\_\_

# THE VAMPIRE RELIGION

\_\_\_\_\_

WE BELIEVE THE VALUE OF THE INDIVIDUAL IS SUPERIOR
TO THAT OF ANY GROUP OR TRIBE OR NATION OR SPECIES.

In everything we do, we believe in challenging the power of anything opposing individual freedom.

THE WAY WE DO THIS IS BY EMPOWERING INDIVIDUALS

TO ACHIEVE INDEPENDENT CONTROL OVER THEIR LIVES

THROUGH WEALTH, HEALTH, PERSONAL POWER, AND UNLIMITED LIFE EXTENSION.

WE CREATED A WORLDWIDE ORGANIZATION WITH PROVEN METHODS FOR MAKING THIS POSSIBLE.

## ARE YOU READY TO ACHIEVE REAL FREEDOM?

HUMAN BEINGS COMMONLY SACRIFICE THEIR MINDS AND LIVES FOR THE CAUSES OF THE GROUPS THEY BELONG TO.

THIS HAS HELPED THE RACE TO SURVIVE AND THRIVE BUT DEVALUES THE INDIVIDUAL FOR THE SAKE OF THE TRIBE.

YET YOU, THE INDIVIDUAL, HAVE VALUE SURPASSING THAT OF ANY GROUP.

ONLY YOUR PERSONAL EXISTENCE AND HAPPINESS CAN GIVE MEANING TO LIFE.

THE NEXT STEP IN PERSONAL FREEDOM IS A RECOGNITION OF THIS TRUTH AND EMPOWERS THE INDIVIDUAL ABOVE ANY GROUP OR EXTERNAL CAUSE.

THOSE RARE AND ELITE FEW WHO ARE READY TO TAKE THIS NEXT STEP HAVE THE POTENTIAL TO BRING MORE MEANING TO LIFE.

WE STRIVE TO FIND INDIVIDUALS WHO HAVE THIS TREASURED POTENTIAL AND THEN SHARE OUR SECRETS TO GIVE THEM MORE CONTROL AND FREEDOM.

If you are ready for mastery over your world, then we are here to empower you.

TEST EVERYTHING - BELIEVE NOTHING

WE EMPOWER YOU BY FIRST ENCOURAGING YOU TO THINK FOR YOURSELF.

THIS BEGINS BY RECOGNIZING BELIEFS FOR WHAT THEY ARE:
ASSUMPTIONS AND WAYS OF THINKING INHERITED FROM GROUPS.

BECAUSE WE CHAMPION THE INDIVIDUAL ABOVE ANY GROUP,
WE WILL NEVER ASK YOU TO SIMPLY BELIEVE ANYTHING WE TELL YOU.

Instead we encourage you to apply yourself to what we suggest and prove to yourself the value of what we offer.

THIS IS HOW THOUSANDS OF OTHERS HAVE DISCOVERED THAT WHAT WE SAY IS TRUE.

OUR CLAIMS ARE NOT BASED ON FAITH, BUT ON VERIFIABLE TRUTHS.

YOU CAN BYPASS BELIEF AND TEST THESE TRUTHS FOR YOURSELF.

WE WANT YOU TO.

IT WILL EMPOWER YOU.

## MASTERY OF LIFE

BY ALWAYS TESTING EVERYTHING AND BELIEVING NOTHING,
WE HAVE DEVELOPED AN EVOLVING AND POWERFUL TOOLKIT
THAT CAN GRANT YOU MASTERY OVER YOUR LIFE.

YOU CAN LEARN TO THINK MORE CLEARLY AND INDEPENDENTLY

AND DEVELOP UNSHAKABLE RESOLVE.

You can benefit from tested and proven health advice and begin now to live better, longer, happier, and wiser.

YOU CAN DISCOVER WHAT TRULY MOTIVATES PEOPLE TO BEHAVE AS THEY DO AND USE THAT KNOWLEDGE TO INTERACT WITH THEM EFFECTIVELY.

YOU CAN RISE ABOVE THE DRUDGERY OF ENDLESSLY WORKING TO MAKE MONEY
AND INSTEAD ACHIEVE TRUE FINANCIAL FREEDOM.

WE OFFER THESE AND OTHER SECRETS TO YOU

BECAUSE WE WANT YOU TO GAIN REAL CONTROL OVER YOUR LIFE.

It is essential to championing the supreme value of individuality.

# MASTERY OF DEATH

THE SUPREME DENIAL OF YOUR VALUE AS AN INDIVIDUAL IS YOUR OWN DERSONAL DEATH.

To empower you against death, we offer an approach to spirituality that leverages the hidden powers of your personal psyche.

AND WE WANT YOU TO TEST AND PROVE ITS PREMISES FOR YOURSELF.

You can learn how to leverage

THE DREAMLIKE THINKING OF YOUR SUBCONSCIOUS MIND

TO OPEN SUBTLE PATHWAYS TO YOUR IMMORTALITY.

You can learn to apply powerful metaphors

TO RELIABLY ACCESS ABILITIES THAT ARE USUALLY CONSIDERED "MAGIC".

YOU CAN PERSONALLY DISCOVER THE TRUTH BEHIND "MYSTICAL INSIGHTS"
WHILE UNDERSTANDING AND AVOIDING THE ERRORS OF MYSTICAL THINKING.

We approach religion and spirituality this way BECAUSE IT BRINGS THIS DOMAIN UNDER YOUR PERSONAL CONTROL.

WE WANT YOU TO UPLIFT YOUR LIFE AND TRANSCEND YOUR DEATH.

AND YOU CAN DO SO BY EMBRACING A POWERFUL MYTHOLOGICAL SYMBOL OF IMMORTALITY AS YOUR OWN:

THE VAMPIRE.

THE NIGHTSIDE CONNECTION

When you purchase an authorized copy of Temple Literature you are obtaining more than just a book

WITH INSTRUCTIONS. YOU ARE ALSO ESTABLISHING A NIGHTSIDE CONNECTION WHICH CAN PERMIT THE INSTRUCTIONS

FROM THE TEMPLE TO WORK FOR YOU.

How is this possible? Why should just buying a book from the Temple create such a

NIGHTSIDE CONNECTION? ISN'T A BOOK JUST WORDS, JUST INFORMATION?

FROM A PURELY DAYSIDE PERSPECTIVE THIS WOULD BE SO. FROM THE ORDINARY, COMMON SENSE WORLD VIEW OF

THE DAYSIDE ALL INFORMATION IS JUST INFORMATION AND A BOOK IS JUST A COLLECTION OF WORDS.

However from the Nightside, this is not true.

THE NIGHTSIDE IS ENTIRELY INVOLVED WITH WHAT WE IN THE TEMPLE REFER TO AS LIFEFORCE. LIFEFORCE IS

MINDSTUFF. LIFEFORCE IS ALSO THE CONTAINER THAT "HOLDS" THE UNIVERSE OF YOUR EXPERIENCES. LIFEFORCE IS

ALSO THE "CARRIER WAVE" THAT CAN TRANSMIT YOUR INTENTION (VAMPIRIC WILL) TO AFFECT THE UNIVERSE OF

YOUR EXPERIENCE. LIFEFORCE IS ALSO THE SUBSTRUCTURE OF YOUR MIND ITSELF, THAT INNERMOST DART OF YOUR BEING

WE REFER TO AS THE DRAGON - FUNDAMENTAL CONSCIOUSNESS, YOUR INNER SELF.

So what you think and know and feel about anything has a profound effect upon it through the Nightside.

When you purchase an authorized copy of Temple literature you are offering a small sacrifice of money

IN RETURN FOR THE USE OF NIGHTSIDE INSTRUCTIONS WITH REGARD TO THE ESOTERIC PRACTICES OF OUR

RELIGION. SO WHEN YOU TAKE THESE INSTRUCTIONS AND APPLY THEM, YOU HAVE THE INNER KNOWING THAT YOU HAVE

BEEN TRUTHFUL AND HONEST WITH THE TEMPLE BY PURCHASING AN AUTHORIZED COPY OF THOSE INSTRUCTIONS.

BUT WHAT IF SOMEONE DIDN'T?

What if someone simply read another person's copy of the Temple instructions and then tried

TO APPLY THESE SAME NIGHTSIDE INSTRUCTIONS? WELL, YOU CAN'T FOOL YOURSELF. THAT PERSON WOULD KNOW THAT

HE OR SHE DID NOT FOLLOW THE BASIC INSTRUCTION THAT REQUIRED MAKING A SMALL SACRIFICE OF MONEY

TO DEMONSTRATE AN HONEST INTENT BY BUYING A COPY FROM THE TEMPLE.

THAT INDIVIDUAL WOULD BE AWARE

ON SOME LEVEL OF MIND THAT THEY WERE "CHEATING".

LIFEFORCE IS MINDSTUFF AND THAT PERSON WOULD KNOW MENTALLY AND EMOTIONALLY THAT THEY HAD NOT FOLLOWED

THE BASIC INSTRUCTIONS, AND WOULD BE CUTTING THEMSELVES OFF FROM MAKING OR MAINTAINING THE VITAL

AND NECESSARY NIGHTSIDE CONNECTION.

AND SO THE INSTRUCTIONS WOULD NOT WORK FOR THAT PERSON, OR WOULD STOP WORKING.

WHAT IS THIS NIGHTSIDE CONNECTION?

From the Dayside, a book is just a book. Hardcover, softcover, or e-book, a book is just a collection

OF WORDS. NOTHING MORE. ONE COPY IS JUST AS GOOD AS ANY OTHER COPY IN TERMS OF THE WORD INFORMATION.

From the Nightside, however, this is entirely wrong on at least two levels.

On the first level, as already mentioned, you cannot fool yourself. If you have made the required

SMALL GESTURE OF GOOD INTENT BY PURCHASING AN AUTHORIZED COPY FROM THE TEMPLE THEN YOU KNOW IT. THERE

IS NO INNER SENSE OF BREAKING A RULE. BUT IF YOU DON'T DO THIS, THEN YOU DO HAVE A CLEAR SENSE THAT YOU

ARE TRYING TO SNEAK IN THROUGH THE BACK DOOR, THAT YOU ARE NOT REALLY BEING HONEST ABOUT YOUR INTENT.

THE RESULT? YOUR OWN MIND WILL BLOCK YOUR EFFORTS IN THIS MANIPULATION OF LIFEFORCE AND THE INSTRUCTIONS

WILL FAIL.

On the second level, the Nightside instructions were given to the Temple by Those of the Nightside.

The instructions in the five Bibles were offered for the use of the Temple in many cases by

DICTATION, SOMETIMES WORD FOR WORD. FROM THE DAYSIDE THIS MIGHT BE CONSIDERED NONSENSE BUT IF

YOU INTEND TO SUCCEED WITH THE NIGHTSIDE IT MUST BE TAKEN SERIOUSLY.

THESE INSTRUCTIONS COME FROM THOSE OF THE NIGHTSIDE YOU ARE WANTING TO LEARN FROM TO ACHIEVE YOUR

OWN NIGHTSIDE GOALS. THEIR REQUIREMENT IS TO OBTAIN THEIR INSTRUCTIONS FROM THEIR TEMPLE.

If you wanted to study under a certain professor at a college you would first need to enroll in that

COLLEGE BEFORE YOU WOULD BE ALLOWED TO ENTER HIS CLASSROOM. THIS IS REALLY NOT ANY DIFFERENT FROM THAT.

When anyone tries to follow the Nightside instructions in any of the five Bibles but has not purchased

THEIR OWN COPY AS REQUIRED BY OUR NIGHTSIDE INSTRUCTORS THEN THEY ARE NOT GOING TO GET INTO THE

CLASSROOM. AND IF THEY ALREADY HAD A NIGHTSIDE CONNECTION THEY WOULD LOSE IT AND BE EXPELLED.

It is pointless to try and use the Temple's Nightside instructions without following the basic requirement

OF MAKING THE SMALL GESTURE OF OBTAINING THOSE INSTRUCTIONS DIRECTLY FROM THE TEMPLE.

You can't fool yourself, and from the Nightside, you cannot fool Those of the Nightside either.

Again from the Dayside perspective this is all nonsense. A book is just a book.

However if you wish to pursue and succeed in the Nightside of the Temple you must achieve and

MAINTAIN THIS ALL IMPORTANT NIGHTSIDE CONNECTION.

HONESTY IS NOT THE BEST POLICY. WITH REGARD TO THE NIGHTSIDE IT IS THE ONLY POLICY!

LIFE COMES FROM LIFE ... AND ONLY FROM LIFE.

A WORD TO THE WISE.

\_\_\_\_\_\_

THE ULTIMATE SELFISHNESS

This religion advocates deciding to choose yourself as God which, in this context, is the most

IMPORTANT PERSON OR THING IN YOUR UNIVERSE.

Most people today make many other things as their "God". Often this is defined as what you would

BE WILLING TO DIE FOR. A PATRIOT IS WILLING TO DIE FOR HIS COUNTRY SO HIS COUNTRY IS HIS GOD. SOME INDIVIDUALS

ARE WILLING TO DIE FOR A SPECIFIC PERSON, OR GROUP, OR RELIGION, OR VIEWPOINT, ETC. WHATEVER THEY ARE WILLING

TO DIE FOR IS THEIR PERSONAL "GOD".

THE VAMPIRE RELIGION FINDS ITSELF IN THE RATHER UNIQUE POSITION OF ADVOCATING THAT YOU CHOOSE YOURSELF

AS GOD AND DEMONSTRATE THIS BY BEING WILLING TO CHOOSE TO LIVE FOR YOURSELF, INSTEAD OF CHOOSING TO DIE

FOR SOMETHING OR SOMEONE ELSE.

In fact, we go beyond this and advocate that you choose to live forever!

WE ARE IMMORTALISTS.

But that only defines the baseline for living for yourself as your own God, as the most important person

IN YOUR UNIVERSE.

To go beyond this baseline we have to ask what you are wanting to experience as your own God as

YOU CHOOSE TO LIVE ETERNALLY.

AND THIS LEADS TO THE ULTIMATE MOTIVATOR FOR ALL HUMAN ACTION: FEELING GOOD.

FEELING GOOD IS WHAT IT IS ALL ABOUT. 100%

If you feel bad you first want that to stop, of course. If you are in pain, or in fear, or depressed you want

THE BAD FEELING TO END. BUT THAT ONLY TAKES YOU TO NEUTRAL.

Most people live in neutral. They don't necessarily feel bad but neither do they feel good. If you ask

THEM HOW THEY FEEL THEY USUALLY RESPOND WITH, "OKAY, I GUESS."

And this is really another way of saying that they really are feeling nothing. They are in neutral. At

LEAST NOTHING BAD IS HAPPENING. AT LEAST THEY ARE NOT IN PAIN RIGHT NOW.

HOWEVER, FEELING "OKAY" IS NOT FEELING GOOD!

LIVING YOUR LIFE IN NEUTRAL IS NOT GEARING UP TO DRIVE FORWARD WITH HAPPINESS, JOY, EXCITEMENT, OR ECSTASY.

SO WHAT IS THE ULTIMATE SELFISH ACT?

Choosing yourself as your own God and choosing to live forever only gets you to neutral (although for

THE RIGHT REASONS).

IT DOES NOT TAKE YOU INTO HAPPINESS.

IT JUST AVOIDS A LOT OF POINTLESS SELF-DEFEATING THOUGHTS AND ACTIONS.

No, the ultimate selfishness is to choose to feel good!

AND MAKE NO MISTAKE, IT REQUIRES A CHOICE TO LEARN TO FEEL GOOD, TO FEEL JOY, TO FEEL HAPPINESS.

It requires deciding that right now it is better to choose to feel good than to wallow in feeling bad

BECAUSE YOU ARE "RIGHT", OR BECAUSE OTHER PEOPLE ARE "WRONG", OR BECAUSE YOU ARE FRUSTRATED

WITH SOMETHING, OR BECAUSE THAT IS THE WAY YOU HAVE ALWAYS BEEN, OR BECAUSE OF ANYTHING ELSE YOU

CAN COME UP WITH AS AN EXCUSE.

Choosing to feel good takes you directly to the purpose of life which is "feeling good!

As your own God you get to decide that it is okay for the most important person in the world to feel

GOOD, AND THAT IS YOU!

How is it possible to feel good if you have reasons to feel bad right now? Sometimes it may not

BE POSSIBLE. SOMETIMES YOU MAY HAVE TO DEAL WITH A SITUATION THAT IS - RIGHT THIS MINUTE - PREVENTING

YOU FROM FEELING GOOD. IF YOU JUST STEPPED ON A NAIL, YOU MAY NEED TO DEAL WITH THAT PAINFUL PROBLEM FIRST.

If you were just told that someone you love has died you may have to recover from that shock first.

I am not suggesting that you are going to enter a nirvana-like condition that cannot be affected by

OUTSIDE CIRCUMSTANCES AND EVENTS.

What I am suggesting is that more than 99% of the time you are not in an emergency situation. In fact

THE CHANCES ARE EXCELLENT THAT MORE THAN 99% OF THE TIME YOU COULD BE CHOOSING TO FEEL GOOD INSTEAD
OF FEELING NOTHING OR FEELING BAD.
Learning to choose to feel good is a habit.
To establish a habit you need to engage in the behavior.
In this case it consists of choosing to feel good.
FORTUNATELY THERE IS A VERY SIMPLE, MECHANICAL STEP YOU CAN TAKE TO JUMP-START THIS FEELING IN ALMOST
ANY SITUATION THAT IS NOT A DIRE EMERGENCY.
SMILE.
Yes, that's it.
SMILE.
An excellent 60 second reprogramming meditation you can use with this is to close your eyes, smile,
AND TRY TO EXPAND THE GOOD FEELING THAT YOU EXPERIENCE AS A RESULT.

FEELING GOOD IS A FEELING. YOU FEEL THINGS WITH YOUR BODY. YOUR SENSE OF TOUCH IS NOT JUST ON YOUR

SKIN SURFACE. YOU FEEL MANY, MANY THINGS INSIDE YOUR BODY, AND EMOTIONS SUCH AS HAPPINESS AND JOY

ARE ALSO FELT INSIDE YOUR BODY.

EVEN WITHOUT HAVING ANY REASON FOR FEELING GOOD YOU CAN CLOSE YOUR EYES, SMILE, FEEL THE SURGE OF

FEELING GOOD THAT RESULTS, AND LEARN TO EXPAND THAT FEELING IN INTENSITY INSIDE YOUR BODY.

LEARN TO LIVE YOUR LIFE NOT JUST IN NO-PAIN, NOT JUST IN "NEUTRAL", NOT JUST IN "FEELING OKAY".

PRACTICE THE ULTIMATE IN SELFISHNESS AS YOUR OWN GOD.

FEEL GOOD MORE AND MORE OF THE TIME.

FEELING GOOD IS ITS OWN REWARD.

JUST A SUGGESTION FROM ONE GOD TO ANOTHER.

GREEN MONKEYS AND DISBELIEF

SO MANY OCCULTISTS WILL DO A RITUAL TO ATTAIN A MEASURABLE GOAL AND THEN ATTEMPT TO FORGET ABOUT IT.

THIS ISSUE OF TRYING TO NOT THINK ABOUT YOUR DESIRE HAS BEEN INSTITUTIONALIZED IN SO MANY PLACES, AND YET

IT STEMS ENTIRELY FROM AN EFFORT TO NOT UNDERCUT THE MAGICAL EFFORT BY THINKING ABOUT IT FROM A DOSTURE OF

UTTER DISBELIEF.

THE RITUAL IS OVER, THE SPELL IS CAST, THE VOODOO DOLL HAS BEEN DESTROYED, THE PARCHMENT WITH THE DESIRE

HAS BEEN BURNED OR BURIED OR EATEN OR WHATEVER, AND NOW THE WOULD-BE MAGICIAN RETURNS TO HIS DEERS

WHO WOULD LAUGH AT HIM IF THEY THOUGHT HE MIGHT ACTUALLY ASSUME THAT THIS STUFF COULD REALLY WORK.

THE PROBLEM WITH THE MAGICIAN IS NOT BEING FREE TO ENTER INTO THE MORE COMMON SENSE, MATERIALISTIC

VIEWS OF HIS SKEPTICAL "MODERN" FRIENDS.

THE PROBLEM IS THAT THE MAGICIAN MIGHT HAVE HAD A VAGUE RESONANCE WITH MAGIC WORKING DURING

THE CEREMONY, BUT THEN RETURNED TO WHAT HE REALLY ASSUMES TO BE TRUE, THAT MAGIC IS "BUNK".

THE SEED PLANTED DURING THE RITUAL IS NOT ONLY DUG UP AND EXAMINED, BUT BURNED IN THE FIRES OF

"COMMON SENSE" CERTAINTY.

Such "magicians" noting in retrospect that they got results more often when they actually forgot they

DID THE SPELL, ASSUME THAT REMEMBERING IT, THINKING ABOUT IT, DWELLING ON IT, WILL KILL IT. HENCE YOU HAVE

TO FORGET IT.

However that does not work either due to the Green Monkey factor. To remember to forget something

IS AS IMPOSSIBLE TO DO AS TO NOT THINK OF GREEN MONKEYS. AFTER ALL, YOU HAVE TO THINK ABOUT GREEN

Monkeys in order to remember to not think about Green Monkeys.

So we have all of these modern "magicians" over just the last few hundred years who tell you that in

ORDER FOR MAGIC TO WORK YOU MUST WANT SOMETHING SO MUCH THAT YOU WILL DO A CEREMONY (SINCE NOTHING

ELSE YOU HAVE TRIED IS WORKING) AND THEN THE MOMENT IT IS DONE YOU ARE TO (SOMEHOW) FORGET ALL ABOUT IT.

ABSOLUTE NONSENSE.

THE OPPOSITE IS TRUE.

THE AUTHENTIC TRADITIONS OF MAGIC ARE EXACTLY THE OPPOSITE.

To perform a successful spell the magician was expected to repeat the casting over and over, night

AFTER NIGHT, UNTIL THE DESIRED RESULT WAS OBTAINED.

THIS DOES SEVERAL THINGS.

FIRST, IT HELPS THE MAGICIAN OVERCOME DISBELIEF THROUGH COGNITIVE CONSONANCE. YOUR UNCONSCIOUS

MIND COMES TO ASSUME THAT YOU MUST BE DOING THIS EVERY NIGHT BECAUSE IT CAN WORK. THIS THEN CAUSES

YOU TO CHANGE YOUR BELIEFS ABOUT MAGIC WORKING FROM THE INSIDE OUT, EVEN BEFORE YOU HAVE ANY

EVIDENCE THAT THERE ARE OBJECTIVE RESULTS.

SECOND, REPETITION BETTER ASSURES THAT YOU DO GET IT RIGHT. HOW VERY OFTEN PEOPLE WILL FOCUS ON WHAT

THEY DON'T WANT INSTEAD OF WHAT THEY DO WANT. IF THE DESIRED END IS NOT SOMETHING THAT CAN BE PERCEIVED

BUT IS ONLY AN ABSTRACT NEGATION OF WHAT IS ACTUALLY DESIRED, THEN IT IS AN EXERCISE IN FUTILITY.

THIRD, AS THE MAGICIAN GETS RESULTS THIS EVIDENCE SUPPORTS THE UNDERSTANDING THAT MAGIC IS REAL. IN

OTHER WORDS THE MAGICIAN COMES TO TRUST THAT MAGIC IS A USEFUL TOOL FOR PRODUCING RESULTS.

Before that third step is achieved in any particular category the effective magician works in two

WORLDS, DAYSIDE AND NIGHTSIDE. HE CAN ENTER INTO THE "COMMON SENSE" MATERIALISTIC VIEWPOINT OF

OTHER PEOPLE AS EASILY AS ENTERING INTO A "SUPERSENSE" MAGICAL VIEWPOINT WHEN DOING MAGIC.

THE ABSOLUTE KILLER FOR THIS DEVELOPMENT LEADING TO THE TWILIGHT (AND CONSISTENT RESULTS) IS THE

ASSUMPTION THAT THERE IS ONLY ONE TRUE VIEW OF THINGS AND THAT ONE IS THAT MAGIC IS "BUNK".

It is as if you really are the supreme reality God and what you declare it be true becomes absolutely

TRUE.

DECLARE THERE IS MAGIC AND DO IT, AND YOU GET MAGICAL RESULTS.

Declare there is no magic and don't do it, and you get no magical results.

SO JUST AS GERTRUDE SCHMEIDLER FIRST NOTED DECADES AGO IN HER FAMOUS GOAT AND SHEED

RESEARCH EXPERIMENT, YOU CAN ACTUALLY USE ESD TO PROVE THAT ESD DOESN'T HAPPEN!
IF THIS SOUNDS LIKE THE HEISENBERG UNCERTAINTY PRINCIPLE APPLIED TO THE MACRO WORLD OF CARS, BOATS,
TRAINS, AND PLANES, THEN YOU ARE DEFINITELY CATCHING ON. WHAT YOU LOOK FOR WILL DETERMINE WHAT YOU GET.
AND NOT JUST PSYCHOLOGICALLY BUT AS REAL AS REAL CAN BE.
So in the beginning stages, the Nightside needs to be given equal footing in what could be
THE "EXPLANATION" FOR WHAT HAPPENS.
Dumping disbelief is a training tool to achieve Control.
Once you have enough Control you no longer care what anyone else thinks.
You know.
And you get.

WHY WE DO WHAT WE DO

THE NIGHTSIDE AND TWILIGHT CAN COME IN A FURY AND INVOLVE EXPERIENCES THAT ARE

IMMEDIATELY COMPREHENSIBLE TO YOU EVEN IF YOU FIND THAT AFTERWARDS YOU LACK THE WORDS TO DESCRIBE

WHAT HAPPENED.

AND MEETING IN PERSON WITH AN ADVANCED PRACTITIONER OF OUR RELIGION CAN SOMETIMES BYPASS THE

SEQUENTIAL STEPS WE FOLLOW OTHERWISE. THE CABAL SERVICE CAN SOMETIMES BE VERY GOOD IN THIS

RESPECT. GATHERINGS IN DREAM STATES EVEN MORE SO. IN FACT, MUCH MORE SO.

BUT EVEN IF YOU ROCKET UP ABOVE THE USUAL EARTHLY ATMOSPHERE THIS DOES NOT MEAN YOU WILL ACHIEVE

ESCAPE VELOCITY OR A STABLE ORBIT. OFTEN IN THIS RESPECT WHAT GOES UP MUST COME DOWN \_AND

SOMETIMES COMES DOWN HARD.

This is why we place so much initial emphasis on the Dayside for Temple members. Deople in General AT FIRST REALLY HAVE DAYSIDE REASONS FOR JOINING THE TEMPLE EVEN WHEN THEY THINK THEY ARE REALLY ONLY

HERE FOR THE NIGHTSIDE.

THIS BECOMES OBVIOUS WHEN A MEMBER DODGES DOING SUCH THINGS AS STUDYING THE VERY

STRAIGHTFORWARD INSTRUCTIONS ON WHAT FINANCIAL INDEPENDENCE IS AND HOW TO ACHIEVE IT, FOR EXAMPLE. THIS

IS THE MOST COMMON STUMBLING BLOCK FOR THE NEW TEMPLE MEMBER BECAUSE MONEY PROBLEMS VERY

OFTEN (NOT ALWAYS) ARE AT THE ROOT OF ALMOST ALL OF THEIR REAL ISSUES. I WOULD VENTURE TO SUGGEST

PROBLEMS WITH MONEY ARE THE NUMBER ONE CAUSE OF PROBLEMS WITH PERSONAL RELATIONSHIPS,

DEVELOPING HEALTH PROBLEMS, EMOTIONAL ISSUES, ETC.

I COMMONLY WILL PRIVATELY POINT THIS OUT TO TEMPLE MEMBERS WHO HAVE WHAT THEY SEE AS NON-MONEY

ISSUES BY ASKING, "IF YOU WON THE LOTTO WOULD THIS STILL BE A PROBLEM?"
THE HONEST ANSWER IS USUALLY

(NOT ALWAYS) THAT THE PROBLEM WOULD VANISH ON THE SPOT.

So we have seen a regular stream of members enter the Temple looking for Nightside magic to solve

THEIR DAYSIDE PROBLEMS AND THEN ALSO SEE THEM LEAVE THE TEMPLE WHEN THEIR ATTEMPTS TO BUILD THAT

UDSIDE DOWN DYRAMID FINALLY COLLAPSE ON THEM.

YET ONCE THE DAYSIDE PLANS ARE PUT IN PLACE AND PLACED ON "AUTOMATIC" IT IS ALMOST JAW DROPPING TO

SEE HOW SWIFTLY TEMPLE MEMBERS THEN DISCOVER THAT THEY CAN ADVANCE IN THEIR NIGHTSIDE ACTIVITIES ALSO.

BUT THERE ARE STILL SEQUENTIAL STEPS TO ALL OF THIS WHICH, IF IGNORED, CAN BLOCK SUCH PROGRESS.

FOR EXAMPLE, THERE IS THE ISSUE OF RECOGNIZING AND DEALING WITH DISBELIEF AT EACH CIRCLE. IT IS

NOT UNCOMMON FOR A MEMBER TO ENTER FIRST CIRCLE AND ASSUME THAT THEY ARE OPEN TO THE DISCOVERING

IF LIFEFORCE IS REAL ONLY TO REALIZE THAT THEY REALLY ARE STILL ASSUMING THAT IT IS ONLY A FANTASY.

To progress with the Nightside it is really necessary to "Believe Nothing" in order to be able to

"Test Everything".

A BELIEF IS AN ASSUMPTION THAT SOMETHING IS REAL.

A DISBELIEF IS ONLY A BELIEF THAT SOMETHING IS NOT REAL.

BOTH BELIEFS AND DISBELIEFS HAVE TO BE DROPPED IN ORDER TO "BELIEVE NOTHING".

THEN AND ONLY THEN CAN YOU "TEST" THE ISSUE AT HAND.

So we have members who need to agree to stop disbelieving in Lifeforce to enter First Circle where

THEY ARE GOING TO ATTEMPT TO VALIDATE THAT LIFEFORCE IS REAL.

THIS IS EXACTLY THE SAME THING A TRUE SCIENTIST MUST DO. THE SCIENTIST CANNOT ASSUME IN ADVANCE

THAT ELECTRICITY DOES NOT EXIST IF HE INTENDS TO TEST FOR IT. HE MUST DROP BOTH HIS BELIEF IN IT AND ANY

DISBELIEF IN IT AS WELL TO NOT COLOR HIS EXPECTATIONS AND POSSIBLY SELF-SABOTAGE HIS EFFORTS.

WE DO EXACTLY THIS IN THE NIGHTSIDE CIRCLES.

To enter the First Circle the Temple member must first agree to drop disbeliefs about Lifeforce.

To enter the Second Circle the Temple member must agree to drop disbeliefs about Communion.

To enter the Third Circle the Temple member must agree to drop disbeleifs about Magic.

To enter the Fourth Circle the Temple member must agree to drop disbeliefs about the nature of

THE SELF (THE DRAGON) AND REALITY ITSELF.

This is not saying "believe".
This is saying stop DISBELIEVING. Drop any assumptions that ${\sf X}$ is not true and then you might be able
TO FIND OUT IF IT IS TRUE.
It is just that simple.
It is also just that necessary.
I hope this better explains why we do what we do.

THE MAGICIAN'S CHOICE

This where the path divides between Muggle and Magician.

RICHARD BACH ONCE WROTE, "ARGUE FOR YOUR LIMITATIONS, AND SURE ENOUGH THEY'RE YOURS."

I CALL THIS THE MAGICIAN'S CHOICE.

In any situation when you willed an outcome and it happens, you then have the choice to "Muggle" it ("That was just a coincidence") or Magic it ("Wow. I did that!").

The payoff for the Muggle by explaining away every possible magical event in life is social acceptance by other Muggles based on assuming a false certainty regarding the world ("Welcome fellow Muggle to our Muggle Club. We are too smart to be taken in by such pseudo-science and superstition!").

The payoff for the Magician is the reinforcement on unconscious levels for noticing and allowing anomalous events to happen more frequently and in the manner you wish they would!

In other words the Muggle gets to feel smug like an ostrich in a sandstorm who denies there is any sandstorm by keeping his head buried, whereas the Magician gets to discover more and more control and awareness of the so-called paranormal.

EACH NIGHTSIDE GRADE IN THE TEMPLE REQUIRES THAT THE MEMBER FIRST AGREE TO ACCEPT AS A
WORKING HYPOTHESIS THAT SOME PARTICULAR ELEMENT OF THE NIGHTSIDE IS REAL. WE DO THIS BECAUSE IT
DEFEATS THE MUGGLE GAME OF DISBELIEF WHICH BLOCKS SUCH THINGS FROM BEING PERCEIVED. FOR EXAMPLES
IN ENTERING FIRST CIRCLE YOU AGREE TO ACCEPT AS A WORKING HYPOTHESIS THAT LIFEFORCE IS REAL SO THAT YOU

CAN TEST FOR EVIDENCE OF IT IN YOUR OWN EXPERIENCE.

UNTIL SOMEONE CLOBBERED YOU! IF THEN!

This approach of "looking for" results, rather than the attitude of "I doubt it can be real", allows you to overcome the self-imposed blindness of selective perception. When you actively look for something, such as anything with the color green around you, then the color green seems to leap out in your awareness. Switch from green to red and then red leaps out while green drops into the background. These are examples of selective perception, an accepted part of psychology.

In precisely the same manner if you approach something in the Nightside while expecting that it is there, by "looking for" it, then you are far more likely to perceive it. Contrary wise, if you assume it isn't there then you will not likely see it unless it clobbers you over the head in exactly the same way that

If you were walking down a dark alley not expecting to be robbed you wouldn't know it might happen

Again, the payoff for the Muggle is the false sense of certainty that there is no magic in the world. So

THE MUGGLE MAKES ALL OF HIS DECISIONS AND ALL OF HIS PLANS AND GOALS IN LIFE BASED ON ASSUMING THAT "WHAT YOU SEE IS ALL THERE IS."

THE MAGICIAN TAKES A DIFFERENT APPROACH, MOST PROBABLY BECAUSE THE MAGICIAN HAS ENCOUNTERED ANOMALOUS EVENTS IN HIS LIFE HE REALLY SIMPLY CAN'T "EXPLAIN AWAY" THE WAY THE MUGGLE DOES.

THE ASPIRING MAGICIAN SAYS TO THE MUGGLE'S FALSE CERTAINTY, "I DOUBT IT!"

The aspiring Magician says to himself, "Maybe I DID do this in some manner that I do not (yet) consciously understand."

BUT THE PRACTICING MAGICIAN TAKES ONE STEP BEYOND ALL OF THESE TIMID HESITATIONS AND STATES
"Wow! I did it!".
THE VERY FACT THAT ORDINARY MORTALS FIND HESITATION IN DOING THIS IS THE SAME MENTAL BLOCK THAT TURNS
THEM INTO MUGGLES.
The Magician's Choice is critical for those who want to experience, practice and master real Magic.
CHOOSE _WISELY.